
  

 
 

 
1 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

CABINET MEMBER FOR TRAFFIC & TRANSPORTATION 
 

THURSDAY 24 FEBRUARY 2022 AT 4PM 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, SECOND FLOOR, THE GUILDHALL 
 
Telephone enquiries to Democratic Services 023 9283 4060 
Email: democratic@portsmouthcc.gov.uk 
 
If any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting has access requirements, please 
notify the contact named above. 

 
Information with regard to public access due to Covid precautions  
 

  Attendees will be requested to undertake an asymptomatic/ lateral flow test within 48 hours of 
the meeting. Around one in three people who are infected with COVID-19 have no symptoms 
so could be spreading the virus without knowing it. Asymptomatic testing – getting tested 
when you don’t have symptoms - helps protect people most at risk by helping to drive down 
transmission rates. We strongly encourage you to take up the habit of regular asymptomatic 
testing to help prevent the spread of coronavirus to your colleagues and residents you work 
with.  

 

 We strongly recommend that attendees should be double vaccinated, and if eligible, have 
received a booster.  

 

  If symptomatic you must not attend and self-isolate following the stay-at-home guidance 
issued by UK Health Security Agency.  

 

  All attendees are required to wear a face covering while moving around within the Guildhall 
and are recommended to continue wearing a face covering in the Council Chamber except 
when speaking.  

 

  Although not a requirement, attendees are strongly encouraged to keep a social distance and 
take opportunities to prevent the spread of infection. 

 

  Hand sanitiser is provided at the entrance and throughout the Guildhall. All attendees are 
encouraged to make use of hand sanitiser on entry to the Guildhall and are requested to 
follow the one-way system in place.  

 

  Attendees are encouraged book into the venue (QR code). An NHS test and trace log will be 
retained and maintained for 21 days for those that cannot or have not downloaded the app. 2  

 

 Those not participating in the meeting and wish to view proceedings are encouraged to do so 
remotely via the livestream link. 

 

Public Document Pack



 
2 

CABINET MEMBER FOR TRAFFIC & TRANSPORTATION 
Councillor Lynne Stagg (Liberal Democrat) 
 
Group Spokespersons 
 
Councillor Simon Bosher, Conservative 
Councillor Graham Heaney, Labour 
 
 

(NB This agenda should be retained for future reference with the minutes of this meeting.) 
 
Please note that the agenda, minutes and non-exempt reports are available to view online on 
the Portsmouth City Council website:  www.portsmouth.gov.uk 
 
Deputations by members of the public may be made on any item where a decision is 
going to be taken. The request should be made in writing to the contact officer (above) by 
12 noon of the working day before the meeting, and must include the purpose of the 
deputation (for example, for or against the recommendations). Email requests are 
accepted. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 1   Apologies  
 

 2   Declarations of Members' Interests  
 

 3   Local Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Plan 2020-2030 (Pages 5 - 142) 

  Purpose. 

 This report builds on the previous Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 
Plan report presented to the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation 
dated 16 July 2020. 

 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from the Cabinet Member for 
the adoption of the Portsmouth Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 
Plan (LCWIP), daughter document of the Portsmouth LTP4, following 
external consultation.  

 
RECOMMENDED that the Cabinet Member for Traffic & Transportation:  
1. Notes the results of the consultation held between September 2020 and 

November 2020;  

2. Approves the Portsmouth LCWIP that has been developed in 
response to the consultation findings as the "Portsmouth Local 
Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan and Summary Document" 
and recognises that this document will form the basis of the city's 
Active Travel development strategy during the lifetime of the LTP4 
policy.  

 



 
3 

 4   TRO 152B/2021: Various Roads - Disabled Parking Places and 
Amendments (Pages 143 - 166) 

  Purpose. 
To consider the public response to the proposed disabled bays in locations in 
Portsmouth.  In this report, TRO means traffic regulation order. 
 
Appendix A: the public proposal notice for TRO 152/2021 
Appendix B: Public views submitted. 
Appendix C: Confirmation of communications (statutory and non-statutory). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
In relation to the proposals promoted under TRO 152B/2021, it is 
recommended that: 
1. The Disabled Persons' Parking Bay in Alhambra Road (outside No 22) 

is implemented. 
2. It is noted that the remainder of TRO 152/2021 is coming into 

operation under TRO 152A/2021 on 21 February 2022, due to no 
objections being received to those proposals. Therefore, any 
proposal approved following this report will be brought into operation 
under TRO 152B/2021. 

3. It is also noted that the Disabled Bay in Glenthorne Road is no longer 
required and has been removed from the TRO. 

 

 5   Concessionary Fares Scheme Reimbursement to Bus Operators 2022/23  

  This report will follow. 
 
 
 
 
 

Members of the public are permitted to use both audio-visual recording devices and social media 
during this meeting, on the understanding that it neither disrupts the meeting nor records those 
stating explicitly that they do not wish to be recorded. Guidance on the use of devices at 
meetings open to the public is available on the council's website and posters on the wall of the 
meeting's venue. 
 
Whilst every effort will be made to webcast this meeting, should technical or other difficulties 
occur, the meeting will continue without being webcast via the council's website. 
 
This meeting is webcast (videoed), viewable via the council's livestream account at 
https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785   

https://livestream.com/accounts/14063785


This page is intentionally left blank



   
 

1 

 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Title of meeting: 
 

Traffic and Transportation - Decision Meeting 

Date of meeting: 
 

24/02/2022 

Subject: 
 

Portsmouth City Council Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan 2021 - 2031 

Report by: 
 

Tristan Samuels - Director of Regeneration  

Wards affected: 
 

ALL 

Key decision: No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1. Purpose of report 

 
1.1. This report builds on the previous Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan report 

presented to the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation dated 16 July 20201.  
 

1.2. The purpose of this report is to seek approval from the Cabinet Member for the adoption of 
the Portsmouth Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP), daughter 
document of the Portsmouth LTP4, following external consultation.  

 
2. Recommendations 
 It is recommended that the Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation: 
 
2.1 Notes the results of the consultation held between September 2020 and November 2020; 

 
2.2  Approves the Portsmouth LCWIP that has been developed in response to the consultation 

findings as the "Portsmouth Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan and Summary 
Document" and recognises that this document will form the basis of the city's Active Travel 
development strategy during the lifetime of the LTP4 policy. 

 
3. Background 

 
3.1. The Portsmouth LCWIP sets out the strategic approach for improving walking and cycling 

to support the Governments strategy of increasing walking and cycling trips.  
It proposes a range of short, medium, and longer-term infrastructure improvements for 
future investment, ensuring consideration is given to active travel modes at a local level. 
Further information regarding the background to LCWIPs can be found here: 
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%
20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf. 

 
3.2. Although not a statutory requirement, the Department for Transport have stated in the 

LCWIP Technical Guidance that those Local Authorities who have plans in place will be 

 
1 
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf


   
 

2 

 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

'…well placed to make the case for future investment'2. 
 

3.3. As previously noted in the LCWIP Traffic and Transportation report dated 16 July 20203, 
'… The LCWIP highlights the Walking and Cycling Infrastructure priorities in Portsmouth, 
emphasising the need to create a coherent and legible active travel network that 
encourages usage city-wide.'  
 

3.4. To ensure the proposals outlined in the LCWIP match the expectation of stakeholders, a 
six-week public consultation on the draft document for Portsmouth was held between 
September and November 2020. This provided an opportunity for all interested parties to 
influence and shape the development of the Portsmouth LCWIP. 

 
4. Results from the Consultation 

 
4.1. In total, 626 responses were provided to the questionnaire during this period. A report 

analysing the feedback received can be found in Appendix A. 
 
4.2 The revised draft LCWIP summary document, as attached in Appendix B, has been 

reviewed and changes made considering the results of the consultation.   
 
4.3 In addition to a redesign in line with the LTP4 transport strategy4 published in 2021, the 

key changes from the six-week consultation are as follows: 
 

• Addition of a map outlining the Secondary and Tertiary network of cycling routes 
which will be developed, audited, and prioritised in forthcoming LCWIP's,  

• Addition of a map highlighting the Key Walking Routes identified during the audit 
process that will be developed and prioritised in forthcoming LCWIP's; 

• Amendments to the Short, Medium and Long-Term cycling priority map, highlighting 
areas where no identified improvements have been recognised, and the inclusion of 
a missing link, previously omitted; 

• Clarification regarding future iterations of the LCWIP and scheme design 
requirements. 

 
5. Reasons for recommendations 
 
5.1 Through the adoption of the Portsmouth LCWIP, the authority will have an identified set 

of infrastructure improvements for both walking and cycling that can be used as a basis 
for future funding covering the short, medium, and long term.  
 

5.2 Additionally, the adoption of the LCWIP will ensure that consideration will be given to 
active travel measures when local planning and transport policies and strategy 
documents are developed.  

 
2 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/607016/cycling-
walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance.pdf 
3 
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf 
4 https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/74.633-Local-Transport-Plan-2021-Final-Accessible.pdf  

Page 6

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/607016/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/607016/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/74.633-Local-Transport-Plan-2021-Final-Accessible.pdf


   
 

3 

 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

  
6. Integrated impact assessment 
 
6.1 An IIA has been undertaken for the LCWIP, see Appendix D.   
 
7. Legal implications 
 
7.1  Although the development of Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) 

by local authorities is non-statutory it is promoted by central government policy. 
 
 7.2  The development of LCWIPs has clear synergies with the carrying out of the statutory 

functions of the Council, in particular its duties and functions as a local transport 
authority in relation to local transport plans ("LTPs") under the Transport Act 2000 and 
as a local planning authority in relation to local planning policy under the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
8. Director of Finance's comments 
 
8.1 There are no direct financial implications as a result of the recommendations within this 

report. The LCWIP plan has been devised using cash limited resources. 
 
8.2 As a result of the strategy being adopted there may be some physical works that are 

required to deliver interventions on the network to help achieve this. These are as yet 
unknown and funding will need to be identified dependent on the interventions required. 

 
 
 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by: Tristan Samuels, Director of Regeneration 
 
  

Page 7



   
 

4 

 
 

www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Appendices:  

• Appendix A - https://yourcityyoursay.portsmouth.gov.uk/local-cycling-and-walking-
plan-lcwip-consultation-analysis/ 

 

• Appendix B - Portsmouth Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan Summary 
Document 

 

• Appendix C - Portsmouth City Council Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan 
Background Report 

 

• Appendix D - Integrated Impact Assessment  
 
Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a material 
extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 

Technical Guidance for Local 
Authorities 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/u
ploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/607016/
cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance.pdf 

Traffic and Transportation LCWIP 
Report July 2020 

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27
429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure
%20Plan.pdf  

Portsmouth LTP4 https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2021/11/74.633-Local-Transport-
Plan-2021-Final-Accessible.pdf  

 
The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ rejected 
by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
 

Page 8

https://yourcityyoursay.portsmouth.gov.uk/local-cycling-and-walking-plan-lcwip-consultation-analysis/
https://yourcityyoursay.portsmouth.gov.uk/local-cycling-and-walking-plan-lcwip-consultation-analysis/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/607016/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/607016/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/607016/cycling-walking-infrastructure-technical-guidance.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s27429/Local%20Cycling%20Walking%20Infrastructure%20Plan.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/74.633-Local-Transport-Plan-2021-Final-Accessible.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/74.633-Local-Transport-Plan-2021-Final-Accessible.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/11/74.633-Local-Transport-Plan-2021-Final-Accessible.pdf


www.portsmouth.gov.uk

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 

2021 – 2031P
age 9

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/


LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

P
age 10



3

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

	 Foreword.............................................................................................................................4
1	 Introduction.......................................................................................................................5
	 1.1	 Background.......................................................................................................................................... 5
	 1.2	 The Portsmouth Local Cycling Walking and Infrastructure Plan............................ 9
	 1.3	 Why invest in cycling and walking?...................................................................................... 10
2	 LCWIP scope................................................................................................................... 11
	 2.1	 Area covered.................................................................................................................................... 11
3	 Existing context and challenges............................................................................... 12
	 3.1	 Data and evidence collected for LCWIP........................................................................... 12
4	 Walking and cycling networks................................................................................... 17
	 4.1	 Walking................................................................................................................................................ 17
	 4.2	 Cycling................................................................................................................................................. 19
5	 Prioritising improvements.......................................................................................... 21
6	 Types and examples of improvements.................................................................... 24
	 6.1	 Types of improvement................................................................................................................ 24
7	 Application of LCWIP and integration into authority workstreams................ 27

CONTENTS

P
age 11



4

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Portsmouth City Council declared a 
Climate Emergency on the 19 March 
2019, pledging to achieve net zero carbon 
emissions in Portsmouth by 2030. The 
development of the new Portsmouth 
Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure 
Plan comes at a time when the focus is 
already on decarbonising the city. 

The plan proposes creating a strategy for 
infrastructure improvements in the short, 
medium and long term that will increase 
walking and cycling in the city whilst 
reducing cycle accidents on the roads. 

It is essential that the appropriate 
infrastructure is in place to make walking 
and cycling an attractive, safe and healthy 
alternative to polluting motor vehicles. We 
also want to encourage more active travel 
to combat rising obesity and greater 
participation in walking and cycling will 
help with this. 

This plan is important in contributing to 
improving air quality as there are 
significant air pollution hot spots across 
the city that must also be addressed in 
line with the ministerial direction in the 
shortest possible time. Air pollution 
affects everybody, but it’s worse for 
children, older people and individuals with 
existing heart and lung conditions. 
Exposure to air pollution can cause lung 
damage in children, impair their 
development and worsen existing 
conditions like asthma. 

This forms part of our emerging Local 
Transport Plan 4 that sets out our vision 
and policy direction for transport in 
Portsmouth until 2036. 

This LCWIP shows how we will work 
towards delivering ambitious plans to 
increase walking and cycling usage in 
Portsmouth. The strategy will help to 
achieve the targets in our emerging Local 

FOREWORD

Plan, setting out housing and employment 
growth to 2036, and our emerging Climate 
Change Strategy and Local Transport 
Plan, including a carbon neutral 
Portsmouth by 2030. 

Our LCWIP highlights how our existing 
cycle routes and comprehensive footway 
network can be transformed in order to 
better connect people to places, including 
strategic development sites set out in our 
new Local Plan, and encourage people of 
all abilities to cycle and walk. 

By expanding the travel choices for those 
in Portsmouth, we will be providing clear 
benefits to both individuals and 
communities alike, helping to overcome 
issues associated with inactivity and 
social isolation. 

This Plan will aid in the future-proofing of 
the city to ensure that it is ‘…cleaner, 
greener and safer…’ for generations to 
come.

Councillor Lynne Stagg

P
age 12



5

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

1.1	 BACKGROUND
This report is a sub-strategy to the 
adopted Local Transport Plan (LTP4) 
as indicated in figure 1. It provides the 
first iteration of the joint cycling and 
walking strategy and implementation 
plan for Portsmouth. As outlined in the 
Government’s Cycling and Walking 
Investment Strategy (CWIS)1, the 
ambition is  
“…to make walking and cycling the natural 
choices for shorter journeys or as part of 
longer journeys.” 

In order to support this, Local Cycling and 
Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) 
have been developed. LCWIPs provide 
a new, strategic, long-term approach to 
developing walking and cycling networks 
for local authorities across the country 
following guidance from the Department 
for Transport (DfT). 

The Portsmouth LCWIP was developed 
using Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan Technical Guidance 
for Local Authorities, issued by the DfT 
(see figure 2), and also considers best 
practice examples from the UK. Technical 
support was provided by DfT’s appointed 
consultant, WSP.

1	 INTRODUCTION

P
age 13

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-investment-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-investment-strategy


6

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

LOCAL TRANSPORT 
PLAN 4

Greener, healthier 
and better connected

Strategy
Implementation Plan

Annual Monitoring Report

National and sub-regional 
policy and guidance

Department for Transport
Transport for South East
Solent Local Enterprise 

Partnership (LEP)
Solent Transport
Partnership for 

South  Hampshire

Portsmouth City Council policy and strategy

Imagine Portsmouth
Council vision and priorities

Local Plan and supplementary 
planning documents

City Centre Masterplan
Seafront Masterplan

Economic Development 
and Regeneration Strategy

Portsmouth Skills and 
Labour Market Strategy

Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Joint Strategic Needs 

Assessment
Physical Activity Strategy

Greening Strategy
Climate Emergency Strategy

Deliver  
cleaner air

Local Air Quality Plan
Air Quality Strategy

Air Quality Action Plan

Ultra Zero Emission 
Strategy

Parking Strategy

Park and Ride Strategy

Road safety and 
casualty report

Sustainable modes 
of travel to school

Behaviour Change 
Strategy

Prioritise walking  
and cycling

Rights of Way 
Improvement Plan

Walking and 
Cycling Strategy

Local Cycling 
and Walking 

Infrastructure Plan
Wayfinding Strategy

Transport 
Recovery Plan

Transform public 
transport

Public Transport 
Strategy

Bus Service 
Improvement Plan

Accessibility Strategy

Support business 
and protect our 

assets

Highways Maintenance 
Strategy

Highways Asset 
Management Policy

Highways Asset 
Management Strategy

Street Lighting 
Strategy

Freight Strategy

6

Figure 1

P
age 14

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-transport
https://transportforthesoutheast.org.uk
https://solentlep.org.uk
https://solentlep.org.uk
https://www.solent-transport.com
https://push.gov.uk/#:~:text=The%20Partnership%20for%20South%20Hampshire,Governance%20for%20Bird%20Aware%20Solent
https://push.gov.uk/#:~:text=The%20Partnership%20for%20South%20Hampshire,Governance%20for%20Bird%20Aware%20Solent
https://imagineportsmouth.co.uk
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/council-and-democracy/policies-and-strategies/our-council-priorities
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/development-and-planning/planning-policy/the-local-plan
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/development-and-planning/planning-policy/the-local-plan
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/development-and-planning/planning-policy/city-centre-masterplan
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/development-and-planning/planning-policy/seafront-masterplan
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/council-and-democracy/policies-and-strategies/economic-development-and-regeneration-strategy
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/council-and-democracy/policies-and-strategies/economic-development-and-regeneration-strategy
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Skills-and-labout-market-strategy-accessible.pdf
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/11/Skills-and-labout-market-strategy-accessible.pdf
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/council-and-democracy/transparency/health-and-wellbeing-strategy
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/health-and-care/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/health-and-care/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment
https://energiseme.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/06/Hampshire-and-Isle-of-Wight-Physical-Activity-Strategy-2017-21-January-2018.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26330/Greening%20Portsmouth%20Strategy%20appendix.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s25687/Response%20to%20Climate%20Emergency%20Strategy%20appendix%20A.pdf
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/travel/public-rights-of-way
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/travel/public-rights-of-way
https://travel.portsmouth.gov.uk/schemes/lcwip
https://travel.portsmouth.gov.uk/schemes/lcwip
https://travel.portsmouth.gov.uk/schemes/lcwip
https://travel.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/portsmouth-transport-recovery-plan-june-2020.pdf
https://travel.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/portsmouth-transport-recovery-plan-june-2020.pdf
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/highways-management
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/highways-management
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/new-led-street-lighting
https://portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/roads/new-led-street-lighting


7

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Figure 2: LCWIP Process

Stage Name Description

1 Determining scope Establish the geographical extent of the LCWIP, and 
arrangements for governing and preparing the plan.

2 Gathering 
information

Identify existing patterns of walking and cycling and potential 
new journeys. Review existing conditions and identify barriers 
to cycling and walking. Review related transport and land use 
policies and programmes.

3 Network planning 
for cycling

Identify origin and destination points and cycle flows. Convert 
flows into a network of routes and determine the type of 
improvements required.

4 Network planning 
for walking

Identify key trip generators, core walking zones and 
routes, audit existing provision and  determine the type of 
improvements required.

5 Prioritising 
improvements

Prioritise improvements to develop a phased programme for 
future investment.

6 Integration and 
application

Integrate outputs into local planning and transport policies, 
and delivery plans.

P
age 15



8

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

This process culminates in three key outputs, which collectively form the LCWIP: 

Cycling and walking network 
plans2 which identify preferred 
routes and core zones for further 
development;  
 

A prioritised schedule of 
infrastructure improvements3 for 
future investment; and  
 

A report setting out the underlying 
analysis and the narrative which 
supports the rationale for the 
identified network and prioritised 
improvements – the Background 
Report4. 

This report sets out the key highlights from these three outputs. 

Information on the methodology used is located in the Background Report. 

P
age 16



9

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

The first Portsmouth LCWIP has been 
developed by Portsmouth City Council 
with support from WSP. Additionally, a 
working group was formed with several 
local stakeholders. Where LCWIP projects 
have been identified, and funding secured, 
further engagement with key stakeholders 
will take place throughout the design 
process.

The aim of the Portsmouth LCWIP is 
to encourage modal shift by creating 
a comprehensive walking and cycling 
network that is safe, inclusive, accessible, 
convenient and attractive, enabling people 
to get from A to B in the most direct way 
possible when making utility trips. 

These are everyday journeys made for a 
specific purpose, such as commuting to 
work, trips to the shops or the doctor, or to 
school, college and university. 

Due to the resourcing required to 
establish a comprehensive Network Plan 
for Portsmouth, the LCWIP is intended to 

be developed through a phased approach, 
with the initial LCWIP covering a 10-
year period that is subject to periodic 
updates as funding opportunities become 
available.

The LCWIP is an ambitious plan that 
proposes significant investment over the 
next 10 years that look to transform the 
city for both walking and cycling. 

The principles of the LCWIP, such as 
the audit methodology used, has been 
embedded in to the adopted Local 
Transport Plan 4, where Active Travel is  
a particular focus. 

This initial phase of the LCWIP focuses on 
several specific routes for both walking 
and cycling, forming a primary network 
(see figures 3 and 5). Secondary and 
Tertiary networks will be developed in 
future iterations of the LCWIP. 

Further details regarding this can be found 
in the Background Report5.

1.2	 THE PORTSMOUTH LOCAL CYCLING WALKING AND INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN

P
age 17



10

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

In establishing an LCWIP, Portsmouth City Council are setting out our approach, based 
on a clear methodology, for improvements to walking and cycling networks that have a 
wide range of benefits.

1.3	 WHY INVEST IN CYCLING AND WALKING?

Increase accessibilty 
By making it easier for residents and visitors 
to both walk and cycle in Portsmouth, we 
can make the city far more inclusive and 
accessible for all.

�Improvements to the local 
economy 
Investing in walking and cycling projects 
provides a ‘Benefit Cost Ratio’ of 13:1, so 
for every £1 spent, £13 is returned to the 
economy.7 Additionally, those who cycle and 
walk will take more trips to the high street 
over the course of a month.7

Improve health 
Walking and cycling directly contribute 
towards a range of physical, mental and 
neurological health benefits, such as 
reducing the risk of all-cause mortality, 
fewer symptoms of depression and 
improved quality of life.6

Increase productivity 
Those that walk or cycle to work report to 
have greater job satisfaction and feel far 
more productive than those who travel by 
different modes.7

Creates cleaner air and reduces 
congestion
By improving walking and cycling routes we 
are encouraging a modal shift away from 
single car occupancy vehicle, thus reducing 
car travel which in turn leads to a reduction 
in air pollution, carbon dioxide emissions and 
congestion.

Promotes future growth
By building a network of walking and cycling 
routes, we are increasing the range of 
transport options that respond to areas of 
current and future development.  

wheelchair

poll

Watch-Fitness

grin

lungs

EXTERNAL-LINK-SQUARE

P
age 18

http://content.tfl.gov.uk/walking-cycling-economic-benefits-summary-pack.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/walking-cycling-economic-benefits-summary-pack.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/walking-cycling-economic-benefits-summary-pack.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/walking-cycling-economic-benefits-summary-pack.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
http://Those that walk or cycle to work report to have greater job satisfaction and feel far more productiv
http://Those that walk or cycle to work report to have greater job satisfaction and feel far more productiv
http://Those that walk or cycle to work report to have greater job satisfaction and feel far more productiv
http://Those that walk or cycle to work report to have greater job satisfaction and feel far more productiv


11

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

2.1	 AREA COVERED
The Plan covers the whole of the 
Portsmouth authority area, including trip 
origins and destinations that are located in 
neighbouring authorities, as can be found 
in figure 2. 

In order to ensure sufficient continuity of 
provision across boundary, Portsmouth 
City Council has been working in 
conjunction with neighbouring authorities 
such as Hampshire County Council and 
the Isle of Wight Council, throughout the 
LCWIP process.

 

Figure 2: LCWIP area coverage

PORTCHESTER 
AND FAREHAM

GOSPORT

�ISLE OF 
WIGHT

WATERLOOVILLE

LEIGH PARK

HAVANT

HAYLING 
ISLAND

2	 LCWIP SCOPE

P
age 19



12

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Through the LCWIP process, a wide range 
of data and information has been gathered 
and referenced. This has influenced and 
shaped the planned future cycling and 
walking network, proposed interventions 
and design standards for infrastructure. 

Plans, policies and strategies 
Improvements to walking and cycling are 
a concurrent theme across a number 
of Portsmouth City Council policies and 
strategies that have been adopted or 
are in a process of consultation. This 
highlights the important link that the 
LCWIP holds when being considered as 
part of the wider context. 

Examples of this are shown in the diagram 
opposite.

A full list, and further information can be 
found in the Background Report.8 

3.1	 DATA AND EVIDENCE 
COLLECTED FOR LCWIP

Th
e 

Po
rt

sm
ou

th
 P

la
n

The Air Q
uality

  

Local P
lan

Portsmouth Local 

Transport Plan

Coastal Defence Schemes

Solent T
ransport  

Deliv
ery Plan

Joint Strategy for South 
Hampshire

The Green Infrastructure 

Background Paper

Th
e 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
Ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 P
ap

er

LCWIP

3	 EXISTING CONTEXT AND CHALLENGES

P
age 20



13

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Existing cycling and walking 
network
The current network available for cycling 
and walking is illustrated on the city 
council’s Active Travel Map9, with public 
rights of way plans10 also published 
online . 

As part of the LCWIP process, the 
information gathered via audit, 
stakeholder engagement and site visits 
has helped to identify severance points, 
where options to continue walking or 
cycling are limited or cut off completely, 
and inform network planning. 

An assessment of the quality of the 
network based on suitability for walking 
and cycling was also undertaken, with the 
following key findings:

Shared-use paths scored  
poorly where insufficient  
width for different cyclists  
and pedestrians exist.

Residential streets with low 
traffic volumes and 20mph 
speed limits tended to score 
well

Many on-road sections score poorly against safety and 
comfort criteria. This is usually due to them having high 
traffic volumes, 30mph speed limits and no infrastructure 
to physically protect cyclists from motor traffic

Many paths are 
unlit, or have 
no passive 
surveillance.

Some off-carriageway routes 
score well where they are 
sufficiently wide to comfortably 
accommodate all users. 

Cycling – low scores

Cycling – high scores

P
age 21

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/trv-actitvetravelmap-2014.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/parking-travel-and-roads/travel/public-rights-of-way
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/parking-travel-and-roads/travel/public-rights-of-way


14

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Absence of street trees or planting in 
the highway to enhance the walking 
environment, provide shade or shelter 
and absorb carbon dioxide;

Extensive bollards or guard railing 
impacting on the quality of the 
streetscape. 

Footways in poor condition, 
damaged paving slabs and 
uneven surfaces, creating 
potential trip hazards;

No formalised pedestrian priority when crossing 
side roads. Road crossings without dropped 
kerbs or tactile paving to assist blind, partially 
sighted and mobility impaired pedestrians.

Walking - network issues

Further details of this can be found in the Background Report11

P
age 22



15

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

The most commonly used mode of transport to 
work by Portsmouth residents are as follows:14

Travel patterns 
Car or van use for travel to work still 
remains the most popular method of 
transport in Portsmouth10 based on 
2011 Census data, with those travelling 
by foot and by bike having fairly low 
representation.  

Despite evidence suggesting that we 
travel far less12, “… with 16% fewer 
trips made in 2018 than in 1996.” It is 
anticipated that there will be a “… 41% 
increase in inbound traffic … by 2026”10.

By
 fo

ot

By
 b

ik
e

4.6%

36.5%

By
 tr

ai
n

2.3%

By
 b

us
, m

in
ib

us
 o

r c
oa

ch
4.7%

10.6%

By
 c

ar
 o

r v
an

P
age 23

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26332/Local%20Transport%20Plan%204%20Development%20report.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26332/Local%20Transport%20Plan%204%20Development%20report.pdf


16

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

 

 

The proportion of adults in Portsmouth that either walk or cycle are as follows:

Walking14 

Cycling15

walk five times per week for travel      vs

cycle five times per week for travel     vs

walk five times per week for leisure    vs

cycle five times per week for leisure   vs

22.3%

5.3% 

14.7%

1.0%

63.9% 

17.7% 

60.9% 

17.8% 

walk at least once per month for travel

cycle at least once per month for travel

walk at least once per month for leisure

cycle at least once per month for leisure

This highlights challenges faced, but also the potential for modal shift away from 
single-occupancy vehicles, and the importance of the proposals outlined in the 
LCWIP in order to increase the number of people cycling and walking to meet 
government targets. 

P
age 24

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/walking-and-cycling-statistics-cw
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS701EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell 


17

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Although car and van use represent a 
high proportion of trips in Portsmouth, the 
distance travelled for journeys to work still 
remains low. 

With walking17 having the greatest 
potential to replace trips currently made 
by other modes up to 2km in length, this 
shows that there is significant potential to 
increase the number of those walking in 
the city. 

In order to support this, a network of 
walking routes have been proposed 
using employment sites from the 2011 
census, along with other key destinations 
and based on guidance using Core 
Walking Zones (CWZs) and Key Walking 
Routes (KWRS), where CWZs consist of 
major trip generators that are clustered 

together such as Commercial Road and 
Guildhall Walk, and KWRs being the main 
pedestrian routes across the remaining 
areas of the city.

For the purposes of the first iteration of 
the Portsmouth LCWIP, only the top 5 
KWR’s leading to the city centre and the 
top 5 KWR’s outside the city centre have 
been audited. This is shown in figure 3. 

This network of walking routes is believed 
to have the most potential when looking at 
increasing the number of journeys made 
by foot in Portsmouth.

Each route has been audited based on 
the criteria of attractiveness, comfort, 
directness, safety and coherence. As 
the quality of some of these routes are 
poor, they may not currently have high 
numbers of people travelling on foot, but 
the potential for increasing the number of 

short journeys are high if they are found to 
be easy, convenient and safe to do so. 

The wider network of Core Walking Zones, 
along with the Key Walking Routes in 
the city are shown in Figure 4. These 
will be audited in future iterations of the 
Portsmouth LCWIP. 

Please visit the Background Report18 
for further analysis, and the methodology 
used, including a map highlighting CWZs 
in Portsmouth. 

4.1	 WALKING*

*	 In the context of the LCWIP, 
walking includes people using 
wheelchairs or mobility scooters 
and people with pushchairs

24% of all journeys to work 
are < 2km16

4	 WALKING AND CYCLING NETWORKS

P
age 25

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS701EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell 
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS701EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell 


18

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Figure 3: Prioritised key walking routes Figure 4: Wider Key Walking Route Network and Core Walking Zones

Distric
t b

o un
da

r y

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan LCWIP 

Key walking routes with destinations

  Employment (existing and future)
  Leisure and attractions
  Centres (city, town and district)
  Other major retail
  Education (university and college)
  Education (secondary schools)
  Transport interchanges
  Destination cluster
—  Key walking routes – revision B
  Tier 1 core walking zone
  Tier 2 core walking zone

Distric
t b

o un
da

r y

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan LCWIP 

Walking network

— Top 5 walking routes in city centre
— Top 5 walking routes outside city centre

22

37

79

33

80

68

53

77

27

11

P
at

h:
 \\

uk
.w

sp
gr

ou
p.

co
m

\c
en

tra
l d

at
a\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
70

05
55

xx
\7

00
55

57
2 

- P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 L
C

W
IP

\0
3 

W
IP

\T
P

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
P

la
nn

in
g\

G
IS

\7
00

55
57

2-
W

-0
04

-A
.m

xd

0 500 1,000
Metres

Job Title Portsmouth Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Drawing Title

Proposed Walking Network - 
Top Scoring Routes

70055572-W-004-A
Drawing Number

Scale at A3 1:30,000
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material 
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.

© Crown copyright

±

Date

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

© Crown copyright and database right 2019

Drawn Stage 1 check

Drawing Status

20/06/2019

JPWS

FOR COMMENT

Stage 2 check

NW
Originated

JP

Top 5 walking routes in city
centre
Top 5 walking routes outside
city centre

11

68

53

22

33

80

27

77

79

37

P
age 26



19

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

4.2	 CYCLING
The LCWIP guidance suggests that 
cycling19 has the potential to replace trips 
currently made by other modes, typically 
up to 10km in length. Additionally, a 5km 
threshold has been applied to represent 
short distance utility journeys which could 
be made by new or returning cyclists.

A network of main corridors and several 
east-west routes have been identified 
based on the greatest potential to 
increase cycling. 

Approximate home and work locations 
have been mapped to form ‘as the crow 
fly’ information using 2011 census data, 
along with the Propensity to Cycle 
Tool (PCT)21, with key destinations as 
part of the walking network also being 
considered.

This has been mapped onto the existing 
network, and discussed with stakeholder 
groups.  

Figure 5 highlights the primary network, 
those routes having the greatest potential 
to increase cycling journeys that lead or 
go past key destinations and employment 
sites. As with each walking route, there are 
unique identifiers for each cycling route 
that have been used.

The primary network has been audited 
(see Section 3) based on a criteria of 
directness, gradient, safety, connectivity 
and comfort. Further detailed information 
about the audit process, including 
the scores of each section of routes 
against this criteria, can be found in the 
Background Report22. 

As initial audits have been focused on 
routes with the greatest potential to 
increase the number of people cycling, 

none of the proposed secondary or 
tertiary networks have been audited.  
Figure 6 highlights both the primary, 
secondary and tertiary network of cycle 
routes identified in Portsmouth. These are 
mapped based on desire lines, linking 
origin and destination by straight line 
connections. For further information 
regarding the method used to develop  
this network, please see the Background 
Report22. 

With 64% of current 
journeys below 10km20

P
age 27

https://www.pct.bike/m/?r=hampshire
https://www.pct.bike/m/?r=hampshire
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/walking-and-cycling-statistics-cw
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/walking-and-cycling-statistics-cw


20

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Figure 5: Primary Cycling Network Figure 6: Primary, Secondary and Tertiary Cycling Network

©
 C

ro
wn

 C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 d

at
ab

as
e 

rig
ht

 2
02

0.
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 lic

en
ce

 n
um

be
r 1

00
01

96
71

.

Distric
t b

o un
da

r y

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan LCWIP 

Proposed cycling network

— Method 1
— Method 2
— Method 3

— Western cycle corridor
Route refs 307, 307a, 405, 503

— Eastern 
cycle corridor
Route refs 
108, 205, 301

— East-West Portsea 
Island cycle routes
Route refs 601, 602, 801

P
age 28



21

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

In order to prioritise accordingly, a 
balanced set of criteria were chosen to 
inform infrastructure improvements. The 
criteria covered the following themes:

	� Existing and potential future cycling 
demand;

	� Strategic transport projects and 
priorities e.g. AQMA areas;

	� Economy;

	� Education;

	� Housing; and

	� Public health

These helped establish an investment 
programme of short, medium and long-
term investment for the primary walking 
and cycling network, as summarised in the 
three categories below:

�	 Shorter-term (0–3 Years):  
improvements which can be 
implemented quickly or are under 
development; 

�	 Medium term (3–5 Years):  
improvements where there is a clear 
intention to act, but delivery is 
dependent on further funding 
availability or other issues (e.g. detailed 
design, securing planning permissions, 
land acquisition, etc); and

	� Longer-term (5–10 Years):  
more aspirational improvements or 
those awaiting a defined solution. 

This investment programme will feed into 
the Local Transport Plan (LTP4) strategy 
and future LTP implementation plans as 
part of a range of works, along with wider 
infrastructure proposals such as those 
that are being developed for the South 
East Hampshire Rapid Transit network.

For further details regarding the 
methodology for prioritisation, please see 
the Background Report. 

5	 PRIORITISING IMPROVEMENTS

P
age 29



22

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Prioritising cycle route 
improvements
Outlined in Figure 7 are the short, medium 
and longer-term indicative prioritisation 
of cycling improvements for Portsmouth, 
with each route split into relevant sections 
to help support this process. 

For site specific information, please visit 
Appendix B.

Figure 7: Short, Medium and Long-term cycling improvement prioritisation.

©
 C

ro
wn

 C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 d

at
ab

as
e 

rig
ht

 2
02

0.
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 lic

en
ce

 n
um

be
r 1

00
01

96
71

.

Distric
t b

o un
da

r y

Indicative prioritisation 
of improvements
— Short-term
— Medium-term
— Longer-term
— No identified 

improvementsP
age 30



23

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Prioritising walking route 
improvements
Figure 8 maps the short, medium and 
longer-term indicative improvements for 
walking infrastructure in the city. As with 
cycling, this has been split into sections to 
aid prioritisation.

Figure 8: Short, Medium and Long-term walking improvement prioritisation.

©
 C

ro
wn

 C
op

yr
ig

ht
 a

nd
 d

at
ab

as
e 

rig
ht

 2
02

0.
 O

rd
na

nc
e 

Su
rv

ey
 lic

en
ce

 n
um

be
r 1

00
01

96
71

.

Distric
t b

o un
da

r y

Indicative prioritisation 
of improvements
— Short-term
— Medium-term
— Longer-term

P
age 31



24

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

In order to set a baseline for walking and 
cycling infrastructure, an established set 
of principles have been used to inform 
improvements and associated cost 
estimates. 

Examples of these can be found below. 

All potential improvements will follow 
the latest available guidance, taking 
into consideration those sites where 
casualty and near-miss reports exist, and 
are subject to further study, feasibility 
and consultation, each of which has the 

potential to change cost estimates  
and scheme design.

Please note these are for illustrative 
purposes only. For further information 
regarding this, please refer to the 
Background Report.

Raised Tables

A section of the 
carriageway that is raised 
to the same height as 
the adjacent footway to 
improve crossing. 

At-grade crossing 
facilities

A crossing point for 
potentially both cyclists and 
pedestrians at the same 
level as the carriageway. 

Parklets

A public space that provides 
an extension of the footway 
incorporating seating, greening 
and bicycle parking. These 
are usually placed in former 
parking-bays. 

Grade-separated 
crossings

A crossing point for 
potentially both cyclists and 
pedestrians at a different 
level to the carriageway.

6.1	 TYPES OF IMPROVEMENT

6	 TYPES AND EXAMPLES OF IMPROVEMENTS

P
age 32



25

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Segregated or Shared Use  
cycle paths

A segregated cycle path is one 
where cyclists are separated from 
pedestrians and other road users 
by a physical feature such as a kerb. 
A ‘shared use’ path is where both 
pedestrians and cyclists mix. 

Wayfinding improvements

Wayfinding is used to guide both 
residents and visitors in Portsmouth, 
helping them navigate the city by 
foot and by bicycle successfully, from 
origin to destination.

Bus by-pass / Floating bus stop 

The routing of a cycle lane behind 
a bus stop in order to maintain the 
separation of people cycling from 
motor traffic.P

age 33



26

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

Mandatory or advisory cycle lanes

These are lanes designated for use by 
cyclists, either marked by a solid white 
line or dashed white line. A solid white 
line indicates that is exclusively for the 
use of cyclists, while a dashed white 
line may be crossed if necessary. 

Wider pedestrian refuge islands

An area in the carriageway to aid 
the crossing of both cyclists and 
pedestrians. 

Footway buildouts with 
pedestrian priority across junctions

Amendments to the geometry of side 
roads to provide shorter crossing 
distances, along with give way lines 
set-back to aid pedestrians crossing. 

P
age 34



27

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

The LCWIP will be used to inform, contribute and provide  
a basis for the following (see diagram):
For further information, please visit the Background Report.

Several elements identified in the LCWIP will be dependent 
upon available funding, with identified infrastructure being 
delivered by Portsmouth City Council through planning 
proposals, master plans and local transport plans where 
feasible. 

Where external funding opportunities are presented, the 
Council will submit relevant bids in order to supplement 
delivery of the Plan. We will continue to undertake before 
and after monitoring of our schemes and feed them into the 
developing Portsmouth transport data system.

As the LCWIP process is iterative, future versions and 
revisions will follow a similar process, with further auditing 
and feasibility studies in order to respond to opportunities as 
they arise.

As referenced in the LCWIP guidance, the plan will be 
reviewed every four to five years to reflect any progress 
made. Interim revisions may occur where there have been 
significant changes or more up to date data sources made 
available.

Development management Transport policy

Planning polic
y

Funding opportunities

Co
un

ci
l p

rio
rit

ie
s

LCWIP

7	 APPLICATION OF LCWIP AND INTEGRATION 
INTO AUTHORITY WORKSTREAMS 

P
age 35



28

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

APPENDIX A	 KEY WALKING 
ROUTE NETWORK WITH KEY 
DESTINATIONS

P
at

h:
 \\

uk
.w

sp
gr

ou
p.

co
m

\c
en

tra
l d

at
a\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
70

05
55

xx
\7

00
55

57
2 

- P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 L
C

W
IP

\0
3 

W
IP

\T
P

 T
ra

ns
po

rt 
P

la
nn

in
g\

G
IS

\7
00

55
57

2-
W

-0
02

-B
.m

xd

0 500 1,000 1,500
Metres

Job Title Portsmouth Local Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Plan

Drawing Title

Proposed Key Walking 
Route Network - 

With Key Destinations

70055572-W-002-B
Drawing Number

Scale at A3 1:30,000
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material 
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.

© Crown copyright

±

Date

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

© Crown copyright and database right 2019

Drawn Stage 1 check

Drawing Status

13/06/2019

JPWS

DRAFT

Stage 2 check

HS
Originated

JP

Key Walking Routes
Revision B
Tier 1 Core Walking Zone
Tier 2 Core Walking Zone

Employment (existing and
future)
Education (university and
college)
Leisure and attractions
Centres (city, town and
district)
Other major retail
Education (secondary
schools)
Transport interchanges

P
age 36



29

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

APPENDIX A	 CYCLING 
ROUTE PLANS

Pa
th

: \
\u

k.
w

sp
gr

ou
p.

co
m

\c
en

tra
l d

at
a\

P
ro

je
ct

s\
70

05
55

xx
\7

00
55

57
2 

- P
or

ts
m

ou
th

 L
C

W
IP

\0
3 

W
IP

\T
P 

Tr
an

sp
or

t P
la

nn
in

g\
G

IS
\7

00
55

57
2-

C
-0

10
-E

.m
xd

0 500 1,000
Metres

Job Title Portsmouth Local Cycling 
and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Drawing Title

Cycle Routes For Audit

70055572-C-010-F
Drawing Number

Scale at A3 1:30,000
This map is reproduced from Ordnance Survey material 
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the 
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office.

© Crown copyright

±

Date

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and
may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

© Crown copyright and database right 2019

Drawn Stage 1 check

Drawing Status

09/01/2020

JPWS

FINAL

Stage 2 check

FR
Originated

JP

District boundary
City centre area
Prioritised cycle corridors
Cycle routes taken forward for development
Other audited cycle routes

405

503

307

108

205

301

801

603
802

602b

602a

405

307

801

603

601 601

Note: All routes go via the
city centre apart from 603.

P
age 37



30

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

APPENDIX B	

Indicative Prioritisation of Key Walking Route Improvements – Shorter term

Key Walking Route Reference Key Walking Route Description

KWR 33 section 3 Arundel Street (Holbrook Road to Fratton Road)

KWR 27 section 1 Fratton Bridge and Fawcett Road (Selbourne Terrace to Manners Road)

KWR 53 sections 1-2 Kingston Road (Kingston Crescent to Lake Road)

KWR 22 sections 1-3 Lake Road (entire length)

KWR 68 section 1 London Road (Kingston Crescent to Angerstein Road / Gladys Avenue / Stubbington Avenue roundabout)

KWR 11 section 3 London Road (Hewett Road to Angerstein Road / Gladys Avenue / Stubbington Avenue roundabout)

P
age 38



31

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031Indicative Prioritisation of Key Walking Route Improvements – Medium term

Key Walking Route Reference Key Walking Route Description

KWR 33 sections 1-2 Arundel Street (Commercial Road to Holbrook Road)

KWR 80 section 1 Isambard Brunel Road (Commercial Road to Greetham Street)

KWR 80 section 3 Somers Road (Raglan Street to Sydenham Terrace)

KWR 80 section 4 Sydenham Terrace (Somers Road to Fratton Bridge)

KWR 37 section 1 King Henry I Street and walkway to Anglesea Road (Guildhall Square to Anglesea Road)

KWR 37 section 2 Park Road (Anglesea Road to St. George's Road)

KWR 79 section 3 Eldon Street and Norfolk Street (Sackville Street to King's Road)

KWR 11 section 2 London Road (Merrivale Road to Hewett Road)

KWR 27 section 2 Fawcett Road (Manners Road to Addison Road)

Indicative Prioritisation of Key Walking Route Improvements – Longer-term

Key Walking Route Reference Key Walking Route Description

KWR 80 section 2 Greetham Street and Raglan Street (Isambard Brunel Road to Somers Road)

KWR 79 section 1 Unnamed walkway from Guildhall Square to Winston Churchill Avenue

KWR 79 section 2 Middle Street (Winston Churchill Avenue to Sackville Street)

KWR 11 section 1 London Road (Northwood Road to Merrivale Road)

KWR 27 section 3 Lawrence Road (Addison Road to Albert Road)

KWR 77 section 1 Grove Road South (Elm Grove to Palmerston Road)

KWR 77 sections 1-2 Palmerston Road (entire length)

31

P
age 39



32

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

32

Indicative Prioritisation of Cycling Improvements – Shorter Term

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor Ref

Strategic Cycle Corridor Description Stage 1 
Prioritisation Rank

Route Description

307 Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via Cosham & City Centre 1 Section C: Nelson Avenue, North End Avenue & Penrose Close (Northern Parade to 
Twyford Avenue)

Section H: A288 Hampshire Terrace (King Richard I Road to St. Michael’s Road 
(southern end)

503 Fareham to Southsea Common via Lakeside North Harbour, 
North End, City Centre & Southsea Town Centre

=2 Section 1: Southampton Road (Portsdown Road to Watersedge bus stop)

802 Southsea Seafront to HM Naval Base via City Centre =2 Section 3: St. Andrew's Road, Cottage Grove and Green Road (Elm Grove to 
Brougham Street) 

801 Eastney to HM Naval Base =2 Sections A, B & 4: Frensham Road and Goldsmith Avenue (Devonshire Avenue to 
Fratton Bridge roundabout)

301 Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via Farlington, Hilsea 
Employment Area (South) & City Centre

5 Section 1: Crookhorn Lane (authority boundary to Portsdown Hill Road)

405 DSTL / North Portchester to Southsea Common via Lakeside 
North Harbour, North End, City Centre & Southsea Town 
Centre

=6 Section 2: Allaway Avenue shared-use path (Castle View Academy to Bourne Road)

Section 4: Marsden Road (Allaway Avenue to Paulsgrove Adventure Playground)

602a Gosport to Portsmouth College via City Centre (southern 
route)

=6 Sections B to D: Eastern Road shared-use path (Tangier Road to Langstone Road 
junction)

601b Gosport to St. James' Hospital / Langstone Campus 
development sites

=9 Section B: Ironbridge Lane, Maurice Road and Dunbar Road (Locksway Road to 
Milton Road)

Section 4: Goldsmith Avenue (Priory Crescent to Frensham Road)

P
age 40



33

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

33

Indicative Prioritisation of Cycling Improvements – Medium-Term

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor Ref

Strategic Cycle Corridor 
Description

Stage 1 
Prioritisation Rank

Route Description

307 Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via 
Cosham & City Centre

1 Sections A & B: A3 Northern Parade (London Road to Nelson Avenue)

Sections E & F: Rudmore Roundabout and A3 Mile End Road (Twyford Avenue / Stamshaw Road to Church 
Street Roundabout)

503 Fareham to Southsea Common via 
Lakeside North Harbour, North End, 
City Centre & Southsea Town Centre

=2 Section 2: A27 Southampton Road (Watersedge bus stop to Compass Road)

Sections 3: A27 Western Road (Southampton Road junction underpass to Portsbridge Roundabout underpass)

Section 12: Commercial Road (south) and Isambard Brunel Road (Station Street roundabout to Winston 
Churchill Avenue)

Section G: Winston Churchill Avenue shared-use footway / cycleway, St. James’ Road and Waterloo Street 
(Isambard Brunel Road to Grosvenor Street)

Section 16: Avenue de Caen (Clarence Parade to Clarence Esplanade)

802 Southsea Seafront to HM Naval 
Base via City Centre

=2 Section 1: Festing Road (Eastern Parade to Albert Road)

Section 6: Unicorn Road (Bishop Crispian Way to HM Naval Base)

801 Eastney to HM Naval Base via City 
Centre

=2 Section 6: Canal Walk, Bridport Street and East Surrey Street (Sydenham Terrace to Station Street)

301 Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via 
Farlington, Hilsea Employment Area 
(South) & City Centre

5 Section 2: Gillman Road (Portsdown Hill Road to Eveleigh Road)

Sections B & 6: Eastern Road (Havant Road to Farlington Interchange)

Sections 8 & 9: Anchorage Road, Robinson Way, Airport Service Road, Dundas Lane and former busway 
(Eastern Road to Moneyfield Avenue)

Section C: George Street, Glencoe Road / Daulston Road, Hampshire Street, Shakespeare Road and Manor 
Road (New Road to Fratton Road)

Section 13: Fratton Road and Lake Road (Manor Road to City Centre)

P
age 41



34

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

34

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor Ref

Strategic Cycle Corridor 
Description

Stage 1 
Prioritisation Rank

Route Description

405 DSTL / North Portchester to 
Southsea Common via Lakeside 
North Harbour, North End, City 
Centre & Southsea Town Centre

=6 Section 3: Allaway Avenue (Bourne Road to Marsden Road)

Section 5: Racecourse Lane (Paulsgrove Adventure Playground to Southampton Road

602 Gosport to Portsmouth College via 
City Centre

=6 Section 11: Bishop Crispian Way (Edinburgh Road to Queen Street)

Section 12: Queen Street (Bishop Crispian Way to The Hard)

602a Gosport to Portsmouth College via 
City Centre (southern route)

=6 Section A: Tangier Road (Portsmouth College entrance to Eastern Road)

Section E: St. Mary’s Road (Kingston Cemetery entrance to Clarke’s Road)

Section F: Clarkes Road and Clive Road (St. Mary’s Road to Fratton Road)

602b Gosport to Portsmouth College via 
City Centre (northern route)

=6 Section 1: Tangier Road (Portsmouth College entrance to Neville Road)

Section 3: Baffins Road (Southbound) / Milton Road (Northbound) (Hayling Avenue to Prison Roundabout)

603 Gosport to Southsea Seafront via 
University and Albert Road

=9 Section 2 & 3: St George’s Road and Museum Road (St. George’s Square to King’s Roundabout)

601b Gosport to St. James' Hospital / 
Langstone Campus development 
sites

=9 Section 3: Goldsmith Avenue (Milton Road to Priory Crescent)

P
age 42



35

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

35

Indicative Prioritisation of Cycling Improvements – Longer-Term

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor Ref

Strategic Cycle Corridor 
Description

Stage 1 
Prioritisation Rank

Route Description

307 Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via 
Cosham & City Centre

1 Sections 1-3: A3 London Road and Northern Road (Authority boundary to Cosham Health Centre)

Section 5: A3 Portsbridge Roundabout and London Road (Western Road underpass to Northern Parade 
junction) 

Section D: A3 Twyford Avenue (northbound) and Stamshaw Road (southbound) (Penrose Close to Rudmore 
Roundabout)

Section G: Guildhall Square & Guildhall Walk (Commercial Road to St. Michael’s gyratory)

Sections 14 & 15: A288 Hampshire Terrace, Landport Terrace, King’s Terrace, Jubilee Terrace, Bellevue 
Terrace & Pier Road (St. Michael’s Gyratory to Clarence Pier)

307a Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via 
Queen Alexandra Hospital, Cosham 
& City Centre

1 Section 1: B2177 Southwick Hill Road (Queen Alexandra Hospital Entrance to London Road)

503 Fareham to Southsea Common via 
Lakeside North Harbour, North End, 
City Centre & Southsea Town Centre

=2 Section 3: A27 Southampton Road (Compass Road to Western Road underpass)

Sections 14 & 15: Grosvenor Street, Green Road, Cottage Grove, Grove Road North & Grove Road South, Kent 
Road, Portland Road, Osborne Road and Palmerston Road (Grosvenor Street to Clarence Parade)

802 Southsea Seafront to HM Naval 
Base via City Centre

=2 Section 2: Albert Road, Victoria Road South and Elm Grove (Festing Road to St. Andrew’s Road)

801 Eastney to HM Naval Base =2 Section 1: Prince Albert Road, Landguard Road, Maxwell Road, Aston Road, Haslemere Road, Pretoria Road 
and St. Augustine Road (Highland Road to Devonshire Avenue)

Section 5: Fratton Bridge and Sydenham Terrace (Goldsmith Avenue to Canal Walk)

P
age 43



36

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

36

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor Ref

Strategic Cycle Corridor 
Description

Stage 1 
Prioritisation Rank

Route Description

301 Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via 
Farlington, Hilsea Employment Area 
(South) & City Centre

5 Section 3: Gillman Road (Eveleigh Road to Havant Road)

Section A: Havant Road (Gillman Road to Eastern Road)

Section 7: Eastern Road (Farlington Interchange to Anchorage Road)

Section 11: Tangier Road, Milton Road, Copnor Bridge & New Road (Folkestone Road to George Street)

405 DSTL / North Portchester to 
Southsea Common via Lakeside 
North Harbour, North End, City 
Centre & Southsea Town Centre

=6 Section 1: Westfield Road path, Jubilee Avenue & Allaway Avenue (Portsdown Road to Castle View Academy

108 Havant to Clarence Pier via 
Farlington, Hilsea Employment Area 
(South) & City Centre

=6 Sections 1 & 2: National Cycle Network route 22 (Farlington Marshes route from authority boundary to 
Farlington Interchange)

602 Gosport to Portsmouth College via 
City Centre

=6 Section 6: St. Mary’s Road (Prison Roundabout to Kingston Cemetery entrance)

Section G: Stamford Street, Clifton Street and Arundel Street (Fratton Road to 20mph limit west of Holbrook 
Road)

Section 10: Arundel Street (20mph limit west of Holbrook Road to Buckingham Street)

602a Gosport to Portsmouth College via 
City Centre (southern route)

=6 Section 5: Langstone Road (Eastern Road to Prison Roundabout)

602b Gosport to Portsmouth College via 
City Centre (northern route)

=6 Section 3: Neville Road and Hayling Avenue (Tangier Road to Baffins Road)

205 Leigh Park to Clarence Pier via 
Farlington, Hilsea Employment Area 
(South) & City Centre

=9 Section 1: Havant Road (authority boundary to Lower Farlington Road)

603 Gosport to Southsea Seafront via 
University and Albert Road

=9 Section 1: The Hard (Hard Interchange to St. George’s Square)

Section 4: King’s Road and Elm Grove (King’s Roundabout to St. Andrew’s Road)

P
age 44



37

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

APPENDIX C	 BACKGROUND REPORT

See attached document for the Background Report: 
Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure Plan

P
age 45



38

LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2021 – 2031

REFERENCES

1	 www.gov.uk/government/publications/
cycling-and-walking-investment-strategy

2	 Appendix A

3	 Appendix B

4	 Appendix C

5	 Appendix C

6	 https://assets.publishing.service.
gov.uk/government/uploads/system/
uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/
Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_
population_health_benefits.pdf

7	 http://content.tfl.gov.uk/walking-cycling-
economic-benefits-summary-pack.pdf

8	 Appendix C

9	 www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-
external/trv-actitvetravelmap-2014.pdf

10	 www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/parking-
travel-and-roads/travel/public-rights-of-
way

11	 Appendix C

12	 https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.
uk/documents/s26332/Local%20
Transport%20Plan%204%20
Development%20report.pdf

13	 www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/
QS701EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_
urban&cols=cell 

14	 www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-
sets/walking-and-cycling-statistics-cw

15	 www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/
QS702EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_
urban&cols=cell

16	 https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/
census/2011/QS702EW/
view/1946157284?rows=rural_
urban&cols=cell 

17	 In the context of LCWIP walking includes 
people using wheelchairs or mobility 
scooters and people with pushchairs.

18	 Appendix C

19	 In the context of LCWIP cycling includes 
all types of cycle typically in use, including 
adapted cycles, tricycles and cycles with 
trailers.

20	 www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-
sets/walking-and-cycling-statistics-cw

21	 www.pct.bike/m/?r=hampshire

22	 Appendix C

P
age 46

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-investment-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-investment-strategy
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/walking-cycling-economic-benefits-summary-pack.pdf
http://content.tfl.gov.uk/walking-cycling-economic-benefits-summary-pack.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/trv-actitvetravelmap-2014.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/trv-actitvetravelmap-2014.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/travel/public-rights-of-way/
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/travel/public-rights-of-way/
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/travel/public-rights-of-way/
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26332/Local%20Transport%20Plan%204%20Development%20report.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26332/Local%20Transport%20Plan%204%20Development%20report.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26332/Local%20Transport%20Plan%204%20Development%20report.pdf
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s26332/Local%20Transport%20Plan%204%20Development%20report.pdf
http://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS701EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
http://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS701EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
http://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS701EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/walking-and-cycling-statistics-cw
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/walking-and-cycling-statistics-cw
http://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS702EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
http://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS702EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
http://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS702EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS702EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS702EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS702EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/QS702EW/view/1946157284?rows=rural_urban&cols=cell
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/walking-and-cycling-statistics-cw
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/walking-and-cycling-statistics-cw
https://www.pct.bike/m/?r=hampshire


LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING 
INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 
2020

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Produced by: design@portsmouthcc.gov.uk • Published: January 2022 • Ref: 74.465

You can get this information in large 
print, Braille, audio or in another 
language by calling 023 9283 4672ä à

å ã

P
age 47

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/
mailto:design%40portsmouthcc.gov.uk?subject=Local%20Cycling%20and%20Walking%20Infratructure%20Plan%202020


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

70055572 
January 2022 Public 

 

Portsmouth City Council 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING 

INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 

Background Report 

 

 

Page 49



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Portsmouth City Council 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING 

INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN 

Background Report 

 
 

Public 

 

Type of document (version) Public 

 

Project no. 70055572 

Our Ref. No. 70055572 

 

Date: January 2022 

WSP 

Kings Orchard 

1 Queen Street 

Bristol 

BS2 0HQ 

Phone: +44 117 930 6200 

  

WSP.com 

 

Page 50



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council  

Quality control 

Issue/revision First issue Revision 1 Revision 2 Revision 3 

Remarks Draft for officer 
comment 

Revised 
following officer 
comments 

Further 
revisions 
following officer 
comments 

Minor text 
corrections in 
Ch8 

Date September 2019 November 2019 November 2019 March 2020 

Prepared by DL & JP DL & JP JP JP 

Signature     

Checked by JP RE RE DL 

Signature     

Authorised by SF RE RE RE 

Signature     

Project number Draft for officer 
comment 

Revised 
following officer 
comments 

Further 
revisions 
following officer 
comments 

Minor text 
corrections in 
Ch8 

Report number September 2019 November 2019 November 2019 March 2020 

File reference DL & JP DL & JP JP JP 

 

Issue / revision Revision 4 Revision 5 

Remarks 
Minor 
amendments 

Amendments to align with government accessibility 
and guidance only 

Date May 2020 January 2022 

Prepared by JP JP 

Signature   

Checked by RE CS 

Signature   

Authorised by RE TG 

Signature   

Project number:  70055572  

Report number: 1 

File reference: \\uk.wspgroup.com\central data\Projects\700555xx\70055572 - Portsmouth 

LCWIP\03 WIP\TP Transport Planning\05 Reports 

Page 51



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council  

Contents 

Glossary 1 

1 Introduction 2 

1.1 Background 2 

1.2 LCWIP Scope 3 

1.3 LCWIP Governance 3 

2 Existing Context 4 

2.1 Data and evidence collected for LCWIP 4 

2.2 Plans, Policies and Strategies 4 

2.3 Significant Current and Future Journey Origins and Destinations 11 

2.4 Existing Cycling and Walking Network 17 

2.5 Existing Cycling and Walking Travel Patterns 19 

3 Network Planning for Cycling (Desire Lines) 23 

3.1 Methodology 23 

3.2 Desire Lines 27 

4 Network Planning for Walking 31 

4.1 Core Walking Zones and Key Walking Routes 31 

5 Prioritising Routes for Development 36 

5.1 Introduction 36 

5.2 Prioritisation Results – Cycling Desire Line Corridors 43 

5.3 Prioritisation Results – Key Walking Routes 45 

6 Network Planning for Cycling (Route Selection) 47 

6.1 Introduction 47 

6.2 Selecting Routes for Audit 47 

Page 52



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council  

7 Auditing Routes, Identifying Improvements and Estimating Costs

 56 

7.1 Introduction 56 

7.2 Walking Route Audits 56 

7.3 Cycling Route Audits 59 

8 Funding, Prioritisation and Integration into Authority 

Workstreams 64 

8.1 Cost Estimation 64 

8.2 Prioritising Improvements 64 

8.3 Funding and Appraisal 73 

8.4 Application of LCWIP and Integration into Authority Workstreams 74 

 

 

 

Page 53



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 1 of 75 

Glossary 

AQMA Air Quality Management Areas. Declared by local authorities for locations which 

are recorded to have levels of nitrogen dioxide which exceed the limits outlined 

in the National Air Quality Strategy 

DfT  Department for Transport. The UK ministerial department which inter alia 

provides policy and guidance to English local authorities for local transport, 

including on cycling and walking. Published the LCWIP Technical Guidance.  

DSTL  Defence Science and Technology Laboratory, a major employment destination 

on Portsdown Hill 

LCWIP Local Cycling & Walking Infrastructure Plan, a new, strategic, long-term 

approach to identify the improvements to cycling and walking networks which 

are required in each local area. 

MSOA Middle Layer Super Output Area. MSOAs were chosen to represent journey 

origins from existing residential areas in the LCWIP methodology. These are 

statistical areas created by the Office for National Statistics (ONS) which had 

populations of between 5,000 and 15,000 at the time of the 2011 census. The 

ONS choose output area boundaries to ensure each one has a similar 

population and are as socially homogenous as possible based on tenure of 

household and dwelling type. 25 MSOAs cover Portsmouth.  

ONS  Office for National Statistics, the body charged with the collection and publication 

of statistics related to the economy, population and society of the UK. 

PCT  Propensity to Cycle Tool. A website analysis tool which forecasts the potential 

future growth of cycle trips under different scenarios for travel to work and travel 

to school. 

RST  Route Selection Tool. An Excel spreadsheet which assesses and compares the 

suitability of different routes for inclusion in a cycle network.  

SPD Supplementary Planning Document. Planning policy which adds further detail to 

the policies in the Local Plan. 

WRAT  Walking Route Audit Tool. An Excel spreadsheet for auditing the existing 

condition of walking routes. 

Page 54



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 2 of 75 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Background 

1.1.1. The Cycling & Walking Investment Strategy sets out government’s ambition to make cycling 

and walking the natural choice for shorter journeys, or as part of longer journeys, and 

increase the number of trips made by these modes. The government considers that Local 

Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) are a vital part of this strategy. LCWIPs 

are a new, strategic, long-term approach to identify the improvements to cycling and walking 

networks which are required in each local area. LCWIPs require an understanding of existing 

and future travel patterns, plus evidence on the barriers preventing people currently cycling 

and walking, and factors which would enable more people to make more cycling and walking 

journeys. 

1.1.2. This report sets out the methodology used, and describes the development of the first 

iteration of the Portsmouth LCWIP.  

1.1.3. Throughout the preparation of the Portsmouth LCWIP reference was made the Department 

for Transport (DfT) document LCWIPs Technical Guidance for Local Authorities. The 

guidance identifies that there are three key outputs from the LCWIP process:  

 Cycling and walking network plans which identify preferred routes and core zones for 

further development;  

 A prioritised schedule of infrastructure improvements for future investment; and 

 A report setting out the underlying analysis and the narrative which supports the rationale 

for the identified network and prioritised improvements (this Background Report).  

1.1.4. The Background Report does not seek to provide a comprehensive description of baseline 

conditions but instead describes the processes by which the cycling and walking network 

plans and schedule of infrastructure improvements were developed.  

1.1.5. The LCWIP aims to create a walking and cycling network which will enable people to get 

from A to B in the most direct way possible when making utility trips. These are everyday 

journeys made for a purpose, such as commuting to work, trips to the shops or the doctor, or 

to school, college and university, for example. Directness and journey times are usually 

important factors when considering making utility journeys. Cycling and walking trips which 

are made purely for leisure (i.e., no destination) are not within the scope of the LCWIP, 

although more of these journeys may be encouraged with the improvements identified.  

1.1.6. In the context of LCWIP, walking includes people using wheelchairs or mobility scooters and 

people with pushchairs. It also considers all types of cycle typically in use, including adapted 

cycles, tricycles and cycles with trailers.  The LCWIP guidance suggests that cycling has the 

potential to replace trips currently made by other modes, typically up to 10km in length, whilst 

walking has the potential to replace trips currently made by other modes up to 2km in length. 

A network of routes which caters for these shorter-distance journeys is also likely to cater for 

longer-distance or leisure cycle trips.   

Page 55

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cycling-and-walking-investment-strategy
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-cycling-and-walking-infrastructure-plans-technical-guidance-and-tools


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 3 of 75 

1.1.7. To inform the LCWIP three DfT-recommended tools were also used, as follows:  

 The Propensity to Cycle Tool (PCT): a website analysis tool which forecasts the potential 

future growth of cycle trips under different scenarios for travel to work and travel to school. 

The scenarios are based on journey to work data from the 2011 census and 2011 school 

census data respectively;  

 The Route Selection Tool (RST), which assesses and compares the suitability of different 

routes for inclusion in a cycle network; and 

 The Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT), for auditing existing condition of walking routes.  

1.2 LCWIP Scope 

1.2.1. The Plan covers the whole of the Portsmouth authority area. As the urban area straddles 

authority boundaries, and significant trip origins and destinations are located in neighbouring 

authorities, the Plan also considers movements to and from adjacent parts of Fareham, 

Gosport and Havant Boroughs and from the Isle of Wight. This is discussed further in 

Sections 2.3 and 2.5.  

1.2.2. In line with the guidance, the Portsmouth LCWIP will cover a 10-year period and be subject 

to periodic updates.  

1.3 LCWIP Governance  

1.3.1. The governance arrangements for the LCWIP are as follows: 

 Portsmouth City Council Senior Responsible Officer – Felicity Tidbury; 

 Portsmouth City Council Project Manager – Andrew Di Marco; 

 Consultant Project Manager – James Purkiss, WSP; 

 Portsmouth City Council technical expertise – Jo Hamment; 

 Portsmouth City Council planning policy inputs – Dan Young and Tom Bell;  

 Portsmouth City Council public health inputs - Dominique le Touze; and 

 Portsmouth City Council technical support – Dan Hughes. 

1.3.2. A working group, principally comprising those listed above, has met periodically to discuss 

progress and agree the approach at each stage of the LCWIP development. 

 

 

Page 56

https://www.pct.bike/


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 4 of 75 

2 Existing Context 

2.1 Data and evidence collected for LCWIP 

Introduction 

2.1.1. The DfT technical guidance states that LCWIPs should be evidence-led. This chapter briefly 

summarises the current context in respect of:  

 Plans, policies and strategies – these set out proposals for the future location of 

development and supporting infrastructure across the city;  

 Significant current and future journey origins and destinations – this forms the basis for 

considering cycling and walking networks which can cater for anticipated travel demands;  

 Existing cycling and walking network – summarising the infrastructure available and 

strategic physical barriers; and 

 Existing cycling and walking travel patterns – publicly available data on journeys currently 

undertaken.  

2.2 Plans, Policies and Strategies 

Planning Policy 

Adopted Planning Policy  

2.2.1. The Portsmouth Plan is the city’s principal adopted planning policy document and was 

adopted in 2012. The Plan contains policies for a series of strategic sites for major 

development:  

 Tipner – 1,250 new homes and 25,000sqm gross of B1 office development; 

 Port Solent – approximately 500 new homes and 3.4ha for marina related operations;  

 Horsea Island – approximately 500 new homes and new country park (the latter of which is 

now under construction);  

 City Centre – at least 50,000sqm net of retail development, a minimum of 10,500sqm of 

office floorspace and supporting town centre uses; and 

 North Harbour – around 69,000sqm of new B1 office floorspace. 

2.2.2. The Portsmouth Plan is supported by other adopted planning policy. This includes Area 

Action Plans covering Southsea Town Centre and Somerstown & North Southsea and a 

series of Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD), some of which cover specific parts of 

the city. The Seafront Masterplan SPD was adopted in 2010 and the City Centre Masterplan 

SPD was adopted in 2013. 

2.2.3. A revised version of the Seafront Masterplan SPD is in preparation, with two rounds of public 

consultation taking place in 2018 and 2019. Walking and cycling is one of seven identified 

themes covered by the document. One of the identified opportunities is the creation of a fully 

segregated cycle route from Hayling ferry to Clarence Pier.  

Page 57

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/development-and-planning/planning/the-portsmouth-plan-adopted-2012
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/development-and-planning/planning-policy/the-portsmouth-plan-adopted-2012/
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/development-and-planning/planning-policy/the-portsmouth-plan-adopted-2012/
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/development-and-planning/planning-policy/southsea-seafront-strategy/


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 5 of 75 

Replacement Portsmouth Plan  

2.2.4. The review of the Portsmouth Plan is in progress and an Issues and Options Consultation 

was issued in 2017. It identified potential strategic sites expected to accommodate more than 

250 dwellings or significant new employment floorspace, as follows:   

 Strategic Site 1: Tipner (Tipner West, Tipner East and Tipner Firing Range) for significant 

levels of new housing;  

 Strategic Site 2: Port Solent and Horsea Island, for employment floorspace;  

 Strategic Site 3: St. James’ Hospital and Langstone Campus for new housing; and 

 Strategic Site 4: Lakeside North Harbour for additional employment floorspace. 

2.2.5. The consultation also identified six opportunity areas with the potential to accommodate 

additional development over the medium to long term. The identified areas were the City 

Centre, Cosham, North End, Fratton, Somerstown and The Seafront.  

2.2.6. The 2017 consultation was followed in early 2019 with a consultation on the Future of Tipner & 

Horsea, which represents the largest area of undeveloped and underused land in the city. This 

noted that Tipner has the potential to deliver at least 1,200 to 2,200 dwellings, depending on 

development options. It also noted that Horsea Island may be more suitable for up to 

25,000sqm of employment land rather than housing. The consultation identified the need for: 

 new walking and cycling links throughout the surrounding area and to key destinations;  

 a new road and pedestrian bridge to link Tipner with Horsea Island, with measures to 

prevent rat running from Port Solent to the M275. 

2.2.7. The regeneration of the Tipner Peninsula will represent the most ambitious expansion of the 

city in over a century. The concept masterplan is due to be completed in December 2019, 

with the full masterplan finalised by summer 2020. Recent indications are that the site could 

accommodate 1 million square feet of marine employment land and approximately 4,000 

homes. The masterplan is intended to focus on creating a greener, walkable, new district for 

the city, with health and well-being at its core, supported by bespoke community, retail, and 

leisure facilities. Development is expected to commence in summer 2023.  

2.2.8. Comments were also invited on a summary of evidence and supporting evidence papers 

during February and March 2019. The Transport Modelling and Transport Assessment 

Evidence Review published in 2018 considered the potential impacts of new development on 

congestion and traffic flow. It identified junctions where mitigating works may be required to 

address traffic impacts generated by new development. It also concluded that a bridge 

connecting Tipner and Horsea Island is feasible.  

2.2.9. The Health and Wellbeing Background Paper identified transport and accessibility as one of 

the four health themes to be addressed in the new local plan. It noted that safe, attractive, 

convenient walking and cycling routes were a means by which the built environment can 

have a positive influence on creating healthy lifestyles and overcoming factors which would 

otherwise lead to obesity.   

Page 58

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/development-and-planning/planning-policy/new-local-plan-evidence/#draft
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/The-Future-of-Tipner-and-Horsea.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/The-Future-of-Tipner-and-Horsea.pdf
http://bidstats.uk/tenders/2019/W34/709361666
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/development-and-planning-transport-assessment-evidence-review.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/development-and-planning-transport-assessment-evidence-review.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/development-and-planning-health-background-paper.pdf


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 6 of 75 

2.2.10. The Green Infrastructure Background Paper suggested that the new local plan should include 

a specific green infrastructure policy. It also recommended that green corridors should be 

identified across the city which link existing greenspaces and encourage more sustainable 

forms of transport. The paper included a plan illustrating a draft green grid of these corridors. 

The identified corridors are shown in Figure 2.1. They include Southsea and Eastney 

Seafront, an east-west corridor connecting Bransbury Park to Victoria Park, Velder Avenue, 

Eastern Road, Hilsea Lines and Portsdown Hill.  

Figure 2.1 – Draft Green Grid 

 
Note: This map is likely to be updated as the Local Plan progresses, with additional corridors 

identified or amended in response to consultation feedback. 

Page 59

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/development-and-planning-green-infrastructure-background-paper.pdf


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 7 of 75 

Air Quality Local Plan 

2.2.11. The City Council has declared five Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) for locations 

which are recorded to have levels of nitrogen dioxide which exceed the limits outlined in the 

National Air Quality Strategy. In response to this, an Air Quality Local Plan is being prepared 

to address the identified areas of poor air quality within the city.  

2.2.12. The latest modelling data identifies two local road sections in central Portsmouth where 

modelled nitrogen dioxide concentrations are forecast to exceed the European Union limit in 

2022. These are A3 Alfred Road (Unicorn Road to Queen Street) and A3 Commercial Road 

(south of Church Street). However, the Air Quality Local Plan study area covers the whole of 

Portsea Island.  

2.2.13. The Air Quality Local Plan Outline Business Case was approved for submission to 

government at a special meeting of the Cabinet held on the 29th October 2019. It proposes 

the following actions be taken to reduce levels of nitrogen dioxide and comply with at least 

the legal limit value in the shortest possible time:   

 A Class B Clean Air Zone, targeting taxis and private hire vehicles, buses, coaches and 

heavy goods vehicles which do not meet certain vehicle emissions standards, covering a 

small area in the southwest of Portsea Island, along with:  

 Improvements to cycling infrastructure on LCWIP corridors assessed as being of most 

relevance to reducing vehicle emissions at exceedance locations and near exceedance 

locations;  

 Amendments to Alfred Road / Anglesea Road / Bishop Crispian Way / Queen Street traffic 

signals;  

 Parking measures; and  

 A package of financial support, marketing and engagement activity.  

Transport Policy 

Joint Strategy for South Hampshire 

2.2.14. Local Transport Plan strategy and policy covering the sub-region is set out in the Joint 

Strategy for South Hampshire. It was developed jointly by the three local transport authorities 

of Portsmouth City Council, Hampshire County Council, and Southampton City Council. The 

vision of the Solent Transport authorities is to create “A resilient, cost effective, fully-

integrated sub-regional transport network, enabling economic growth whilst protecting and 

enhancing health, quality of life and environment".  

  

Page 60

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/environmental-health/air-quality-and-pollution/air-quality-in-portsmouth/
https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=126&MID=4402#AI12234f
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s5162/
http://www.southampton.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s5162/


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 8 of 75 

2.2.15. This vision will be delivered through the set of fourteen transport policies. Policies relevant to 

LCWIP and their delivery options are set out below:  

 To deliver improvements in air quality; 

 To improve road safety across the sub-region; 

 To promote active travel modes and develop supporting infrastructure; 

 To develop and deliver high-quality public realm improvements; and 

 To safeguard and enable the future delivery of transport improvements within the Solent 

Transport area –  

• Investigating feasibility for provision of a bridge link from Tipner to Horsea Island (for all 

modes); and 

• Safeguarding land for new railway stations at certain locations, for example at Farlington. 

2.2.16. The City Council produces annual Implementation Plans which set out how capital resources 

allocated to transport will be spent. The 2019/20 Implementation Plan includes citywide 

expenditure on Early Release Low Level Cycle Signals, Milton Rd / Priory Crescent Junction / 

crossing improvements and junction improvements at Guildhall Walk / Alec Rose Lane.   

Portsmouth Rights of Way Improvement Plan 

2.2.17. This statutory plan contains 33 potential actions grouped around five issues. In terms of 

cycling and walking infrastructure, it identifies the following actions (references in brackets): 

 Improve directional signs for key routes and destinations (2.2);  

 Work with Network Rail to ensure that railway bridges are suitable for all user groups when 

they are renewed or replaced (3.1); 

 When road bridges are renewed or replaced, work to ensure that access for all user 

groups is considered (3.2);  

 Review road crossing facilities to determine where improved crossings can be created and 

make improvements (3.3)  

 Consult and respond to planning documents to investigate improved crossing facilities and 

bridges, such as that proposed to link Tipner and Port Solent, and promote access for all 

user groups (3.4);  

 Continue to develop Portsmouth’s 20mph speed limits to reduce traffic speeds and make 

road crossing safer (3.5);   

 Work with user groups and land managers to identify priority routes that can be improved 

and developed (4.1);  

 Work with users and user groups to identify barriers, problems and opportunities for 

improving existing routes (4.3);  

 Investigate whether gaps in the rights of way network can be improved to enhance 

continuity (4.5); and 

 Investigate how improved access to the seafront can be created for the benefit of all user 

groups through the seafront strategy (5.5). 

2.2.18. Version 2.0 of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan is currently in development, with the 

current document based on a plan period ending in 2017.  

Page 61

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=176&MId=4224&Ver=4


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 9 of 75 

Investment Plans 

Solent Transport Delivery Plan  

2.2.19. The Transport Delivery Plan was prepared by the four Solent Transport authorities (Hampshire 

County Council, Isle of Wight Council, Portsmouth City Council and Southampton City Council) 

and was published in 2013. It was developed from the Sub-Regional Transport Model 

Evidence Base. It identifies the prioritised transport schemes and interventions needed to 

support economic growth over the period to 2026. 

Solent Strategic Transport Investment Plan 

2.2.20. The Solent Strategic Transport Investment Plan was published by the Local Enterprise 

Partnership in 2016. It covers the period to 2040 and prioritises economically transformative 

strategic transport and longer-term investment projects.  

Transforming Cities Fund 

2.2.21. Portsmouth City Council and Hampshire County Council were one of twelve city regions 

shortlisted to bid for a share of the DfT’s £1.28 billion Transforming Cities Fund, for public 

transport improvements across South Hampshire. The authorities were successful in winning 

£4m of Tranche 1 funding. £2.6m of this will be invested in three junction improvements in 

Portsmouth and Real Time Information installation at bus stops across Portsmouth, Havant 

and Waterlooville. A further £1.4m will be used to support the extension of the existing 

Eclipse bus route in Gosport. A further, larger funding bid for Tranche 2 monies will be 

submitted in November 2019.   

Future High Streets Fund 

2.2.22. Portsmouth City Council submitted two expressions of interest to government for money from 

this £1bn national fund to regenerate the Commercial Road and Fratton retail areas. It was 

announced on the 26th August 2019 that both areas had been shortlisted. Shortlisted 

locations will each receive up to £150,000 to support the development of detailed project 

proposals that can be submitted for capital funding of up to £25m per location.  

Coastal Defence Schemes 

2.2.23. A series of coastal defence schemes are being progressed to implement the Portsea Island 

Coastal Strategy Study and defend the city from flooding. The planning application for the 

Southsea Coastal Defence Scheme was submitted in August 2019. The submitted scheme 

proposes to widen the majority of the pedestrian promenade, and relocate, amend or install 

new pedestrian crossings. In broad terms it also proposes a two-way cycle lane on Eastney 

Esplanade segregated from traffic by a kerbline, a contraflow cycle lane adjacent to the 

landward side of Clarence Esplanade and advisory cycle lanes on South Parade.  

2.2.24. Phase 4a North Portsea Island Coastal Defence Scheme, granted planning permission in 

2019, includes the construction of an earth embankment with footway on the crest adjacent 

to Kendall's Wharf on Eastern Road. Phase 4b will include the construction of a seawall 

along 2.4km of the Eastern Road and is also understood to include pedestrian routes, with a 

planning application submitted in September 2019. 

Page 62

https://solentlep.org.uk/media/1514/tip-final-web-version.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/travel/transforming-cities-fund/
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/1-billion-future-high-streets-fund-expanded-to-50-more-areas
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/1-billion-future-high-streets-fund-expanded-to-50-more-areas
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/1-billion-future-high-streets-fund-expanded-to-50-more-areas
http://publicaccess.portsmouth.gov.uk/online-applications/applicationDetails.do?keyVal=PQTVZJMOG1H00&activeTab=summary


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 10 of 75 

Other Documents 

2.2.25. The City Council has five corporate priorities as follows:  

 Make Portsmouth a city that works together, enabling communities to thrive and people to 

live healthy, safe and independent lives; 

 Encourage regeneration built around our city's thriving culture, making Portsmouth a great 

place to live, work and visit; 

 Make our city cleaner, safer and greener; 

 Make Portsmouth a great place to live, learn and play, so our children and young people 

are safe, healthy and positive about their futures; and 

 Make sure our council is a caring, competent and collaborative organisation that puts 

people at the heart of everything we do. 

2.2.26. At the Full Council meeting on the 19th March 2019 councillors adopted a notice of motion to 

declare a climate emergency in Portsmouth. On 24th July 2019 the Cabinet approved 

proposals to respond the declaration of the climate emergency.  

2.2.27. A City to Share was published by Portsmouth Cycling Campaign in 2014 and subsequently 

adopted by the City Council. It has the vision for Portsmouth to become the pre-eminent 

cycling city of the UK. It sets five objectives: a safer city; improved health outcomes; a 

stronger local economy; a better environment and a fairer, more liveable city - with a series of 

short and long-term actions against each objective.  

2.2.28. The strategy included the following infrastructure-related actions:  

 Develop protected superhighways for cyclists serving the major routes into the city in the 

West, Centre and East of the Island following or mirroring the A-roads that provide access for 

motorists, providing similar direct and uninterrupted connectivity that motorists enjoy. These 

will offer physical measures to prevent collisions between cyclists, motorists and pedestrians;  

 Develop the north-south cycle superhighways into network of direct, high capacity, joined-

up consistent cycle tracks. These will provide connectivity to residential streets giving safe 

cycle access to every property This will include Dutch-style fully segregated lanes and 

junctions; mandatory cycle lanes, semi-segregated from traffic; and a network of direct 

back street Quietway routes on our 20mph residential streets;  

 Implement a network of direct, high capacity, joined-up consistent cycle tracks designed to 

safely accommodate the young, the old and the less able-bodied as well as fit adult cyclists;  

 Develop visitor hubs for cyclists with provision for cycling storage and designated cycle 

paths suitable for all in green areas e.g. Baffins Pond, Hilsea Lines; 

 Develop quietways and greenways following the city's coastlines and connecting to visitor 

destinations. As flood defences are renewed cycle routes will be integrated along the coast 

of the island; and 

 Consult on Mini-Holland schemes in Town Centres (e.g. Southsea, North End, Cosham) to 

become hubs for visitors walking, cycling and arriving by bus.  

 

Page 63

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s22583/Draft%20Council%20Mins%20March%202019.pdf
https://acitytoshare.org/


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 11 of 75 

2.2.29. Stakeholders have also published documents outlining their vision for walking and cycling in 

the city, as follows:  

 London Road Cycle Inspiration Study (Cycling UK 2018); and 

 Streets for People (Portsmouth Friends of the Earth, 2019). 

2.3 Significant Current and Future Journey Origins and Destinations 

2.3.1. The LCWIP technical guidance notes that:  

 identifying demand for a planned cycle network should start by mapping the main origin 

and destination points; and 

 the first recommended step for mapping a future walking network involves identifying and 

clustering origin and destination points.   

Origins  

2.3.2. The LCWIP technical guidance notes that trips usually originate from the main residential 

areas. Census output areas were chosen to represent journey origins from existing 

residential areas. Output areas are an existing category of statistical geography created by 

the Office for National Statistics (ONS). The ONS choose output area boundaries to ensure 

each one has a similar population and are as socially homogenous as possible based on 

tenure of household and dwelling type. 

2.3.3. Middle-layer super output areas (MSOAs) were chosen for the LCWIP methodology. These 

are statistical areas which had populations of between 5,000 and 15,000 at the time of the 

2011 census. 25 MSOAs cover Portsmouth (see Figure 2.2). For each output area the ONS 

creates a single node point known as population-weighted centroids. These centroids form 

part of an existing ONS dataset, and are nodes located to reflect where the majority of people 

live within the output area. The centroids were used to represent the start location of journeys 

from all homes within an output area. 

2.3.4. Additional node points were created to represent journeys from homes proposed to be 

developed in growth areas identified in the adopted and emerging local plan, as follows:  

 Horsea Island; 

 Port Solent; 

 Tipner; 

 Langstone Campus / St. James’ Hospital sites; and  

 City Centre.  

2.3.5. The location of these is also identified on Figure 2.2. 

2.3.6. As highlighted in Section 1.2, there was also a need to consider cross-boundary journeys 

from neighbouring authorities, particularly in respect of cycling journeys. There are significant 

numbers of movements made from origins in Fareham, Gosport and Havant authority areas 

and from the Isle of Wight to destinations in Portsmouth.  

  

Page 64

https://issuu.com/witteveenbos/docs/portsmouth_cycling_uk
https://portsmouthfoe.files.wordpress.com/2019/03/report-streets-for-people.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/methodology/geography/ukgeographies/censusgeography


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 12 of 75 

2.3.7. Travel into the city from surrounding authorities were represented in the LCWIP methodology 

by seven additional origin nodes for different directions of travel, as follows:  

 From the Isle of Wight via Wightlink; 

 From Gosport via the Gosport Ferry; 

 From Fareham and Portchester via road connections north of Portsmouth Harbour;  

 From Waterlooville and other settlements along the A3 corridor;  

 From Leigh Park and northern Havant;  

 From south Havant; and 

 From Hayling Island via the Hayling Ferry.  

2.3.8. These seven nodes were used to represent all journeys from a surrounding hinterland up to 

5km from the City Council boundary. 5km was considered to be a suitable threshold to 

represent short distance utility journeys which could be made by new or returning cyclists.  

2.3.9. Table 2.1 sets out the hinterland output areas whose cross-boundary journeys into 

Portsmouth were represented by each node.  

Table 2.1 – Journey origin nodes and their constituent output areas 

Origin Node Constituent output areas 

Gosport Gosport 001 to 010 

Fareham and Portchester Fareham 008, 010 and 012 

Waterlooville  Havant 003, 004, 005, 007 and 011 

Leigh Park Havant 006, 008, 009, 010 and 018  

South Havant Havant 014 

Hayling Island Havant 015, 016 and 017 

Isle of Wight Isle of Wight 001, 003, 004, 005, 006, 007, 008, 010 and 014 

Page 65



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 13 of 75 

Figure 2.2 - Origins used in the LCWIP methodology 

 

Page 66



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 14 of 75 

Destinations 

2.3.10. A number of destination categories were chosen to represent a range of journeys made by 

different people in the city. The DfT guidance identifies that when planning cycle networks for 

larger geographical areas, it may be appropriate to include only the most significant trip 

generators. Destinations were therefore chosen on the basis of their likely significant trip 

generation potential. The schedule of chosen destinations used for the network planning is 

shown in Table 2.2 overleaf and their locations identified on the plan in Figure 2.3. More local 

destinations such as primary schools, GP surgeries and shopping parades tend to be located 

in each neighbourhood and are represented by the residential origins. Potential 

neighbourhood-level measures to enable more walking and cycling to local destinations are 

summarised in paragraph 7.3.17.  

2.3.11. In similarity to journey origins, consideration was also given to cross-boundary journeys made 

by Portsmouth residents to strategic destinations in neighbouring authorities, particularly in 

respect of cycling journeys. These were represented in the LCWIP methodology by seven 

additional destination nodes for different directions of travel, as follows:  

 To the Isle of Wight via the ferries and hovercraft;  

 To Gosport via the Gosport Ferry; 

 To Fareham and Portchester via road connections north of Portsmouth Harbour;  

 To the Defence Science and Technology Laboratory (DSTL) and associated employment 

on Portsdown Hill in the Winchester authority area; 

 To Waterlooville and other settlements along the A3 corridor;  

 To Leigh Park and northern Havant;  

 To south Havant and Langstone Technology Park. 

 

 

 

Page 67



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 15 of 75 

Table 2.2 – Schedule of Destinations with significant trip potential within Portsmouth authority area used in LCWIP development 

Key Employment Areas 
Centres and Other 
Major Retail 

Leisure attractions 
Transport 
interchanges 

Major education facilities 

Airport Estate  

Broad Oak Works 

City Centre including Civic 
Offices and Guildhall Square  

Farlington Industrial Estate 

Hamilton Road / Castle Trading 
Estate, Trafalgar Wharf 
Portchester 

HM Naval Base 

Southampton Road 

Hilsea & Limberline Industrial 
Estates 

Lakeside North Harbour / HMRC 

QinetiQ Technology Park 

Queen Alexandra Hospital 

Rodney Road / St Mary’s 
Hospital area 

Southampton Road / 
Harbourgate 

Walton Road 

Whale Island Naval Base 

City Centre 
(Commercial Road) 

Gunwharf Quays 

Southsea Town Centre 
(Palmerston Road) 

District Centres – Albert 
Road & Elm Grove, 
Cosham, Fratton, North 
End  

Fratton Way retail area 

Ocean Retail Park 

Sainsbury’s Farlington 

Tesco Cosham 

 

Clarence Pier 

Eastney Seafront 

Fratton Park 
(Portsmouth Football 
Club) 

Guildhall 

Horsea Island Country 
Park (proposed) 

Mountbatten Centre 

Portsmouth Historic 
Dockyard 

Old Portsmouth 

South Parade Pier 

Southsea Common 

Southsea Seafront / 
Southsea Castle / 
Blue Reef / D Day 
Museum 

 

Cosham Rail Station 

Fratton Rail Station 

Hilsea Rail Station 

Portsmouth Harbour Rail 
Station / Gosport Ferry / 
Isle of Wight Ferry 

Portsmouth & Southsea 
Rail Station  

The Hard Interchange 

Hayling Ferry 

Clarence Pier 
(Hoverport)  

Portsmouth University (city centre 
campus) 

Portsmouth College 

Highbury College (two campuses) 

Secondary Schools:  

- Castle View Academy 

- Ark Charter Academy 

 - Admiral Lord Nelson School 

- Mayfield School 

- Miltoncross Academy 

- Priory School  

- The Portsmouth Academy 

- Portsmouth High School 

- Portsmouth Grammar School 

- St. Edmund's Catholic School 

- St. John's College 

- Springfield School 

- Trafalgar/UTC Portsmouth 

P
age 68



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 16 of 75 

Figure 2.3 – Destinations used in the LCWIP methodology 

 

Page 69



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 17 of 75 

2.4 Existing Cycling and Walking Network 

Existing network 

2.4.1. In broad terms the network of routes available for cycling is comprised of: 

 the carriageways of the city’s roads and streets, either mixed together with other vehicles 

or with cycle lanes delineated by road markings;  

 routes parallel to and physically protected from motor traffic, such as by kerbs, and 

sometimes shared with pedestrians; and 

 traffic-free routes, such as across open spaces, and again, sometimes shared with 

pedestrians. 

2.4.2. A range of factors determines the suitability of a route for cycling and the current suitability of 

routes varies by location. Chapter 7 describes how the suitability of the LCWIP prioritised 

cycle routes was assessed against criteria.   

2.4.3. The network of routes available for walking comprises footways adjacent to carriageways, 

plus traffic-free routes, such as routes through parks, pedestrianised streets and links within 

residential estates. It includes the 8km of public rights of way which exist within the authority. 

In some locations space is shared with cyclists. The quality and suitability of the walking 

network varies by location; Chapter 7 describes how the suitability of walking routes was 

assessed as part of the LCWIP.  

2.4.4. The network available for cycling and walking is illustrated on the City Council’s Active Travel 

Map. Public rights of way plans are also published online.  

Physical barriers to cycling and walking movement 

2.4.5. A high-level mapping exercise was undertaken in consultation with City Council officers to 

identify the strategic physical barriers to cycling and walking movements across the city and 

key missing links. These barriers are shown in Figure 2.4 and include railways, motorways 

and dual carriageways. The plan also identifies existing locations where the barriers may be 

crossed, differentiating between those crossing points which are step-free and those which 

are not. It identifies the ‘missing link’ between Horsea Island and Tipner, which is the subject 

of a bridge proposal (see paragraphs 2.2.6 and 2.2.15).   

Page 70

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/trv-actitvetravelmap-2014.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/trv-actitvetravelmap-2014.pdf
https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/services/parking-roads-and-travel/travel/public-rights-of-way/


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 18 of 75 

Figure 2.4 – Strategic Barriers to Walking and Cycling Movement  

 

Page 71



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 19 of 75 

2.5 Existing Cycling and Walking Travel Patterns 

2.5.1. The main publicly available datasets on cycling and walking travel patterns are described 

below.  

Census 2011 data 

2.5.2. The census collects data on mode of travel to work, plus home location and employment 

destination. The ONS aggregated this data and it is reported for journeys between each 

MSOA. Whilst the data is now several years old it provides a comprehensive dataset.  

2.5.3. The PCT website displays the cycle to work flow data interactively. The highest recorded 

cycling to work flows in Portsmouth from this dataset are set out in Table 2.3. It indicates that 

in 2011 the highest reported cycle commuting flows were radial journeys to and from 

neighbourhoods on Portsea Island to the city centre and HM Naval Base.  

2.5.4. In terms of cross-boundary flows, the census also recorded 1,096 cycle to work trips into 

Portsmouth from Gosport Borough, 329 from Havant Borough, 300 from Fareham District 

and 58 from the Isle of Wight. As the census required respondents to name their main mode 

of travel, this may under-report levels of cycling to work which are part of a longer journey, 

such as by ferry.  

Table 2.3 – Census 2011 Cycling to work flows of greater than 100 in Portsmouth 

Destination MSOA (key 
employment in MSOA in 
brackets) 

Origin MSOA (main residential 
areas in brackets) 

Number of 
recorded 
journeys 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, 
Portsea and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 012 (Copnor / Buckland 
(Powerscourt Road area)) 

105 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, 
Portsea and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 014 (Baffins) 107 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, 
Portsea and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 015 (Between Fratton 
Road and railway line) 

110 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, 
Portsea and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre and 
Portsea) 

126 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, 
Portsea and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 017 (Milton) 118 

Source: Census 2011 Table WU03EW  

  

Page 72

https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/wu03ew
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/wu03ew
http://pct.bike/m/?r=hampshire
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/wu03ew


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 20 of 75 

2.5.5. The Datashine Commute website displays MSOA level travel to work data interactively for each 

mode. The highest recorded walking to work flows in Portsmouth from this dataset are set out in 

Table 2.4. This indicates that the highest recorded levels of walking were to the city centre and 

HM Naval Base areas, with other important flows to Gunwharf Quays and key employment in 

Cosham.  

Table 2.4 – Census 2011 Walking to work flows of greater than 250 in Portsmouth 

Destination MSOA (key 
employment in MSOA in brackets) 

Origin MSOA (main 
residential areas in brackets) 

Number of 
recorded 
journeys 

Portsmouth 002 (Queen Alexandra 
Hospital, Cosham district centre and 
Southampton Road employment 
areas) 

Portsmouth 002 (East 
Paulsgrove) 

289 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, Portsea 
and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 015 (Between 
Fratton Road and railway line) 

426 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, Portsea 
and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre 
and Portsea) 

943 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, Portsea 
and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 018 (Somers Town) 374 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, Portsea 
and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 019 (between 
Goldsmith Avenue and 
Highland Road)  

284 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, Portsea 
and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 020 (Southsea 
north of Albert Road) 

287 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, Portsea 
and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 022 (Southsea 
south of Elm Grove) 

269 

Portsmouth 016 (City Centre, Portsea 
and HM Naval Base) 

Portsmouth 024 (Gunwharf 
Quays and Old Portsmouth) 

254 

Portsmouth 024 (Gunwharf Quays 
and Old Portsmouth) 

Portsmouth 024 (Gunwharf 
Quays and Old Portsmouth) 

251 

Source: Census 2011 Table WU03EW   

Schools Census 2011 

2.5.6. Until 2011 the statutory schools census collected information on pupils’ usual main mode of 

travel to school. ‘Usual’ mode of travel was defined as that used most frequently by the pupil 

throughout the year, and ‘main’ mode defined as that used for the longest distance. The 

Department for Education collated this data to identify origin-destination flows at Lower Level 

Super Output Area scale. These are smaller areas of statistical geography which had 

populations of between 1,000 and 3,000 at the time of the 2011 census. The PCT was further 

developed during 2019 to display this travel school data; however the network planning for 

the Portsmouth LCWIP was already completed by this stage.  

Page 73

https://commute.datashine.org.uk/
https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/census/2011/wu03ew


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 21 of 75 

 

2.5.7. The most significant cycling flows to schools (greater than 50 pupils) are summarised below:  

 Admiral Lord Nelson School: 121 pupils usually cycling to school, with the greatest share 

originating from residential areas west of the railway, via Burrfields Road;  

 City of Portsmouth Boys’ School (now Trafalgar School), Hilsea: 81 pupils usually cycling 

to school, mostly originating to the south, in neighbourhoods either side of London Road;  

 Springfield Secondary School, Drayton: 72 pupils usually cycling to school, mostly from the 

Drayton and Cosham areas.  

Commentary 

2.5.8. The data sources referred to above represent the most comprehensive publicly available 

information on cycling and walking flows. However, the data is now eight years old and does 

not cover journeys made for purposes other than travel to work and travel to school. 

Therefore, it excludes travel to shops, local facilities, to visit friends and family, trips made as 

part of work and so on.  

2.5.9. The National Travel Survey 2018 indicates that:  

 In respect of cycling, commuting and travel to school (including adults accompanying 

children) accounted for 35% and 6% of travel respectively. Leisure trips (visiting friends at 

home and elsewhere, entertainment, sport, holiday and day trip) were equally as important 

a trip purpose as popular as commuting; and 

 In respect of walking, commuting and travel to school (including adults accompanying 

children) accounted for 8% and 19% of travel respectively. The greatest proportion of trips 

were made for shopping (22%) and leisure (visiting friends at home and elsewhere, 

entertainment, sport, holiday and day trip).  

Other data sources 

2.5.10. Traffic counts are undertaken on selected roads across the city. They tend to be carried out 

either by the DfT as part of a national data collection exercise, by the City Council, usually to 

inform specific studies, or by planning applicants preparing planning applications.  

2.5.11. Annual average daily flow data for 2019 are reported below. This represents the numbers of 

cyclists (two-way flows) at selected count points in the city for the period from 1 January 2019 

up to and including 19 November 2019:  

 A2030 Eastern Road: 336; 

 A27 Southampton Road west of Port Way: 254; 

 A288 South Parade, Southsea: 254; 

 A3 London Road, north of Military Road: 144; 

 Eastern Road shared-use path (South of Sword Sands Path): 443; 

 Eastern Road shared-use path (south of waterbridge): 472; 

 Sydenham Terrace shared-use path: 887; and 

 Unicorn Road underpass: 198 

 

Page 74

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/821429/nts0409.ods


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 22 of 75 

2.5.12. Traffic counts tend not to survey numbers of pedestrians. Many are carried out on more 

major roads, which may be avoided by some cyclists and pedestrians. In addition, as there 

may be several route options available to cyclists between any given origin and destination, a 

single traffic count may not capture all cycle journeys.  

2.5.13. Some data on footfall (pedestrian counts) is collected for the retail centres of Commercial 

Road, Palmerston Road (Southsea) and High Street, Cosham. This is reported in the 

Portsmouth Retail & Town Centres local plan background paper published in 2019. Annual 

footfall figures for the financial year 2017/2018 were as follows:  

 Commercial Road (Primark): 10,128,304;  

 Palmerston Road (northern end): 4,783,530; and 

 Cosham High Street (Near Crown Bingo): 3,920,433.  

Data for the last three years indicates that footfall on Commercial Road and Palmerston 

Road has declined but in Cosham footfall showed a slight increase between 2016/2017 and 

2017/2018.  

 

Page 75

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/development-and-planning-retail-background-paper.pdf


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 23 of 75 

3 Network Planning for Cycling (Desire Lines) 

3.1 Methodology 

3.1.1. The DfT technical guidance states that identifying demand for a planned network should start 

by mapping the main origin and destination points across the geographical area to be 

covered by the LCWIP.  

Origins 

3.1.2. The cycle network planning used the origins shown on Figure 2.2.  

Destinations 

3.1.3. The cycle network planning used the destinations shown on Figure 2.3. To simplify the origin-

destination analysis, destinations located in close proximity to each other were clustered. The 

resulting clusters are shown on Figure 3.1. Each cluster had a single node to represent 

journeys to and from all the constituent destinations within the cluster. The destination 

clusters and their constituent destinations are listed broadly north to south in Table 3.1, Table 

3.2 and Table 3.3. These tables cover destination clusters on the mainland, Northern Portsea 

Island and Southern Portsea Island respectively.  

Table 3.1 – Destination clusters created as part of cycle network planning process - 

Mainland 

Reference Constituent destinations 

M1 QinetiQ Technology Park 

M2 Walton Road / Castle Trading Estate; Castle View Academy 

M3 Horsea Island Country Park 

M4 Lakeside North Harbour / HMRC 

M5 
Southampton Road / Harbourgate employment area; Tesco Extra Cosham; 
Highbury College (Northarbour Campus) 

M6 Queen Alexandra Hospital 

M7 Cosham District Centre; Cosham Rail Station 

M8 Highbury College (Highbury Campus, Tudor Avenue)  

M9 Springfield School 

M10 Walton Park / Railway Triangle employment areas 

M11 Farlington Industrial Estate; Sainsbury’s Farlington 

Page 76



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 24 of 75 

Table 3.2 - Destination clusters created as part of cycle network planning process – 

Northern Portsea Island 

Reference Constituent destinations 

NP1 Trafalgar School / UTC Portsmouth 

NP2 Hilsea Rail Station; Hilsea & Limberline Industrial Estates, Broad Oak Works 

NP3 Mountbatten Centre 

NP4 Mayfield School 

NP5 Airport Estate employment areas; Ocean Retail Park; Admiral Lord Nelson 
School 

NP6 Whale Island Naval Base 

NP7 Portsmouth International Port 

NP8 North End District Centre 

NP9 Portsmouth College (Tangier Road) 

Page 77



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 25 of 75 

Table 3.3 - Destination clusters created as part of cycle network planning process – 

Southern Portsea Island 

Reference Constituent destinations 

SP1 HM Naval Base 

SP2 City Centre (Commercial Road) 

SP3 Portsmouth Academy 

SP4 
Gunwharf Quays; The Hard Interchange / Gosport Ferry / Isle of Wight 
Ferry; Portsmouth Harbour Rail Station; Portsmouth Historic Dockyard 

SP5 Portsmouth Grammar School; Portsmouth University (City Centre Campus) 

SP6 
City Centre employment including Civic Offices and Guildhall Square; Ark 
Charter Academy; The Guildhall; Portsmouth & Southsea Rail Station; St. 
Edmund’s Catholic School 

SP7 Fratton District Centre; Fratton Rail Station; Priory School 

SP8 
Fratton Park (Portsmouth Football Club); Fratton Way retail area; 
Miltoncross Academy; Rodney Road / St. Mary’s Hospital employment areas 

SP9 Old Portsmouth 

SP10 Clarence Pier (leisure attraction and Hoverport) 

SP11 
Elm Grove District Centre; Portsmouth High School; St. John’s College; 
Southsea town centre (Palmerston Road) 

SP12 Albert Road District Centre 

SP13 
Southsea Common; Southsea Seafront / Southsea Castle / Blue Reef / D 
Day Museum 

SP14 South Parade Pier; Eastney Seafront 

SP15 Hayling Ferry 

 

 

Page 78



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 26 of 75 

Figure 3.1 – Destination Clusters used for Cycle Network Planning 

 

Page 79



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 27 of 75 

3.2 Desire Lines 

3.2.1. In order to identify a network of strategic cycling corridors covering the whole of the plan 

area, origins and destinations were connected with desire lines. Desire lines are crow-fly 

straight-line connections between origins and destinations and are not initially mapped to 

existing roads or cycle routes (see chapter 6 for this step in the process). Three different 

methods were used to identify these, as follows: 

 Method 1 – corridors with highest forecast future cycle commuting flows; 

 Method 2 – corridors with significant demand for short distance trips to a range of 

destinations; and 

 Method 3 – additional corridors which would provide network coverage across the plan 

area. 

3.2.2. These methods were used as a guide and not an absolute in considering the draft cycle 

network. 

Method 1 

3.2.3. The PCT’s Government Target (Equality) scenario was used to identify the highest forecast 

future cycle commuting flows within the plan area. The government target is to double the 

number of cycling stages made per year over the period between 2013 and 2025. The PCT 

models how the number of commuting cycling trips might increase across England, based on 

the length and hilliness of commuting journeys recorded in the 2011 census. The growth in 

cycling is evenly distributed by age group, by gender, and other socio-demographic factors. 

This method identified a series of radial routes from neighbourhoods on Portsea Island into 

the city centre as having the highest forecast future cycle flows. 

3.2.4. This method has a number of limitations. As it is based on 2011 census travel to work data, it 

does not consider trips for any other purposes, such as to education or shops. Additionally, 

trips to developments which have been completed since 2011, or future development, will not 

be included. Lastly, two-stage trips, such as to rail stations, will not be included.  

3.2.5. Further scenarios were released since the completion of the origin-destination analysis for 

Portsmouth. They include:  

 a Government Target (Near Market) scenario, which models the increase occurring as a 

function of trip distance and hilliness, plus a number of socio-demographic and 

geographical characteristics (including age, gender, ethnicity, car ownership, income 

deprivation); and  

 Scenarios based on pupils’ travel to schools, based on the 2011 National School Census. 

Page 80



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 28 of 75 

Method 2 

3.2.6. Origins and destinations were connected to each other with straight ‘desire lines’ to identify 

key trends in demand. A 5km threshold was applied to the desire lines to focus on short-

distance utility trips. Origins were connected to all the destinations listed in Table 2.2 within 

5km. The exceptions were district centres or other major retail areas (retail parks and 

supermarkets), where each origin was only connected to the nearest example of that 

destination category.  

Method 3 

3.2.7. Having identified a series of corridors using the two methods above, the final approach 

considered a coherent strategic network for the full plan area. This process ensured that 

connections to key destinations were provided from each residential neighbourhood.  

Proposed Strategic Cycling Network 

3.2.8. The proposed strategic cycling network is a composite of the three methods, based on 

forecast future commuter cycling flows, corridors with likely high demand for short-distance 

cycle trips to a range of destinations and ensuring balanced network coverage. The plan in 

Figure 3.2 shows how the strategic cycling network was composed of connections identified 

from each method. The contribution to the straight-line cycling network from each method is 

summarised below:  

 Method 1 (highest forecast future cycle commuting flows, shown as red lines) – this 

identified routes radiating from Portsmouth City Centre to North End, Hilsea, Baffins, 

Milton, Eastney, East and West Southsea and Old Portsmouth;  

 Method 2 (trends in demand for short-distance trips from analysis, shown as blue lines) – 

routes were added to the network plan connecting: 

• Destination cluster SP4 (Gunwharf Quays / The Hard Interchange area) to Eastney via 

destination cluster SP5 (Portsmouth Grammar School / Portsmouth University) and 

destination cluster SP12 (Albert Road District Centre);  

• Destination cluster SP10 (Clarence Pier) to Eastney via destination cluster SP11 

(Southsea town centre and nearby destinations);  

• Destination cluster SP7 (Fratton District Centre / Fratton Rail Station / Priory School) to 

destination cluster NP5 (Airport Estate employment areas; Ocean Retail Park; Admiral 

Lord Nelson School); 

• Destination cluster SP7 (Fratton District Centre / Fratton Rail Station / Priory School) to 

destination cluster NP8 (North End District Centre); 

• Destination cluster SP1 (HM Naval Base) to destination cluster NP5 (Airport Estate 

employment areas; Ocean Retail Park; Admiral Lord Nelson School);  

• Destination cluster SP1 (HM Naval Base) to destination cluster SP6 (City Centre area); 

and 

• Destination cluster M3 (Horsea Island Country Park) to destination cluster SP6 (City 

Centre area); and 

Page 81



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 29 of 75 

 Method 3 (balanced network coverage, shown in purple lines) – comprehensively 

connecting origins to nearby destinations. This for example included: 

• Links to Queen Alexandra Hospital from surrounding areas, including Paulsgrove, 

Widley, Drayton, Cosham and Portchester;  

• North-south links along the eastern edge of Portsea Island; and 

• A coastal route connecting the destinations along the southern edge of Portsea Island, 

from Old Portsmouth to Hayling Ferry via Southsea Seafront.   

Page 82



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 30 of 75 

Figure 3.2 – Proposed Strategic Cycling Network (Straight Line Corridors) 

 

Page 83



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 31 of 75 

4 Network Planning for Walking 

4.1 Core Walking Zones and Key Walking Routes 

4.1.1. The LCWIP guidance states that, in planning for walking, local authorities should identify:  

 Core Walking Zones; and 

 Key Walking Routes.  

4.1.2. The guidance gives authorities flexibility in the way they define these zones and routes. The 

process adopted for Portsmouth referred to the footway hierarchy concept outlined in the 

Roads Liaison Group document entitled Well-Managed Highway Infrastructure.  

4.1.3. Table 4.1 describes how the Code of Practice categories informed the choice of Core 

Walking Zones and Key Walking Routes. Figure 4.1 illustrates the chosen Key Walking 

Routes and Core Walking Zone boundaries. Table 4.2, Table 4.3 and Table 4.4 describe the 

routes and extent of the Key Walking Routes on the mainland, Northern Portsea Island and 

Southern Portsea Island respectively. The boundaries of the Core Walking Zones and Key 

Walking Routes were developed in consultation with City Council officers.  

4.1.4. The extent of the Core Walking Zones were based on the city, town and district centre 

boundaries identified in adopted development plan policies PCS4, STC2 and PCS8. The 

United Services Recreation Ground at Burnaby Road were excluded from the Tier 1 Core 

Walking Zone boundary. Routes which connected major residential areas to the strategic 

destinations were chosen as the Key Walking Routes.  

Table 4.1 – Identification of Core Walking Zones and Key Walking Routes 

Designated Core 
Walking Zone 

Centres and retail 
designations in The 
Portsmouth Plan 

Equivalent Code of Practice 
Hierarchy Category and 
Description 

Tier 1 Core 
Walking Zone  

City Centre (Commercial 
Road, University, Gunwharf 
Quays) 

Prestige Walking Zones - Very 
busy areas of towns and cities with 
high public space and streetscene 
contribution. 

Tier 2 Core 
Walking Zone 

Southsea town centre 
(Palmerston Road)  
Albert Road / Elm Grove 
district centre  
Cosham district centre 
Fratton district centre 
North End district centre 

Primary Walking Routes - Busy 
urban shopping and business 
areas and main pedestrian routes. 

Key Walking 
Routes 

Not applicable – Identified as 
main pedestrian routes across 
the rest of the city 

Primary Walking Routes - Busy 
urban shopping and business 
areas and main pedestrian routes. 

Page 84

https://ukrlg.ciht.org.uk/ukrlg-home/code-of-practice/


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 32 of 75 

Figure 4.1 – Core Walking Zones and Key Walking Routes 

 

Page 85



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 33 of 75 

Table 4.2 – Description of Key Walking Routes – Mainland 

Roads and routes which comprise 
the Key Walking Route 

Start and End Points 

Jubilee Avenue and Allaway Avenue 
Authority boundary (Portsdown Road) to 
Southampton Road 

Southampton Road, Spur Road, 
Havant Road 

Authority boundary (Portsdown Road) to Authority 
boundary (east of Rectory Avenue) 

Western Road  Southampton Road to Portsbridge Roundabout 

Southwick Hill Road  Queen Alexandra Hospital frontage 

London Road, High Street Cosham, 
Portsmouth Road and Portsbridge 
Roundabout 

Authority boundary (north of Christchurch 
Gardens) to Ports Creek 

Knowsley Road, Lonsdale Avenue, Old 
Manor Way and Grove Road 

High Street Cosham to Eastern Road 

The Old Road, Tudor Crescent and 
footbridge across M27 and Ports 
Creek 

Portsmouth Road to Ports Creek 

Eastern Road Havant Road to bridge across Ports Creek 

Table 4.3 – Description of Key Walking Routes – Northern Portsea Island 

Roads and routes which comprise 
the Key Walking Route 

Start and End Points 

London Road, Kingston Road and 
Fratton Road 

Ports Creek to Fratton Bridge 

Copnor Road, Copnor Bridge and Milton 
Road 

London Road to Goldsmith Avenue / Eastney 
Road junction 

Eastern Road and Velder Avenue 
Bridge across Ports Creek to Milton Road / 
Rodney Road junction 

Peronne Road  Copnor Road to Ports Creek 

Norway Road and Anchorage Road Copnor Road to Eastern Road 

Airport Service Road, Quatremaine 
Road and Dundas Lane 

Hilsea Rail Station to Burrfields Road 

Stubbington Avenue and Burrfields 
Road 

Angerstein Road / Gladys Avenue / London 
Road roundabout to Eastern Road 

Page 86



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 34 of 75 

Roads and routes which comprise 
the Key Walking Route 

Start and End Points 

Kingston Crescent, Mile End Road and 
Commercial Road 

London Road to Edinburgh Road 

Gamble Road, Malins Road, Sultan 
Road, Wingfield Street, Lower Wingfield 
Street and connection to Lake Road 

Kingston Crescent to Lake Road 

Lake Road Commercial Road to Fratton Road 

Arundel Street  Commercial Road to Fratton Road 

New Road Kingston Road to Copnor Road 

Milton Road and Tangier Road Copnor Road to Eastern Road 

St. Mary’s Road and Langstone Road Fratton Road to Eastern Road 

Fratton Way and Rodney Road 
Goldsmith Avenue to Eastern Road / Milton 
Road / Velder Avenue junction  

Table 4.4 – Description of Key Walking Routes – Southern Portsea Island 

Roads and routes which comprise the 
Key Walking Route 

Start and End Points 

Queen Street, Bishop Crispian Way and 
Edinburgh Road 

The Hard to Commercial Road 

Isambard Brunel Road, Greetham Street, 
Raglan Street, Somers Road and 
Sydenham Terrace 

Commercial Road / Guildhall Walk junction 
to Fratton Bridge 

Goldsmith Avenue 
Fratton Bridge to Milton Road / Eastney 
Road junction 

The Hard, St. George’s Road, Museum 
Road, King’s Road, Elm Grove, South 
Victoria Road, Albert Road, Highland Road, 
Henderson Road and Fort Cumberland 
Road 

Queen Street to Fort Cumberland Car Park / 
Melville Road junction 

Park Road, pedestrian link to King Henry I 
Street and King Henry I Street 

St. George’s Road to Guildhall Square 

St. James’ Street, Richmond Place and 
Burnaby Road 

Queen Street to Cambridge Road 

Page 87



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 35 of 75 

Roads and routes which comprise the 
Key Walking Route 

Start and End Points 

Commercial Road, Guildhall Square, 
Guildhall Walk, Hampshire Terrace, 
Landport Terrace, King’s Terrace, Jubilee 
Terrace, Bellevue Terrace and Pier Road 

Edinburgh Road to Clarence Pier 

High Street, Cambridge Road and Lord 
Montgomery Way 

Broad Street to Hampshire Terrace 

Gunwharf Road, Lombard Street, Pembroke 
Road, Gordon Road, Duisburg Way, 
Osborne Road and Clarendon Road  

St. George’s Road to South Parade 

Broad Street, Battery Row, Long Curtain 
walkway, Clarence Parade (Clarence Pier to 
Blue Reef), seafront walkway from Blue 
Reef to The Dell, South Parade, Eastney 
Esplanade, Henderson Road, Melville Road, 
Fort Cumberland Road and Ferry Road 

North-western tip of Old Portsmouth to 
Hayling Ferry landing 

Walkway from Guildhall Square to Winston 
Churchill Avenue (central library to courts), 
Middle Street, Eldon Street and Norfolk 
Street 

Guildhall Square to King’s Road 

Fratton Bridge, Fawcett Road, Lawrence 
Road and Waverley Road 

Sydenham Terrace to Clarendon Road / 
Granada Road junction 

Grove Road South and Palmerston Road  Elm Grove to Clarence Parade 

Marmion Road Grove Road South to Fontwell Road 

Eastney Road, Cromwell Road and St. 
George’s Road 

Goldsmith Avenue / Milton Road junction to 
Eastney Esplanade 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 36 of 75 

5 Prioritising Routes for Development 

5.1 Introduction 

5.1.1. The maps in Chapters 3 and 4 indicate a strategic network of routes for walking and cycling 

respectively covering the whole city. The LCWIP guidance states that these routes should be 

audited to determine where improvements are required. A prioritisation process was used to 

determine an initial list of routes for auditing.  

5.1.2. A balanced set of prioritisation criteria were chosen. The criteria covered the following 

themes:  

 Existing and potential future cycling demand;   

 Strategic transport projects and priorities;  

 Economy; 

 Education; 

 Housing; and  

 Public health.  

5.1.3. The criteria, the data used, and parameters applied are set out in Table 5.1. As inferred in 

para. 2.5.10 and in common with many UK areas, there is currently limited available data on 

footfall across the city.  

5.1.4. Reference numbers were assigned to the cycling corridors for the prioritisation process. As 

the chosen criteria for cycling routes included existing and potential cycling flows, the 

prioritisation process needed to be able to capture all relevant origin-destination travel flows. 

A single reference was therefore given to each desire line corridor (e.g. from Hayling Ferry to 

Gosport), rather than shorter sections of route. Many of the corridor references overlap with 

each other for part of their length. 

5.1.5. Each Key Walking Route was disaggregated into sections, usually from the connection point 

with one key walking route to the connecting point with another, and not more than 2km in 

length. This aligned to 2km distance threshold for Key Waking Routes in LCWIP guidance. 

These sections were also assigned a reference number.  

5.1.6. Each cycling corridor or section of Key Walking Route was then scored against the criteria. 

The cycling desire line corridors varied in length significantly. To ensure that the prioritisation 

process did not favour longer distance routes (which would tend to intersect with more 

homes, key employment areas, and so on), the results were reported on a ‘per kilometre’ 

basis for the majority of the criteria. Where the criteria resulted in low numbers or binary 

results (e.g., yes / no answers) these were scored for the route as a whole. The Key Walking 

Routes were of more consistent lengths and so were considered as a full route.  

 

 

Page 89



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 37 of 75 

Table 5.1 – Prioritisation Criteria 

Theme Criteria Data used Threshold applied Cycling 
prioritisation 

Walking 
prioritisation 

Current and 
future potential 
trip making 

Existing number of 
cycle journeys 
(commuting) 

Census 2011 travel to 
work by bicycle 

Origin and destination 
pairs are within 800m 
of the route (based on 
population-weighted 
centroids) 

Yes No 

Current and 
future potential 
trip making 

Potential future 
additional cycle 
journeys (commuting) 

Propensity to Cycle 
Tool Government 
Target (Equality) 
cycling growth 
scenario  

Origin and destination 
pairs are within 800m 
of the route (based on 
population-weighted 
centroids) 

Yes No 

Current and 
future potential 
trip making 

Existing and potential 
future number of 
walking journeys 

Walking network 
categories (Tier 1 
Core Walking Zone, 
Tier 2 Core Walking 
Zone) 

Route is within 400m 
of Tier 1 Core Walking 
Zone / Tier 2 Core 
Walking Zone 

No Yes 

Public Health Proximity to AQMAs 
(as part of measures to 
reduce car use, and 
vehicle emissions, in 
areas with poor air 
quality) 

Extent of AQMAs in 
the city 

Number of AQMAs 
within 400m of route 

Yes Yes 

P
age 90



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 38 of 75 

Theme Criteria Data used Threshold applied Cycling 
prioritisation 

Walking 
prioritisation 

Public Health Improving transport 
links to and from 
deprived communities 

Number of MSOAs 
which are within the 
top 20% most 
deprived areas in 
England & Wales 

MSOAs which are 
wholly or partially 
within 400m of a route 

Yes Yes 

Public Health Addressing road safety 
issues  

Recorded Numbers 
of Killed or Seriously 
Injured from road 
collisions 

Number of Killed or 
Seriously Injured 
cyclists within 400m of 
a route 

Yes No 

Public Health Addressing road safety 
issues  

Recorded Numbers 
of Killed or Seriously 
Injured from road 
collisions 

Number of Killed or 
Seriously Injured 
pedestrians within 
400m of a route 

No Yes 

Strategic  Proximity to coastal 
defence schemes 

Proposed extent of 
remaining elements 
of North Portsea 
Island Coastal 
Scheme (phases 4 
and 5) and Southsea 
Coastal Scheme  

Proposed coastal 
defence scheme is 
within 400m of route 

Yes Yes 

Strategic Cross-boundary routes Local authority 
boundary  

Route crosses local 
authority boundary 

Yes No 

P
age 91

http://www.escp.org.uk/coastal-schemes/portsmouth/protecting-future-north-portsea-island
http://www.escp.org.uk/coastal-schemes/portsmouth/protecting-future-north-portsea-island


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 39 of 75 

Theme Criteria Data used Threshold applied Cycling 
prioritisation 

Walking 
prioritisation 

Strategic Proximity to Future 
High Streets bid area 

Future High Streets 
bid area (Commercial 
Road area and 
Fratton district centre) 

Number of bid areas 
within 400m of route 

Yes Yes 

Strategic Proximity to South 
East Hampshire Rapid 
Transit 

Proposed South East 
Hampshire Rapid 
Transit 

Route is within 400m 
of South East 
Hampshire Rapid 
Transit proposed 
infrastructure scheme  

Yes Yes 

Strategic Proximity to transport 
hubs 

Locations of rail 
stations, The Hard 
Interchange, ferries, 
hoverport and 
International 
Ferryport 

Number of transport 
hubs within 400m of 
route 

Yes Yes 

Economy Proximity to 
businesses 

All entries in the 
Local Land & 
Property Gazetteer 
with Basic Land and 
Property Unit codes 
CI (industrial), CL 
(leisure), CM 
(medical), CN (animal 
centre), CO (office) 
and CS (storage).  

Number of gazetteer 
entries within 400m of 
route 

Yes Yes 

P
age 92



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 40 of 75 

Theme Criteria Data used Threshold applied Cycling 
prioritisation 

Walking 
prioritisation 

Economy Proximity to 
businesses 

Major Employers Map 
Five size categories – 
50-99, 100-249, 250-
499, 500-999 and 
1000+ 

Number of major 
employers within 400m 
of the route (weighted 
by size) 

Yes Yes 

Economy Proximity to retail units  All Portsmouth 
entries in the Local 
Land & Property 
Gazetteer with Basic 
Land and Property 
Unit code CR (retail) 

Number of gazetteer 
entries within 400m of 
route 

Yes Yes 

Economy Leisure attractions 
served 

The major leisure 
attractions listed on 
LCWIP Origin & 
Destination Map 

Number of leisure 
attractions within 400m 
of route 

Yes Yes 

Economy Portsmouth 
International Port 

Location of 
Portsmouth 
International Port 

Route is within 400m 
of Portsmouth 
International Port 

Yes Yes 

P
age 93



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 41 of 75 

Theme Criteria Data used Threshold applied Cycling 
prioritisation 

Walking 
prioritisation 

Education Proximity to education 
establishments  

Pupil and student 
numbers (Department 
for Education data 
supplemented with 
additional 
information, where 
required) 

Number of 
pupils/students 
enrolled at 
establishments within 
400m of the route 

Yes Yes 

Housing Existing homes All Portsmouth 
entries in the Local 
Land & Property 
Gazetteer with Basic 
Land and Property 
Unit code RD 
(dwelling), RH (home 
in multiple 
occupation) and RI 
(residential 
institution).  

Number of additional 
homes within 400m of 
route 

Yes Yes 

P
age 94



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 42 of 75 

Theme Criteria Data used Threshold applied Cycling 
prioritisation 

Walking 
prioritisation 

Housing Proposed additional 
homes 

Housing & Economic 
Land Availability 
Assessment data, 
October 2018 

Net yield of forecast 
additional homes 
within 400m of route 
(where information 
available). Where no 
information available 
housing unit yield 
estimated by 
multiplying site area by 
likely development 
density.  

For mixed use sites 
assumption made that 
50% of site would be 
given over to housing.  

Yes Yes 

 

 

 

P
age 95



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 43 of 75 

5.2 Prioritisation Results – Cycling Desire Line Corridors 

5.2.1. Each cycling desire line corridor was ranked based on its score. Based on the prioritisation 

scores, it was decided that for this iteration of the LCWIP eleven cycling corridors would be 

taken forward for further development. These eleven corridors were considered to give a 

reasonable geographic coverage across the city and cater for a range of potential journeys. 

Table 5.2 below outlines the highest scoring cycling corridors taken forward for further 

development.  

Table 5.2 – Schedule of Prioritised Cycling Desire Line Corridors 

Rank Reference Route Score 

1 307 
Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via Queen Alexandra Hospital, 
Cosham & City Centre 

65 

2= 503 
Fareham to Southsea Common via Lakeside North Harbour, 
North End, City Centre & Southsea Town Centre 

61 

2= 802 Southsea Seafront to HM Naval Base via City Centre 61 

2= 801 Eastney to HM Naval Base 61 

5 301 
Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via Farlington, Hilsea 
Employment Area (South) & City Centre 

60 

6= 405 
DSTL / North Portchester to Southsea Common via Lakeside 
North Harbour, North End, City Centre & Southsea Town 
Centre 

59 

6= 108 
Havant to Clarence Pier via Farlington, Hilsea Employment 
Area (South) & City Centre 

59 

6= 602 Gosport to Portsmouth College via City Centre 59 

9= 205 
Leigh Park to Clarence Pier via Farlington, Hilsea 
Employment Area (South) & City Centre 

57 

9= 603 Gosport to Southsea Seafront via University and Albert Road 57 

11 601 
Gosport to Hayling Island via City Centre, Fratton and St. 
James' Hospital / Langstone Campus development sites 

56 

5.2.2. Figure 5.1Error! Reference source not found. illustrates the location and distribution of the 

eleven highest scoring cycling corridors taken forward for further development. It is intended 

that other corridors illustrated on Figure 3.2 will be developed and improved in subsequent 

iterations of the LCWIP, or as funding opportunities arise. There will also be a requirement to 

consider how other destinations can be served by the city’s cycle network, such as primary 

schools, health centres, other shopping parades and other facilities. Providing these 

connections may form a secondary and/or tertiary cycle network for the city.  

 

 

  

Page 96



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 44 of 75 

Figure 5.1 – Highest Scoring Cycling Corridors for Further Development  

 

Page 97



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 45 of 75 

5.3 Prioritisation Results – Key Walking Routes 

5.3.1. Each Key Walking Route was ranked based on its score when assessed against the prioritisation 

criteria. Table 5.3 and Table 5.4 outlines the outcome of this prioritisation and the Key Walking 

Routes to be taken forward for further development. To ensure a balance of locations, these 

comprised the five highest scoring Key Walking Routes within or connecting to the city centre 

area, and the five highest scoring Key Walking Routes elsewhere across the authority.  

Table 5.3 – Prioritised Key Walking Routes – City Centre 

Rank Reference Route Score 

1= 22 Commercial Road and Lake Road (Edinburgh Road to Fratton 

Road) 

49 

1= 33 Arundel Street (Commercial Road to Fratton Road) 49 

1= 80 Isambard Brunel Road, Greetham Street, Raglan Street, 

Somers Road and Sydenham Terrace (Commercial Road to 

Fratton Road) 

49 

4 37 King Henry I Street, walkway to Anglesea Road and Park 

Road (Guildhall Square to Gunwharf Quays entrance) 

47 

5 79 Walkway from Guildhall Square to Winston Churchill Avenue 

(central library to courts), Middle Street, Eldon Street and 

Norfolk Street (Guildhall Square to King’s Road) 

45 

Table 5.4 - Prioritised Key Walking Routes – Outside City Centre 

Rank Reference Route Score 

1 53 
Kingston Road and Fratton Road (Kingston Crescent to Lake 
Road) 

36 

2 11 
London Road (Copnor Road to Angerstein Road / Gladys 
Avenue / Stubbington Avenue roundabout)  

35 

3= 27 
Fratton Bridge, Fawcett Road and Lawrence Road (Selbourne 
Terrace to Albert Road) 

33 

3= 77 
Grove Road South and Palmerston Road (Elm Grove to 
Clarence Parade) 

33 

5 68 
London Road (Angerstein Road / Gladys Avenue / 
Stubbington Avenue roundabout to Kingston Crescent) 

32 

 

5.3.2.  

5.3.3. Figure 5.2 illustrates the location of the ten prioritised Key Walking Routes taken forward for 

audit. It is intended that other Key Walking Routes illustrated on Figure 4.1 will be developed 

in subsequent iterations of the LCWIP, or as funding opportunities arise.  

Page 98



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 46 of 75 

Figure 5.2 – Location and Distribution of Prioritised Key Walking Routes  

 

Page 99



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 47 of 75 

6 Network Planning for Cycling (Route Selection) 

6.1 Introduction 

6.1.1. Following the prioritisation process, the cycling desire lines were mapped to existing roads 

and cycle routes. The LCWIP guidance highlights that the clear preference will usually be the 

most direct route between the origin and destination. It adds that in some cases there may be 

more than one potential route between origin and destination points or a reason why the 

most direct route is not suitable for cycling. 

6.2 Selecting Routes for Audit 

6.2.1. A combination of online cycle route planning tools Cyclestreets and Google Maps combined 

with City Council officers’ local knowledge were used to map desire lines to existing available 

routes across the city. In some cases, a significant deviation was required to find the nearest 

available crossing over roads, railways or water. Due to the street layout in much of 

Portsmouth a balance also often had to be found between identifying the technically shortest 

route (which may zig-zag through residential streets and be confusing to follow) versus a 

slightly longer route (which may be easier to follow). The proposed routes for audit were 

presented to City Council officers and confirmed, or amended in line with their comments, as 

appropriate.  

6.2.2. Figure 6.1 illustrates the outcome of mapping prioritised cycle routes to existing roads. Table 

6.1 lists the roads and routes which comprised the prioritised cycle routes. The table also 

identifies sections which were audited but which the audit process discounted for inclusion on 

the network plan, taking account of balancing roadspace for different modes (see chapter 7).   

6.2.3. Many of the prioritised cycle corridors converge on the Commercial Road / Portsmouth & 

Southsea Rail Station area in the city centre. In terms of cycling, this area contains heavily 

trafficked roads and junctions which create severance. It also has pedestrianised areas 

where cycling is not permitted; a deviation from the desire line is required to make cycle 

journeys across the city centre.  

6.2.4. This area is anticipated to undergo substantial development and change, including revisions 

to the transport network and street layouts. These changes are however not yet confirmed.  

6.2.5. As a result of the uncertainty regarding future city centre layouts the prioritised cycle corridors 

were not mapped to existing routes in this area. Further study is required to identify north-

south and east-west routes which can be made suitable for cycling as part of wider city 

centre studies.  

Page 100

http://www.cyclestreets.co.uk/
http://www.maps.google.co.uk/


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 48 of 75 

6.2.6. In line with the guidance, the most direct route was sought whilst also taking account of the 

route’s overall legibility. In the case of route 602 (Gosport to Portsmouth College) the street 

pattern meant no one single route was preferred and instead two route variants were taken 

forward for auditing. In the case of route 601 (Gosport to Hayling Island) the deviation from 

the desire line due to Eastney Lake meant that a route covering Gosport to Langstone 

Campus / St. James’ Hospital destinations (but not connecting to Hayling Ferry) was taken 

forward.   

Page 101



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 49 of 75 

Figure 6.1 – Prioritised Cycling Routes for Audit 

Page 102



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 50 of 75 

Table 6.1 – Description of Prioritised Cycling Routes for Audit  

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor 
Reference 

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 
Description 

Roads and routes which comprise the Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 

Discounted sections not 
proposed for inclusion 

108 

Havant to 
Clarence Pier 
via Farlington, 
Hilsea 
Employment 
Area (South) & 
City Centre 

National Cycle Network route 22 (authority boundary to 
Farlington Interchange), A2030 Eastern Road, Anchorage Road, 
Robinson Way, Airport Service Road, Dundas Lane, Moneyfield 
Avenue, Dover Road (southbound), Folkestone Road and Martin 
Road (northbound), Tangier Road, Milton Road, A288 Copnor 
Bridge, New Road, George Street, Glencoe Road / Daulston 
Road, Hampshire Street, Shakespeare Road, Manor Road, 
A2047 Fratton Road, B2152 and A2030 Lake Road, City Centre 
area, Guildhall Square & Guildhall Walk, A288 Hampshire 
Terrace, A3 Landport Terrace, A3 King's Terrace, A3 Jubilee 
Terrace, A3 Bellevue Terrace and A3 Pier Road 

Shearer Road (southbound) 
and Ernest Road 
(northbound) 

Isambard Brunel Road and 
Alec Rose Lane 

205 

Leigh Park to 
Clarence Pier 
via Farlington, 
Hilsea 
Employment 
Area (South) & 
City Centre 

A2030 Havant Road, A2030 Eastern Road, Anchorage Road, 
Robinson Way, Airport Service Road, Dundas Lane, Moneyfield 
Avenue, Dover Road (southbound), Folkestone Road and Martin 
Road (northbound), Tangier Road, Milton Road, A288 Copnor 
Bridge, New Road, George Street, Glencoe Road / Daulston 
Road, Hampshire Street, Shakespeare Road, Manor Road, 
A2047 Fratton Road, B2152 and A2030 Lake Road, City Centre 
area, Guildhall Square & Guildhall Walk, A288 Hampshire 
Terrace, A3 Landport Terrace, A3 King's Terrace, A3 Jubilee 
Terrace, A3 Bellevue Terrace and A3 Pier Road 

Lower Farlington Road and 
Fitzherbert Road 

Shearer Road (southbound) 
and Ernest Road 
(northbound) 

Isambard Brunel Road and 
Alec Rose Lane 

P
age 103



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 51 of 75 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor 
Reference 

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 
Description 

Roads and routes which comprise the Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 

Discounted sections not 
proposed for inclusion 

301 

Waterlooville to 
Clarence Pier 
via Farlington, 
Hilsea 
Employment 
Area (South) & 
City Centre 

Crookhorn Lane, Gillman Road, A2030 Havant Road, A2030 
Eastern Road, Anchorage Road, Robinson Way, Airport Service 
Road, Dundas Lane, Moneyfield Avenue, Dover Road 
(southbound), Folkestone Road and Martin Road (northbound), 
Tangier Road, Milton Road, A288 Copnor Bridge, New Road, 
George Street, Glencoe Road / Daulston Road, Hampshire 
Street, Shakespeare Road, Manor Road, A2047 Fratton Road, 
B2152 and A2030 Lake Road, City Centre area, Guildhall 
Square & Guildhall Walk, A288 Hampshire Terrace, A3 Landport 
Terrace, A3 King's Terrace, A3 Jubilee Terrace, A3 Bellevue 
Terrace and A3 Pier Road 

Lower Farlington Road and 
Fitzherbert Road 

Hampshire Street 
(Shakespeare Road to 
Fratton Road) 

Isambard Brunel Road and 
Alec Rose Lane 

307 

Waterlooville to 
Clarence Pier 
via Cosham & 
City Centre 

A3 London Road, A3 Northern Road, A3 Portsbridge 
Roundabout, A3 London Road, A3 Northern Parade, Nelson 
Avenue, North End Avenue, Penrose Close, A3 Twyford Avenue 
(northbound) and A3 Stamshaw Road (southbound), Rudmore 
Roundabout, A3 Mile End Road, City Centre area, Guildhall 
Square & Guildhall Walk, A288 Hampshire Terrace, A3 Landport 
Terrace, A3 King's Terrace, A3 Jubilee Terrace, A3 Bellevue 
Terrace and A3 Pier Road  

A3 London Road (Northern 
Parade to Kingston 
Crescent), A2047 Kingston 
Crescent, Gamble Road, 
Malins Road, Sultan Road, 
Wingfield Street and 
Staunton Street 

Isambard Brunel Road and 
Alec Rose Lane 

P
age 104



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 52 of 75 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor 
Reference 

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 
Description 

Roads and routes which comprise the Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 

Discounted sections not 
proposed for inclusion 

307a 

Queen 
Alexandra 
Hospital to 
Clarence Pier 
via Cosham & 
City Centre 

B2177 Southwick Hill Road, A3 London Road, A3 Northern 
Road, A3 Portsbridge Roundabout, A3 London Road, A3 
Northern Parade, Nelson Avenue, North End Avenue, Penrose 
Close, A3 Twyford Avenue (northbound) and A3 Stamshaw 
Road (southbound), Rudmore Roundabout, A3 Mile End Road, 
City Centre area, Guildhall Square & Guildhall Walk, A288 
Hampshire Terrace, A3 Landport Terrace, A3 King's Terrace, A3 
Jubilee Terrace, A3 Bellevue Terrace and A3 Pier Road 

A3 London Road (Northern 
Parade to Kingston 
Crescent), A2047 Kingston 
Crescent, Gamble Road, 
Malins Road, Sultan Road, 
Wingfield Street and 
Staunton Street 

Isambard Brunel Road and 
Alec Rose Lane 

405 

DSTL / North 
Portchester to 
Southsea 
Common via 
Lakeside North 
Harbour, North 
End, City Centre 
& Southsea 
Town Centre 

Westfield Road and connecting east-west cycle tracks, Allaway 
Avenue, Marsden Road, Racecourse Lane, A27 Southampton 
Road, A27 Western Road, A3 Portsbridge Roundabout, A3 
London Road, A3 Northern Parade, Nelson Avenue, North End 
Avenue, Penrose Close, A3 Twyford Avenue (northbound) and 
A3 Stamshaw Road (southbound), Rudmore Roundabout, A3 
Mile End Road, City Centre area, Guildhall Square & Guildhall 
Walk, A288 Hampshire Terrace, A3 Landport Terrace, A3 King's 
Terrace, A3 Jubilee Terrace, A3 Bellevue Terrace and A3 Pier 
Road 

Jubilee Avenue 

A3 London Road (Northern 
Parade to Kingston 
Crescent), A2047 Kingston 
Crescent, Gamble Road, 
Malins Road, Sultan Road, 
Wingfield Street and 
Staunton Street 

Isambard Brunel Road and 
Alec Rose Lane 

P
age 105



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 53 of 75 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor 
Reference 

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 
Description 

Roads and routes which comprise the Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 

Discounted sections not 
proposed for inclusion 

503 

Fareham to 
Southsea 
Common via 
Lakeside North 
Harbour, North 
End, City Centre 
& Southsea 
Town Centre 

A27 Southampton Road, A27 Western Road, A3 Portsbridge 
Roundabout, A3 London Road, A3 Northern Parade, Nelson 
Avenue, North End Avenue, Penrose Close, A3 Twyford Avenue 
(northbound) and A3 Stamshaw Road (southbound), Rudmore 
Roundabout, A3 Mile End Road, City Centre area, Isambard 
Brunel Road, Winston Churchill Avenue, St. James' Road, 
Waterloo Street, Grosvenor Street, Green Road, Cottage Grove, 
Grove Road North, Grove Road South, Kent Road, Portland 
Road, Osborne Road, Palmerston Road and Avenue de Caen 

A3 London Road (Northern 
Parade to Kingston 
Crescent), A2047 Kingston 
Crescent, Gamble Road, 
Malins Road, Sultan Road, 
Wingfield Street and 
Staunton Street 

Isambard Brunel Road and 
Alec Rose Lane 

601b 

Gosport to St. 
James' Hospital 
/ Langstone 
Campus 
development 
sites 

The Hard, Queen Street, Bishop Crispian Way, City Centre area, 
East Surrey Street, Bridport Street, Canal Walk, Sydenham 
Terrace, Fratton Bridge, Goldsmith Avenue, Dunbar Road, 
Maurice Road, Ironbridge Lane and Locksway Road 

Wickham Street and Clock 
Street 

Milton Road (Goldsmith 
Avenue to Locksway Road) 
and Locksway Road (Milton 
Road to Ironbridge Lane)  

P
age 106



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 54 of 75 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor 
Reference 

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 
Description 

Roads and routes which comprise the Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 

Discounted sections not 
proposed for inclusion 

602a 

Gosport to 
Portsmouth 
College via City 
Centre 
(southern route) 

The Hard, Queen Street, Bishop Crispian Way, City Centre area, 
Arundel Street, Clifton Street, Stamford Street, Clive Road, 
Clarkes Road, St. Mary’s Road, Langstone Road, Eastern Road, 
Tangier Road 

Wickham Street and Clock 
Street 

Crasswell Road, Charles 
Street, Fyning Street, 
Common Street, Lords 
Street, Church Road, Fratton 
Road, St. Mary’s Road 

Kingston Park  

Sword Sands Path 

602b 

Gosport to 
Portsmouth 
College via City 
Centre (northern 
route) 

The Hard, Queen Street, Bishop Crispian Way, City Centre area, 
Arundel Street, Clifton Street, Stamford Street, Clive Road, 
Clarkes Road, St. Mary’s Road, Milton Road (Northbound), 
Baffins Road (Southbound), Hayling Avenue, Neville Road and 
Tangier Road 

Wickham Street and Clock 
Street 

Crasswell Road, Charles 
Street, Fyning Street, 
Common Street, Lords 
Street, Church Road, Fratton 
Road, St. Mary’s Road 

Kingston Park 

603 

Gosport to 
Southsea 
Seafront via 
University and 
Albert Road 

The Hard, St. George’s Road, Museum Road, King’s Road, Elm 
Grove, Victoria Road South, Albert Road and Festing Road 

None 

P
age 107



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 55 of 75 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor 
Reference 

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 
Description 

Roads and routes which comprise the Strategic Cycle 
Corridor 

Discounted sections not 
proposed for inclusion 

801 
Eastney to HM 
Naval Base via 
City Centre 

Prince Albert Road, Landguard Road, Maxwell Road, Aston 
Road, Haslemere Road, Pretoria Road and St. Augustine Road, 
Frensham Road, Goldsmith Avenue, Fratton Bridge, Sydenham 
Terrace, Canal Walk, Bridport Street, East Surrey Street, City 
Centre area, Unicorn Road 

Devonshire Avenue, 
Devonshire Square, Francis 
Avenue and Heidelberg Road 
(northbound) 

802 

Southsea 
Seafront to HM 
Naval Base via 
City Centre 

Festing Road, Albert Road, Victoria Road South, Elm Grove, St. 
Andrew's Road, Cottage Grove, Green Road, Grosvenor Street, 
Waterloo Street, St. James’ Road, Winston Churchill Avenue, 
Isambard Brunel Road, City Centre area, Unicorn Road 

None 

 

P
age 108



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 56 of 75 

7 Auditing Routes, Identifying Improvements and 

Estimating Costs 

7.1 Introduction 

7.1.1. Once Key Walking Routes were selected, and the prioritised cycling corridors were mapped 

to existing roads and cycling routes, an auditing process was initiated.  

7.1.2. The purpose of auditing routes is to understand whether they are of a suitable standard and 

appropriate, and if not, what needs to be improved. The auditing process followed the DfT 

guidance. This allowed a consistent approach to be adopted, and for reasons behind decisions 

to be documented. As these are new approaches developed and promoted by the DfT, WSP 

gave a training session to City Council officers and stakeholders on the use of the two tools.   

7.2 Walking Route Audits 

Audit Methodology 

7.2.1. The walking audits used the DfT’s Walking Route Audit Tool (WRAT). This identified the standard 

of existing infrastructure along routes and identified where improvements were needed.  

7.2.2. The audit comprises 20 criteria grouped into five themes (attractiveness, comfort, directness, 

safety, and coherence). Auditors are required to give a score for each criterion of between 0 

and 2, where 2 represents good provision and 0 represents poor provision. From these 20 

criteria a total score was derived. The accompanying notes to the tool indicate that a score of 

70% (i.e., a score of 28 out of a potential 40 points) should normally be regarded as a 

minimum level of provision overall. Routes which score less than this, and particularly factors 

which are scored as zero, should be used to identify where improvements are required.  

7.2.3. Audits were carried out for the ten prioritised Key Walking Routes identified in Figure 5.2. 

Error! Reference source not found. 

7.2.4. The site visits involved walking the route in both directions, noting key issues, and taking 

photographs. A separate audit was carried for each section with different characteristics, 

leading to results being collated for 24 route sections. 

Key findings from audits 

7.2.5. Nine of the 27 audited route sections scored less than 28 out of 40 (the suggested minimum 

level of provision). The poorly scoring sections comprised:  

 Arundel Street, from Buckingham Street to Holbrook Road (KWR 33 section 2);  

 Kingston Road, from New Road to Kingston Crescent (KWR 53 sections 1 and 2);   

 Lake Road, entire length, from Fratton Road to Commercial Road (KWR 22 sections 1 and 2);  

 London Road, from Northwood Road to Merrivale Road, from Hewett Road to Gladys 

Avenue and from Gladys Avenue to Kingston Crescent (KWR 11 sections 1 and 3 and 

KWR 68 section 1); and 

Page 109



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 57 of 75 

 Fratton Bridge and Fawcett Road from Selbourne Terrace to Manners Road (KWR 27 

section 1).  

7.2.6. The highest scoring route sections (scores of 35 out of 40 or above) were as follows:  

 Arundel Street and Commercial Road pedestrianised sections (KWR 33 section 1 and 

KWR 22 section 3);  

 Eldon Street and Norfolk Street (KWR 79 section 3); 

 Fawcett Road from Manners Road to Addison Road (KWR 27 section 2); 

 Palmerston Road pedestrianised section (KWR 77 section 2);  

 Pedestrian walkway from Guildhall Walk to Winston Churchill Avenue (KWR 79 section 1); and 

 Isambard Brunel Road from Commercial Road to Greetham Street (KWR 80 section 1).  

7.2.7. It will be noted that these are generally areas with lower or no traffic levels, highlighting the 

impact of traffic on the scoring of routes in the WRAT.  

7.2.8. Issues were identified for all 27 audited route sections, regardless of their score. Common 

issues. included:  

 Attractiveness category:  

• Sections with limited or no passive surveillance (overlooking from neighbouring land 

uses), such as in subways;  

• Streets which are within AQMAs (where levels of nitrogen dioxide have been recorded 

which exceeds the limits outlined in the National Air Quality Strategy), or are within 

Noise Important Areas, which is a designation based on modelled levels of road traffic 

noise;   

• Absence of street trees or planting in the highway to enhance the walking environment, 

provide shade or shelter and absorb carbon dioxide;  

• Uncoordinated or inconsistent paving styles; and 

• Extensive bollards or guardrailing impacting on the quality of the streetscape. 

 Comfort:  

• Footways in poor condition, damaged paving slabs and uneven surfaces, creating 

potential trip hazards; 

• Overhanging vegetation; 

• Vehicles parked on footways;  

• Narrow footways, or footways where the usable space is reduced by direction signs, 

street lighting columns or bus stop shelters;  

• Requirements for pedestrians to divert to reach crossing points;  

• Significant distances between crossing points on busy roads; and 

• Pedestrian refuges which may not accommodate all pedestrians. 

 Directness: 

• Wide roads which result in longer pedestrian crossing distances;  

Page 110



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 58 of 75 

• Delays associated with crossing busy main roads away from zebra or signal crossings; 

and 

• No formalised pedestrian priority when crossing side roads.  

 Safety:  

• Pedestrians in close proximity to high traffic volumes or high traffic speeds, or coming 

into potential conflict with cyclists on a shared-use path;  

 Coherence:  

• Road crossings without dropped kerbs or tactile paving to assist blind, partially sighted 

and mobility impaired pedestrians.  

7.2.9. Whilst each of the prioritised walking routes were located on Portsea Island, it can be 

assumed that the commonly identified issues also affect routes on the mainland. The same 

audit principles can be applied to any walking route to identify improvements.  

Identifying improvements 

7.2.10. For every prioritised Key Walking Route, the audit results were used as a prompt to consider 

the broad types of intervention which have the potential to improve the quality of the 

pedestrian environment. They included the categories of improvement below:  

 Identifying space for street trees or planters, or parklets (usually created from on-street 

parking spaces);  

 Upgrading footway surfaces or paving materials;  

 Redesigning side road junctions with tighter geometry, to reduce turning vehicle turning 

speeds;  

 Redesigning major junctions to enable safer, more comfortable, and more direct crossings 

for pedestrians, including reviewing the extent of pedestrian guardrailing, and removing it 

where appropriate;  

 Widening existing footways, relocating street furniture and redesigning or removing 

barriers to create comfortable walking conditions and enabling all pedestrians to use the 

routes, including those using wheelchairs or mobility scooters, people with visual 

impairments or with pushchairs;  

 Constructing wider pedestrian refuges, enabling pedestrians to comfortably wait between 

traffic lanes;  

 Modifying existing or installing new controlled crossings (signal or zebra crossings) on 

busy roads, with pedestrian detection technology to amend crossing times;  

 Constructing continuous footways over side road junctions, to give greater pedestrian 

priority;  

 Constructing new footpaths to satisfy pedestrian desire lines; and 

 Installing tactile paving to assist blind and visually impaired pedestrians and constructing 

dropped kerbs to enable safe and comfortable pedestrian movements.  

Page 111



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 59 of 75 

7.2.11. There are other complementary measures which can ensure that the pedestrian environment 

is welcoming and inclusive. These include seating to enable less mobile pedestrians to rest 

at intervals, and extending the coverage of the existing wayfinding boards (in the city centre 

and Southsea) to other parts of the city.  

7.2.12. Some of the identified issues, such as poor air quality, high traffic noise levels and proximity 

to heavy or fast traffic, are more complex to solve. They will require city-wide programmes 

(including but not limited to the LCWIP) to enable more cycling, walking and public transport 

use and less car use. Measures to calm vehicle speeds on urban roads should also be 

considered to reduce the incidence and severity of collisions involving pedestrians (and 

cyclists). This could potentially include 20mph speed limits on major roads, as has recently 

been introduced in other cities.  

Summary sheet 

7.2.13. An audit summary sheet was prepared for each prioritised Key Walking Route. This set out:  

 the audit scores for each route section; 

 the existing characteristics and key issues for each section which determine the audit 

scores; and 

 key infrastructure improvements to address issues (subject to feasibility and deliverability 

considerations). 

7.3 Cycling Route Audits 

Audit methodology 

7.3.1. The cycling route audits assess the suitability of a route against core design outcomes. The 

objective was to identify the most direct route that was either already suitable, or could be 

made suitable, for cycling and the types of intervention required to achieve this.  

7.3.2. The audits comprised a three-step process: 

 Step 1: Pre-site visit preparation, collating relevant information for the audit;  

 Step 2: Site visit to assess the existing route/conditions and validate the pre-site visit work; and 

 Step 3: Complete (and amend as required) the audit results following the site visit. 

7.3.3. The DfT’s Route Selection Tool (RST) was used for the cycle route audits. This assesses 

existing routes against five criteria to determine whether they already satisfy core design 

outcomes for cycling. The five assessment criteria are:  

 Directness – a comparison of how direct the route is relative to the equivalent route for 

motor vehicles;  

 Gradient – how steep the route is;   

 Safety – whether there is physical protection from motor traffic, and if not, the speed and 

volume of motor traffic; in addition whether there is lighting and passive surveillance 

(overlooking from adjoining properties);  

 Connectivity – the number of connections to the surrounding area;  

Page 112



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 60 of 75 

 Comfort – how much space there is for cycling, the surface material, and whether the 

space is shared with substantial volumes of traffic or substantial numbers of pedestrians.  

The RST enables the merits of different route variants to be compared, and a comparison to 

be made with the potential future state of the route if improvements were to be implemented.  

7.3.4. Based on the information set out in the RST, each category was scored between 5 (the 

highest score) to 0 (the lowest score). The scores in the RST are based on parameters from 

selected UK cycle design guidance. The directness score was calculated for the route as a 

whole, whilst the scores for the other for categories was calculated for each individual 

section, with a combined score for the whole route. Where data was readily available, such 

as traffic flows for certain road links, or collected from site visits, then it informed the score. 

Where data was not readily available, such as traffic flows for many minor roads or recorded 

traffic speeds, then the score was based on assumptions. In most cases speed limits were 

used as a proxy for actual speed data. Further data will be required to confirm vehicle speeds 

and flows (and therefore the appropriate improvements) when cycle routes are developed.  

7.3.5. The DfT technical guidance notes that the aim of audits is to identify routes which score 3 or 

above against each design criteria (or could be improved to score 3 or above), ideally with no 

critical junctions.  

7.3.6. The scores for gradient and connectivity are the product of the area through which the route 

passes and are generally more fixed. In general terms, sections scoring poorly against the 

safety and comfort criteria are those which do not meet the recommended minimum provision 

outlined in recognised UK cycle design guidance. 

7.3.7. An assessment was also made of the number of critical junctions. These are defined in the 

RST as those junctions which are considered to have characteristics hazardous to cycling 

(e.g. high traffic volumes, no segregation from motor traffic or priority over motor traffic, a 

requirement to cross high-speed slip roads or negotiate large roundabouts).  

Key findings from audits 

7.3.8. Of the 83 route sections audited, around 25% have scores of 3 or above for all criteria (20 

sections) and around 75% have one more criteria scoring less than 3 (63 sections). The key 

findings in terms of suitability for cycling were as follows:  

 Low scores:  

• Many on-road sections score poorly against safety and comfort criteria. This is usually 

due to them having high traffic volumes, 30mph speed limits and no infrastructure to 

physically protect cyclists from motor traffic;  

• Off-carriageway paths score poorly against the comfort criteria where there is 

insufficient width to comfortably accommodate different categories of cycle, or where 

there are barriers which prevent passage by certain types of cycle;  

• Shared-use paths score poorly against the comfort criteria where there is insufficient 

width to accommodate both pedestrians and cyclists, and especially where there are 

high numbers of pedestrians;  

Page 113



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 61 of 75 

• Paths which are unlit or have no passive surveillance (not overlooked by neighbouring 

land uses); and 

• Sections of route which ascend Portsdown Hill or which cross the railway overbridges 

scored poorly against the gradient criteria.  

 

 High scores:  

• Residential streets with low traffic volumes and 20mph speed limits tended to score 

well; and 

• Some off-carriageway routes score well where they are sufficiently wide to comfortably 

accommodate all users.   

 Critical junctions: more than 100 critical junctions were identified on the prioritised cycle 

routes. Of these, approximately 50 were identified where cycle movements would be in 

potential conflict with heavy motor traffic flows (more than 5,000 vehicles per day) and 

approximately 40 locations which have wide or flared side road junctions.  

Identifying improvements or alternative routes 

7.3.9. The audit results and the Route Selection Tool scoring guidance were used as prompts to 

consider the broad types of intervention which would make each route more suitable for 

cycling. There was a particular emphasis on sections which had safety and comfort scores of 

less than 3; however, improvements were identified for almost all sections. In some cases 

route variants were recommended which were currently, or had the potential to be, more 

suitable for cycling than the route initially audited.  

7.3.10. At this early stage of planning, no particular design was chosen to improve the cycle routes. 

Instead, the list of improvements was based around the required outcomes – e.g. infrastructure 

which protects cyclists from motor vehicles or a junction redesign which enables safer cycle 

crossing movements. Further study will be required to confirm what design options are possible.  

7.3.11. Depending on the location and issues, improvements were identified to create more suitable 

conditions for cycling, such as those outlined below:  

 Constructing cycle tracks which are physically protected from motor traffic (see paragraph 

7.3.12 for further details), with priority across side roads;  

 Widening existing off-carriageway paths, relocating street furniture and redesigning or 

removing barriers to create comfortable cycling conditions and enable all types of bike to 

access the routes;  

 Upgrading surfaces and cutting back encroaching vegetation;  

 Modifying existing controlled crossings (signal or zebra crossings) or installing new 

controlled crossings on busy roads;  

 Replacing subways with surface crossings;  

 Redesigning junctions to enable those on bikes to make safer and more comfortable 

crossings or manoeuvres;  

 Redesigning side road junctions with tighter geometry, to reduce vehicle turning speeds;  

Page 114



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 62 of 75 

 Introducing measures to reduce levels of motor traffic on certain roads, for example using 

bollards to prevent through movements by motor vehicles whilst retaining access for local 

residents (see the description for low-traffic neighbourhoods overleaf);   

 Introducing measures which create carriageway space for protected cycle tracks, such as 

one-way streets or shuttle traffic signals;  

 Permitting two-way cycling in one-way streets (contraflow cycling) to shorten cycle journey 

distances;  

 Modifying existing road closures to enable cyclists to comfortably move between two roads; 

 Upgrading existing bridges or constructing new bridges across railways or watercourses to 

provide suitable path widths for cyclists and pedestrians;  

 Installing lighting on unlit routes; and 

 Reducing speed limits and introducing physical traffic calming features to slow traffic 

speeds.  

There is an important role for trials to test the impacts of potential improvements before they 

are finalised, including with experimental traffic regulation orders.  

Widths of protected cycle tracks  

7.3.12. To achieve an RST comfort score of 3 or above, the space must be a minimum of 1.5m wide 

for one-way cycling and at least 2.5m wide for two-way cycling. The space for cycling must 

be physically protected from motor traffic and surfaced in smooth tarmac (if not additional 

width will be required to account for wobble room on less smooth surfaces). Physical 

protection can be by means of kerbs (stepped up from, or constructed at the same height, as 

the carriageway) or light segregation (where cyclists are protected by intermittently placed 

physical objects, such as planters or posts).  

7.3.13. LCWIPs should plan for an increase in cycle trips, and accommodate all cycle designs 

commonly in use, including cargo bikes, cycles with trailers, handcycles, and adapted cycles. 

Additional width is likely to be required in many places to futureproof the infrastructure and meet 

growing demand. On that basis the City Council will aim to achieve a higher comfort score (4 

out of 5) where anticipated cycle flows require it and where feasible to do so. This requires 

minimum standards of 1.8m wide one-way cycle tracks and 3m wide two-way cycle tracks.  

7.3.14. The comfort score also assumes that the space for cycling is either not shared with 

pedestrians, or shared with limited numbers of pedestrians (fewer than 100 pedestrians per 

hour). Paths for two-way cycling with significant numbers of pedestrians (more than 300 per 

hour) would need to be at least 3.5m wide to have an RST comfort score of 3. Recent UK 

design guidance highlights that where space is available, separate infrastructure should be 

constructed for cyclists and pedestrians (including at junctions) to avoid conflict between 

different user groups. The LCWIP technical guidance notes that paths of sufficient width, or 

with separation to enable pedestrians and cyclists to travel side by side and to pass without 

conflict, will cater for both user groups.  

Page 115

https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/publications-and-reports/streets-toolkit#on-this-page-2
https://tfl.gov.uk/corporate/publications-and-reports/streets-toolkit#on-this-page-2


 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 63 of 75 

Balancing priorities 

7.3.15. Road space is shared between different transport modes and uses. Catering for these 

different demands can be particularly challenging in dense urban environments. In some 

locations achieving a cycle route audit score of 3 or above would only be possible if (for 

example) protected cycle tracks of a suitable width were constructed using road space 

currently given to other uses. In certain instances, it was considered that such a reallocation 

of space may not be deliverable. 

7.3.16. In some locations a range of different options were identified which each have the potential to 

improve the route score and make a route more suitable for cycling, each with different pros 

and cons. However, determining a suitable balance between space for different transport 

modes, or which option is most appropriate, is a decision for elected members taking into 

account evidence and stakeholder views. 

Complementary measures 

7.3.17. Investment in a range of complementary infrastructure elements will support the strategic 

cycling corridor infrastructure. These including the following measures:  

 Low-traffic-neighbourhoods: these are networks of residential streets where through traffic 

is excluded to make the area safer and more pleasant, with consequential benefits for 

cycling and walking. One measure to achieve this is to close particular points on the road 

network to motor vehicles (but enabling cyclists, pedestrians and in some places buses to 

travel through and retaining access to properties). This is sometimes known as filtered 

permeability. The closure can either apply at all times or between certain hours. Low-traffic 

neighbourhoods can also be created by introducing a series of one-way streets for motor 

vehicles or banning turns for motor vehicles at certain junctions. This concept has been 

used extensively in the London Borough of Waltham Forest, in conjunction with street 

enhancements, planting and seating;  

 Additional secure cycle parking across the city to meet current and future demand, well-

located to journey destinations and catering for different types of cycle and duration of 

stay. This could for example include cycle hubs at transport interchanges with a range of 

enhanced facilities. It could also include on-street cycle hangars, to provide safe places for 

residents to store bikes close to their homes in densely populated areas; and 

 Enhanced wayfinding: Clear and consistent signage and road markings to ensure whole 

routes are easy to follow and are conspicuous, particularly to assist new and returning 

cyclists. Wayfinding can give directions ahead of and at decision points, confirm the route 

after junction decision points, and give reassurance of the correct route mid-link.   

Summary sheet 

7.3.18. An audit summary sheet was prepared for each prioritised cycle route. This set out:  

 the audit scores for each route section; 

 the existing characteristics and key issues for each section which determine the audit 

scores, such as traffic flows, speed limits and the presence or absence of cycle 

infrastructure physically protected from motor traffic;  

Page 116



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 64 of 75 

 key infrastructure improvements required to address issues (subject to feasibility and 

deliverability considerations) and commentary to support the proposed approach; and 

 suggested alternative route sections, where it was considered that constraints would mean 

that it would not be possible to make the route suitable for cycling.  

Page 117



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 65 of 75 

8 Funding, Prioritisation and Integration into Authority 

Workstreams 

8.1 Cost Estimation 

8.1.1. High-level construction costs were estimated for each improvement to understand the broad 

scale of funding required to deliver all of the priority routes. Cost estimate information was 

supplied by the City Council for different categories of infrastructure. Costs were quoted in 

bands to reflect the variance in delivering similar types of infrastructure in different locations 

due to unique site-specific conditions. The estimates relate to construction costs only and do 

not allow for costs arising from inflation, utilities and third-party land purchase (if required) or 

account for optimism bias or margin for error. All potential improvements are subject to 

further study, feasibility and consultation, each of which has the potential to change cost 

estimates.  

8.1.2. Based on the information provided by the City Council, the broad approximate construction 

cost estimates for cycling and walking infrastructure are set out below:  

 Western Cycle Corridor (Route Refs 307, 307a, 405, 503) = £23m-50m;  

 Eastern Cycle Corridor (Route Refs 108, 205, 301) = £28m-78m;  

 East-West Portsea Island Cycle Routes (Route Refs 601, 602, 603 801) = £22m-54m; and 

 Prioritised Key Walking Routes = £41m to £76m (of which between at least £17m to £29m 

were likely to be solutions to jointly address walking and cycling issues).  

8.1.3. Costs were rounded up to the nearest £million. Due to their site-specific nature, costs were 

not included in the totals above for options: 

 to construct new or replacement bridge structures across the railway line on St. Mary’s 

Road and across Ports Creek at the Eastern Road waterbridge, and 

 to realign a section of the A3 Mile End Road southbound carriageway to provide space for 

a cycle track. 

8.2 Prioritising Improvements 

8.2.1. An indicative prioritisation exercise was undertaken to consider which interventions may form 

a short, medium and long-term investment programme. The LCWIP technical guidance 

describes three categories as follows:  

 Shorter-term: improvements which can be implemented quickly or are under development;  

 Medium term: improvements where there is a clear intention to act, but delivery is 

dependent on further funding availability or other issues (e.g. detailed design, securing 

planning permissions, land acquisition, etc); and 

 Longer-term: more aspirational improvements or those awaiting a defined solution.  

8.2.2. The prioritisation process was a two-step process, devised in consultation with authority 

officers.  

Page 118



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 66 of 75 

Prioritising cycle route improvements 

8.2.3. For cycling the prioritisation process was as follows:  

Step 1 Prioritisation 

8.2.4. Each strategic cycle corridor was ranked by assessing its likely impact against a range of 

criteria, covering existing and potential future cycling demand, strategic transport projects 

and priorities, economy, education, housing and public health (see chapter 5). These covered 

the ‘effectiveness’ and ‘policy’ criteria categories in the example prioritisation illustrated in the 

LCWIP technical guidance. The top ranked corridor from this process was reference 307 

(Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via Cosham, North End and City Centre). The highest scoring 

eleven cycling corridors were taken forward for further development, including route auditing.  

Step 2 Prioritisation 

8.2.5. Each cycle route section was then assessed against: 

 Deliverability and feasibility considerations: 

• Technical feasibility and complexity;  

• Stakeholder receptiveness;  

• Regulatory issues (planning consent, traffic regulation orders, bylaw amendments); and  

• Potential requirements for third party land; plus  

 Fit with planned transport schemes, including those being developed for Transforming 

Cities Fund. 

8.2.6. The outcome of the indicative step 2 prioritisation process is set out in Table 8.1 to Table 8.3. 

Where routes have common sections, the common section is only included once, recorded 

against the route with the highest ranking from the initial prioritisation process (step 1).   

8.2.7. No infrastructure improvements were identified for route 301 section 10 (Moneyfield Avenue, 

Dover Road, Folkestone Road and Martin Road) and route 601b Section 1 (Locksway Road 

from the university campus to Ironbridge Lane). The City Council will work with planning 

applicants of major developments in the vicinity of route 601b section 1 to ensure the road is 

suitable for cycling. 

8.2.8. It should be noted that the prioritisation is indicative and is intended to be flexible, to take 

account of available funding and changes in circumstances. An approach which prioritises 

whole corridors is likely to give greatest benefits, but this is reliant on securing large-scale 

funding. Where possible, routes will be improved as part of a package approach to ensure 

coherent routes are created. 

 

 

Page 119



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 67 of 75 

Table 8.1 – Indicative Prioritisation of Cycling Improvements – Shorter Term 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor Ref 

Strategic Cycle Corridor 
Description 

Stage 1 
Prioritisation 
Rank 

Route Description 

307 
Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via 
Cosham & City Centre 

1 

Section C: Nelson Avenue, North End Avenue & Penrose Close 
(Northern Parade to Twyford Avenue) 
Section H: A288 Hampshire Terrace (King Richard I Road to St. 
Michael’s Road (southern end) 

503 

Fareham to Southsea Common via 
Lakeside North Harbour, North End, 
City Centre & Southsea Town 
Centre 

=2 
Section 1: Southampton Road (Portsdown Road to Watersedge bus 
stop) 

802 
Southsea Seafront to HM Naval 
Base via City Centre 

=2 
Section 3: St. Andrew's Road, Cottage Grove and Green Road (Elm 
Grove to Brougham Street)  

801 Eastney to HM Naval Base =2 
Sections A, B & 4: Frensham Road and Goldsmith Avenue (Devonshire 
Avenue to Fratton Bridge roundabout) 

301 
Waterlooville to Clarence Pier via 
Farlington, Hilsea Employment Area 
(South) & City Centre 

5 Section 1: Crookhorn Lane (authority boundary to Portsdown Hill Road) 

405 

DSTL / North Portchester to 
Southsea Common via Lakeside 
North Harbour, North End, City 
Centre & Southsea Town Centre 

=6 

Section 2: Allaway Avenue shared-use path (Castle View Academy to 
Bourne Road) 
Section 4: Marsden Road (Allaway Avenue to Paulsgrove Adventure 
Playground) 

602a 
Gosport to Portsmouth College via 
City Centre (southern route) 

=6 
Sections B to D: Eastern Road shared-use path (Tangier Road to 
Langstone Road junction) 

601b 
Gosport to St. James' Hospital / 
Langstone Campus development 
sites 

=9 
Section B: Ironbridge Lane, Maurice Road and Dunbar Road (Locksway 
Road to Milton Road) 
Section 4: Goldsmith Avenue (Priory Crescent to Frensham Road) 

P
age 120



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 68 of 75 

Table 8.2 - Indicative Prioritisation of Cycling Improvements – Medium-Term 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor Ref 

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor Description 

Stage 1 
Prioritisation 
Rank 

Route Description 

307 
Waterlooville to Clarence 
Pier via Cosham & City 
Centre 

1 

Sections A & B: A3 Northern Parade (London Road to Nelson Avenue) 

Sections E & F: Rudmore Roundabout and A3 Mile End Road (Twyford Avenue / 
Stamshaw Road to Church Street Roundabout) 

503 

Fareham to Southsea 
Common via Lakeside 
North Harbour, North 
End, City Centre & 
Southsea Town Centre 

=2 

Section 2: A27 Southampton Road (Watersedge bus stop to Compass Road) 

Sections 3: A27 Western Road (Southampton Road junction underpass to 
Portsbridge Roundabout underpass) 

Section 12: Commercial Road (south) and Isambard Brunel Road (Station Street 
roundabout to Winston Churchill Avenue) 

Section G: Winston Churchill Avenue shared-use footway / cycleway, St. James' 
Road and Waterloo Street (Isambard Brunel Road to Grosvenor Street) 

Section 16: Avenue de Caen (Clarence Parade to Clarence Esplanade) 

802 
Southsea Seafront to HM 
Naval Base via City 
Centre 

=2 
Section 1: Festing Road (Eastern Parade to Albert Road) 

Section 6: Unicorn Road (Bishop Crispian Way to HM Naval Base) 

801 
Eastney to HM Naval 
Base via City Centre 

=2 
Section 6: Canal Walk, Bridport Street and East Surrey Street (Sydenham 
Terrace to Station Street) 

301 

Waterlooville to Clarence 
Pier via Farlington, 
Hilsea Employment Area 
(South) & City Centre 

5 

Section 2: Gillman Road (Portsdown Hill Road to Eveleigh Road) 

Sections B & 6: Eastern Road (Havant Road to Farlington Interchange) 

Sections 8 & 9: Anchorage Road, Robinson Way, Airport Service Road, Dundas 
Lane and former busway (Eastern Road to Moneyfield Avenue) 

Section C: George Street, Glencoe Road / Daulston Road, Hampshire Street, 
Shakespeare Road and Manor Road (New Road to Fratton Road) 

Section 13: Fratton Road and Lake Road (Manor Road to City Centre) 

P
age 121



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 69 of 75 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor Ref 

Strategic Cycle 
Corridor Description 

Stage 1 
Prioritisation 
Rank 

Route Description 

405 

DSTL / North Portchester 
to Southsea Common via 
Lakeside North Harbour, 
North End, City Centre & 
Southsea Town Centre 

=6 

Section 3: Allaway Avenue (Bourne Road to Marsden Road) 

Section 5: Racecourse Lane (Paulsgrove Adventure Playground to Southampton 
Road 

602 
Gosport to Portsmouth 
College via City Centre 

=6 
Section 11: Bishop Crispian Way (Edinburgh Road to Queen Street) 

Section 12: Queen Street (Bishop Crispian Way to The Hard) 

602a 
Gosport to Portsmouth 
College via City Centre 
(southern route) 

=6 

Section A: Tangier Road (Portsmouth College entrance to Eastern Road) 

Section E: St. Mary’s Road (Kingston Cemetery entrance to Clarke’s Road) 

Section F: Clarkes Road and Clive Road (St. Mary’s Road to Fratton Road) 

602b 
Gosport to Portsmouth 
College via City Centre 
(northern route) 

=6 

Section 1: Tangier Road (Portsmouth College entrance to Neville Road) 

Section 3: Baffins Road (Southbound) / Milton Road (Northbound) (Hayling 
Avenue to Prison Roundabout) 

603 
Gosport to Southsea 
Seafront via University 
and Albert Road 

=9 
Section 2 & 3: St George’s Road and Museum Road (St. George’s Square to 
King’s Roundabout) 

601b 

Gosport to St. James' 
Hospital / Langstone 
Campus development 
sites 

=9 Section 3: Goldsmith Avenue (Milton Road to Priory Crescent) 

 

 

P
age 122



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 70 of 75 

Table 8.3 - Indicative Prioritisation of Cycling Improvements – Longer-Term 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor Ref 

Strategic Cycle Corridor 
Description 

Stage 1 
Prioritisation 
Rank 

Route Description 

307 
Waterlooville to Clarence 
Pier via Cosham & City 
Centre 

1 

Sections 1-3: A3 London Road and Northern Road (Authority boundary to 
Cosham Health Centre) 

Section 5: A3 Portsbridge Roundabout and London Road (Western Road 
underpass to Northern Parade junction)  

Section D: A3 Twyford Avenue (northbound) and Stamshaw Road (southbound) 
(Penrose Close to Rudmore Roundabout) 

Section G: Guildhall Square & Guildhall Walk (Commercial Road to St. 
Michael’s gyratory) 

Sections 14 & 15: A288 Hampshire Terrace, Landport Terrace, King's Terrace, 
Jubilee Terrace, Bellevue Terrace & Pier Road (St. Michael’s Gyratory to 
Clarence Pier) 

307a 

Waterlooville to Clarence 
Pier via Queen Alexandra 
Hospital, Cosham & City 
Centre 

1 
Section 1: B2177 Southwick Hill Road (Queen Alexandra Hospital Entrance to 
London Road) 

503 

Fareham to Southsea 
Common via Lakeside 
North Harbour, North End, 
City Centre & Southsea 
Town Centre 

=2 

Section 3: A27 Southampton Road (Compass Road to Western Road 
underpass) 

Sections 14 & 15: Grosvenor Street, Green Road, Cottage Grove, Grove Road 
North & Grove Road South, Kent Road, Portland Road, Osborne Road and 
Palmerston Road (Grosvenor Street to Clarence Parade) 

802 
Southsea Seafront to HM 
Naval Base via City Centre 

=2 
Section 2: Albert Road, Victoria Road South and Elm Grove (Festing Road to 
St. Andrew’s Road) 

P
age 123



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 71 of 75 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor Ref 

Strategic Cycle Corridor 
Description 

Stage 1 
Prioritisation 
Rank 

Route Description 

801 Eastney to HM Naval Base =2 

Section 1: Prince Albert Road, Landguard Road, Maxwell Road, Aston Road, 
Haslemere Road, Pretoria Road and St. Augustine Road (Highland Road to 
Devonshire Avenue) 

Section 5: Fratton Bridge and Sydenham Terrace (Goldsmith Avenue to Canal 
Walk) 

301 

Waterlooville to Clarence 
Pier via Farlington, Hilsea 
Employment Area (South) 
& City Centre 

5 

Section 3: Gillman Road (Eveleigh Road to Havant Road) 

Section A: Havant Road (Gillman Road to Eastern Road) 

Section 7: Eastern Road (Farlington Interchange to Anchorage Road) 

Section 11: Tangier Road, Milton Road, Copnor Bridge & New Road 
(Folkestone Road to George Street) 

405 

DSTL / North Portchester to 
Southsea Common via 
Lakeside North Harbour, 
North End, City Centre & 
Southsea Town Centre 

=6 
Section 1: Westfield Road path, Jubilee Avenue & Allaway Avenue (Portsdown 
Road to Castle View Academy) 

108 

Havant to Clarence Pier via 
Farlington, Hilsea 
Employment Area (South) 
& City Centre 

=6 
Sections 1 & 2: National Cycle Network route 22 (Farlington Marshes route from 
authority boundary to Farlington Interchange) 

602 
Gosport to Portsmouth 
College via City Centre 

=6 

Section 6: St. Mary’s Road (Prison Roundabout to Kingston Cemetery entrance) 

Section G: Stamford Street, Clifton Street and Arundel Street (Fratton Road to 
20mph limit west of Holbrook Road) 

Section 10: Arundel Street (20mph limit west of Holbrook Road to Buckingham 
Street) 

P
age 124



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 72 of 75 

Strategic 
Cycle 
Corridor Ref 

Strategic Cycle Corridor 
Description 

Stage 1 
Prioritisation 
Rank 

Route Description 

602a 
Gosport to Portsmouth 
College via City Centre 
(southern route) 

=6 Section 5: Langstone Road (Eastern Road to Prison Roundabout) 

602b 
Gosport to Portsmouth 
College via City Centre 
(northern route) 

=6 Section 3: Neville Road and Hayling Avenue (Tangier Road to Baffins Road) 

205 

Leigh Park to Clarence Pier 
via Farlington, Hilsea 
Employment Area (South) 
& City Centre 

=9 Section 1: Havant Road (authority boundary to Lower Farlington Road) 

603 
Gosport to Southsea 
Seafront via University and 
Albert Road 

=9 

Section 1: The Hard (Hard Interchange to St. George’s Square) 

Section 4: King’s Road and Elm Grove (King’s Roundabout to St. Andrew’s 
Road) 

 

 

P
age 125



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 73 of 75 

Prioritising Key Walking Route improvements 

8.2.9. For walking routes, a tailored approach was adopted.  

Step 1 Prioritisation 

8.2.10. Each prioritised Key Walking Route was ranked by assessing its likely impact against a range 

of criteria covering strategic transport projects and priorities, economy, education, housing 

and public health (see chapter 5). These covered the ‘effectiveness’ and ‘policy’ criteria 

categories in the example prioritisation illustrated in the LCWIP technical guidance. 

Step 2 Prioritisation 

8.2.11. Each prioritised Key Walking Route was prioritised according to: 

• Proximity to AQMAs, where additional walking trips generated by enhanced pedestrian 

infrastructure has the potential to improve poor air quality;  

• Fit with planned transport schemes, including those being developed for Transforming 

Cities Fund; and  

• Proximity to the Future High Streets bid areas (covering the Commercial Road area and 

Fratton district centre).  

The outcome of this indicative step 2 prioritisation process is set out in Table 8.4, Table 8.5 

and Table 8.6. 

Table 8.4 - Indicative Prioritisation of Key Walking Route Improvements – Shorter term 

Key Walking Route 
Reference 

Key Walking Route Description 

KWR 33 section 3 Arundel Street (Holbrook Road to Fratton Road) 

KWR 27 section 1 
Fratton Bridge and Fawcett Road (Selbourne Terrace to Manners 
Road) 

KWR 53 sections 1-2 Kingston Road (Kingston Crescent to Lake Road) 

KWR 22 sections 1-3 Lake Road (entire length) 

KWR 68 section 1 
London Road (Kingston Crescent to Angerstein Road / Gladys 
Avenue / Stubbington Avenue roundabout) 

KWR 11 section 3 
London Road (Hewett Road to Angerstein Road / Gladys Avenue / 
Stubbington Avenue roundabout) 

Page 126



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 74 of 75 

Table 8.5 - Indicative Prioritisation of Key Walking Route Improvements – Medium term 

Key Walking Route 
Reference 

Key Walking Route Description 

KWR 33 sections 1-2 Arundel Street (Commercial Road to Holbrook Road) 

KWR 80 section 1 Isambard Brunel Road (Commercial Road to Greetham Street) 

KWR 80 section 3 Somers Road (Raglan Street to Sydenham Terrace) 

KWR 80 section 4 Sydenham Terrace (Somers Road to Fratton Bridge) 

KWR 37 section 1 
King Henry I Street and walkway to Anglesea Road (Guildhall 
Square to Anglesea Road) 

KWR 37 section 2 Park Road (Anglesea Road to St. George's Road) 

KWR 79 section 3 Eldon Street and Norfolk Street (Sackville Street to King's Road) 

KWR 11 section 2 London Road (Merrivale Road to Hewett Road) 

KWR 27 section 2 Fawcett Road (Manners Road to Addison Road) 

Table 8.6 - Indicative Prioritisation of Key Walking Route Improvements – Longer-term 

Key Walking Route 
Reference 

Key Walking Route Description 

KWR 80 section 2 Greetham Street and Raglan Street (Isambard Brunel Road to 
Somers Road) 

KWR 79 section 1 Unnamed walkway from Guildhall Square to Winston Churchill 
Avenue 

KWR 79 section 2 Middle Street (Winston Churchill Avenue to Sackville Street) 

KWR 11 section 1 London Road (Northwood Road to Merrivale Road) 

KWR 27 section 3 Lawrence Road (Addison Road to Albert Road) 

KWR 77 section 1 Grove Road South (Elm Grove to Palmerston Road) 

KWR 77 sections 1-2 Palmerston Road (entire length) 

8.2.12. All of the shorter-term Key Walking Routes identified to be progressed in the shorter-term are 

located within AQMAs.  

8.3 Funding and Appraisal 

8.3.1. Funding for local transport improvements comes from a variety of sources, including – but not 

limited to - government departments and Local Enterprise Partnerships. In many cases 

funding from central government or Local Enterprise Partnerships is awarded following a 

competition to which the City Council can submit bids. The aims and objectives of each fund 

will vary, and so some local transport improvements will be better suited to some funds rather 

than others.  

Page 127



 

LOCAL CYCLING & WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN Public | WSP 
Project No.: 70055572 | Our Ref No.: 70055572 January 2022 
Portsmouth City Council Page 75 of 75 

8.3.2. In many cases the City Council will prepare a business case to demonstrate how well the 

proposals meet the objectives and the beneficial impact they will bring (known as transport 

appraisal). Some of the LCWIP identified improvements may come forward as part of two 

City Council funding bids currently being prepared for submission to central government, the 

Transforming Cities Fund and Clean Air Fund. Background work for the LCWIP is already 

being included in the transport appraisal for these two funding bids.  

8.3.3. As it is not yet certain what funds will be targeted to deliver other elements of the LCWIP, no 

additional appraisal was undertaken at this stage.    

8.4 Application of LCWIP and Integration into Authority 

Workstreams  

8.4.1. The LCWIP identifies networks of strategic cycling and walking networks and identified 

infrastructure improvements for a selection of prioritised routes. It also outlines the other 

strategic cycling corridors and Key Walking Routes across the city which are to be developed 

when opportunities allow in future iterations of the LCWIP.  

8.4.2. The LCWIP is intended to be applied in the following ways:  

 Contributing the achieving the Council’s corporate priorities, and tackling the Climate 

Emergency;  

 Bidding for funding – The City Council will use the LCWIP as the basis for future funding 

bids to improve walking and cycling infrastructure;   

 Transport Policy – The LCWIP will inform the preparation of the new Local Transport Plan 

and the Rights of Way Improvement Plan;  

 Planning Policy – The LCWIP forms part of the evidence base supporting the 

Replacement Local Plan, ensuring that walking and cycling infrastructure are given 

appropriate weight in future planning decisions; and 

 Development Management – The local plan requires planning applicants to mitigate the 

transport impact of new developments. Planning applicants and the City Council’s 

development management officers will be able to use the LCWIP to ensure new 

developments deliver parts of the identified network of strategic cycle routes and Key 

Walking Routes. 

 

 

 

Page 128



 

Public 

WSP UK Limited makes no warranties or guarantees, actual or implied, in relation to this report, or the ultimate 
commercial, technical, economic, or financial effect on the project to which it relates, and bears no responsibility or liability 
related to its use other than as set out in the contract under which it was supplied. 

 
 

 

 
 

Kings Orchard 

1 Queen Street 

Bristol 

BS2 0HQ 

 

wsp.com 

 

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)

The integrated impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should: 

identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies that could impact positively or 

negatively on the following areas:

Communities and safety

Integrated impact assessment (IIA) form December 2019 

 

Equality & - DiversityThis can be found in Section A5

Environment and public  space

Regeneration and culture

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Directorate: Regeneration

Service, function: Transport

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) : 

Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy: 

Existing

New / proposed★

Changed

What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy? 

The Portsmouth LCWIP aims to create a walking and cycling network which will enable people to get 

from A to B in the most direct way possible when making utility trips. 

It proposes a range of interventions that will improve walking and cycling networks, in order to meet the 

ambitions set out in the government's Cycling and Walking Investment Strategy. 
Page 131



The routes and measures proposed have been assessed and prioritised using LCWIP guidance, 

existing and potential future cycling demand, strategic transport projects and priorities, economy, 

education, housing, and Public Health.  

Has any consultation been undertaken for this proposal? What were the outcomes of the consultations? Has 

anything changed because of the consultation? Did this inform your proposal?

Two stages of consultation have taken place, a full external consultation and an initial consultation to form audit and prioritisation 

methodology. This has included several internal and external stakeholders and covered both drop-in sessions and workshops, 

along with an on-line survey.   

 

The outcome of the full external consultation can be found in the consultation report. This has led to several changes to the policy 

document to clarify points and provide further details around the walking and cycling networks proposed in the document. 

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A1-Crime - Will it make our city safer? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it reduce crime, disorder, ASB and the fear of crime? 

 • How will it prevent the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances?  

 • How will it protect and support young people at risk of harm?  

 • How will it discourage re-offending? 

If you want more information contact Lisa.Wills@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-spp-plan-2018-20.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

In providing sufficient cycling and walking infrastructure, we are providing a safe environment to travel for the most vulnerable road 

users.  

Where routes have been developed that provide specific cycle tracks, it is anticipated that driver behaviour will improve. This should 

lead to a decrease in associated traffic collisions. 

How will you measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Road Safety Statistics, Pedestrian and Cycle counts on identified LCWIP routes to determine if usage has 

increased.

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A2-Housing - Will it provide good quality homes? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it increase good quality affordable housing, including social housing? 

 • How will it reduce the number of poor quality homes and accommodation? 

 • How will it produce well-insulated and sustainable buildings? 

 • How will it provide a mix of housing for different groups and needs? 

Page 132



If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/psh-providing-affordable-housing-in-portsmouth-april-19.

pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A3-Health - Will this help promote healthy, safe and independent living? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it improve physical and mental health? 

 • How will it improve quality of life? 

 • How will it encourage healthy lifestyle choices? 

 • How will it create healthy places? (Including workplaces) 

If you want more information contact Dominique.Letouze@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cons-114.86-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-proof-2.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

 

Walking and cycling directly contribute towards a range of physical, mental and neurological health benefits, such as reducing the 

risk of all-cause mortality, fewer symptoms of depression and improved quality of life* 

 

 

*https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/

Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf 

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Road Safety Statistics/Traffic Counts/Cycle and Pedestrian counts on key LCWIP identified routes to determine if 

usage has increased. 

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A4-Income deprivation and poverty-Will it consider income 

deprivation and reduce poverty? ★

Page 133



In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it support those vulnerable to falling into poverty; e.g., single working age adults and lone parent 

households?  

 • How will it consider low-income communities, households and individuals?  

 • How will it support those unable to work?  

 • How will it support those with no educational qualifications? 

If you want more information contact Mark.Sage@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-homelessness-strategy-2018-to-2023.pdf 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/health-and-care/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment 

 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

Where proposals to improve walking and cycling networks exist,  providing a safe and coherent cycling and walking network caters 

for those that do not have access to cost-prohibitive modes of transport. 

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Road Safety Statistics/Traffic Counts. 

Pedestrian and Cycle counts on key LCWIP identified routes to determine if usage has increased after any capital 

investment as a result of the LCWIP.

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A5-Equality & diversity - Will it have any positive/negative impacts on 

the protected characteristics? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it impact on the protected characteristics-Positive or negative impact (Protected characteristics 

under the Equality Act 2010, Age, disability, race/ethnicity, Sexual orientation, gender reassignment, sex, 

religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil partnership,socio-economic)  

 • What mitigation has been put in place to lessen any impacts or barriers removed? 

 • How will it help promote equality for a specific protected characteristic?  

If you want more information contact gina.perryman@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-equality-strategy-2019-22-final.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

 

The proposals outlined in the LCWIP include a range of infrastructure improvements that consider the following, but not limited to; 

people using mobility aids, those who may be visually impaired or partially sighted, and people with pushchairs. It also considers all 

types of cycle typically in use, including adapted cycles, tricycles and cycles with trailers. 

The LCWIP is underpinned by the need to ensure that all scheme design conforms to the latest available guidance, and considers the 

needs of all users.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Consultation on any scheme design will involve all access groups and key stakeholders, drawing on data relating 

to Road Safety Statistics and Traffic Counts.  

Where infrastructure improvements are planned, consultation will take place to gather comments on the 

proposals pre-installation. Additionally, feedback post-installation will take place via the Portsmouth Helpdesk. 
Page 134



Pedestrian and Cycle counts of the LCWIP routes will also take place to determine if usage has increased after 

any capital investment to make improvements as a result of the LCWIP. 

 

Page 135



B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B1-Carbon emissions - Will it reduce carbon emissions? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it reduce greenhouse gas emissions? 

 • How will it provide renewable sources of energy? 

 • How will it reduce the need for motorised vehicle travel? 

 • How will it encourage and support residents to reduce carbon emissions?  

 

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-sustainability-strategy.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

 

The Cycling & Walking Investment Strategy1 sets out government’s ambition to make cycling and walking the natural choice for 

shorter journeys, or as part of longer journeys, and increase the number of trips made by these modes.  

LCWIPs have been created in order to support this at a local level, providing a new, strategic, long-term approach to identify the 

improvements to cycling and walking networks in order to encourage modal shift away from single-occupancy vehicles.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Traffic Counts.  

Road Safety Statistics and Traffic Counts. 

Pedestrian and Cycle counts of the LCWIP routes to determine if usage has increased after any capital investment to make 

improvements as a result of the LCWIP.

B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B2-Energy use - Will it reduce energy use? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it reduce water consumption? 

 • How will it reduce electricity consumption? 

 • How will it reduce gas consumption? 

 • How will it reduce the production of waste? 

If you want more information contact Triston.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:  

  

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf 

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s24685/Home%20Energy%20Appendix%201%20-%20Energy%

20and%20water%20at%20home%20-%20Strategy%202019-25.pdf 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?Page 136



B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B3 - Climate change mitigation and flooding-Will it proactively 

mitigate against a changing climate and flooding? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it minimise flood risk from both coastal and surface flooding in the future? 

 • How will it protect properties and buildings from flooding? 

 • How will it make local people aware of the risk from flooding?  

 • How will it mitigate for future changes in temperature and extreme weather events?  

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-surface-water-management-plan-2019.pdf 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-flood-risk-management-plan.pdf 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B4-Natural environment-Will it ensure public spaces are greener, more 

sustainable and well-maintained? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it encourage biodiversity and protect habitats?  

 • How will it preserve natural sites?  

 • How will it conserve and enhance natural species? 

If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-solent-recreation-mitigation-strategy-dec-17.pdf 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf 

  

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

Several elements included in the LCWIP have looked to incorporate the 'greening' of routes to encourage walking and cycling. These 

can be found in the Background Report. 

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Through the number of schemes that have incorporated 'greening' and other such environmental improvements. Page 137



B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B5-Air quality - Will it improve air quality? 
 ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it reduce motor vehicle traffic congestion? 

 • How will it reduce emissions of key pollutants? 

 • How will it discourage the idling of motor vehicles? 

 • How will it reduce reliance on private car use? 

If you want more information contact Hayley.Trower@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-aq-air-quality-plan-outline-business-case.pdf 

   

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

Cycling has the potential to replace trips currently made by other modes, typically up to 10km in length, whilst walking has the 

potential to replace trips currently made by other modes up to 2km in length. A network of routes which caters for these shorter-

distance journeys is also likely to cater for longer-distance or leisure cycle trips. 

 

Through the improvements identified in the LCWIP, we are providing a network of walking and cycling routes that will look to 

encourage modal shift by providing a safe, coherent, direct and well connected range of routes that will aim to reduce the reliance 

on private car use.  

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Traffic Counts and Air Quality Monitoring at specific LCWIP intervention sites. 

Pedestrian and Cycle counts of the LCWIP routes to determine if usage has increased after any capital 

investment to make improvements as a result of the LCWIP.

B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B6-Transport - Will it improve road safety and transport for the 

whole community? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it prioritise pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users over users of private vehicles? 

 • How will it allocate street space to ensure children and older people can walk and cycle safely in the area? 

 • How will it increase the proportion of journeys made using sustainable and active transport? 

 • How will it reduce the risk of traffic collisions, and near misses, with pedestrians and cyclists?   

 

If you want more information contact Pam.Turton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/travel/local-transport-plan-3 

  

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

The LCWIP identifies improvements to both walking and cycling networks in the city. Collectively these look to reallocate road space, 

prioritise vulnerable road users and increase safety. With the overall aim to increase the number of journeys made by these modes. Page 138



How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Road Safety Statistics and Traffic Counts.  

Pedestrian and Cycle counts of the LCWIP routes to determine if usage has increased after any capital investment to make 

improvements as a result of the LCWIP.

B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B7-Waste management - Will it increase recycling and reduce 

the production of waste? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it reduce household waste and consumption? 

 • How will it increase recycling? 

 • How will it reduce industrial and construction waste? 

    

If you want more information contact Steven.Russell@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf 

  

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 139



C - Regeneration of our city Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

C1-Culture and heritage - Will it promote, protect and 

enhance our culture and heritage? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it protect areas of cultural value? 

 • How will it protect listed buildings? 

 • How will it encourage events and attractions? 

 • How will it make Portsmouth a city people want to live in?  

If you want more information contact Claire.Looney@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

 

The proposals will make it easier for residents and visitors to both walk and cycle in Portsmouth, making the city far more inclusive 

and accessible for all.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Traffic Counts. 

Pedestrian and Cycle counts of the LCWIP routes to determine if usage has increased after any capital 

investment to make improvements as a result of the LCWIP.

C - Regeneration of our city Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

C2-Employment and opportunities - Will it promote the 

development of a skilled workforce? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it improve qualifications and skills for local people? 

 • How will it reduce unemployment? 

 • How will it create high quality jobs? 

 • How will it improve earnings? 

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

If key cycling and walking routes are improved then this will encourage residents to walk and cycle opening up employment 

locations to them that may previously have been inaccessible.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Pedestrian and Cycle counts before and after any engineered improvements on routes improved with funding obtained as a result of 

a completed LCWIP. Increased usage will be deemed as a sucess.Page 140



C - Regeneration of our city Yes No

 Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

C3 - Economy - Will it encourage businesses to invest in the city, 

support sustainable growth and regeneration? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it encourage the development of key industries? 

 • How will it improve the local economy? 

 • How will it create valuable employment opportunities for local people?  

 • How will it promote employment and growth in the city?  

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

Investing in walking and cycling projects provides a 'Benefit Cost Ratio' of 13:1, so for every £1 spent, £13 is returned to the economy . 

Additionally, those who cycle and walk will take more trips to the high street over the course of a month, thus boosting the local 

economy.* 

 

*https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/757756/

Cycling_and_walking_for_individual_and_population_health_benefits.pdf 

  http://content.tfl.gov.uk/walking-cycling-economic-benefits-summary-pack.pdf 

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?
Consultation with businesses along key walking and cycling corridors. 

Q8 - Who was involved in the Integrated impact assessment?

Andrew DiMarco - Senior Active Travel Officer 

Michelle Love - Safer Travel Manager

This IIA has been approved by: Michelle Love

Contact number: 023 9283 4889

Date: 14.01.2022

Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank



                
 

1 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

Title of meeting: 
 

Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation Decision Meeting 

Date of meeting: 
 

24 February 2022  

Subject: 
 

TRO 152B/2021: Various Roads - Disabled Parking Places and 
Amendments 
 

Report by: 
 

Tristan Samuels, Director of Regeneration 

Wards affected: 
 

Eastney & Craneswater  

Key 
Decision: 
 

No 

Full Council decision: No 
 

 
1. Purpose of report 
 

1.1. To consider the public response to the proposed disabled bays in locations in 
Portsmouth. 

 

In this report, TRO means traffic regulation order. 
 

Appendix A: The public proposal notice for TRO 152/2021 
Appendix B: Public views submitted  

     Appendix C: Confirmation of communications (statutory and non-statutory) 
 

2. Recommendations 
In relation to the proposals promoted under TRO 152B/2021, it is recommended 
that: 
 

2.1 The Disabled Persons' Parking Bay in Alhambra Road (outside No 22) is 
implemented;   

 

2.2 It is noted that the remainder of TRO 152/2021 is coming into operation under 
TRO 152A/2021 on 21 February 2022, due to no objections being received to 
those proposals. Therefore, any proposal approved following this report will be 
brought into operation under TRO 152B/2021. 

 
2.3 It is also noted that the Disabled Bay in Glenthorne Road is no longer required 

and has been removed from the TRO. 
 

3. Background  
 

Page 143

Agenda Item 4



                
 

2 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

3.1 Disabled parking bays are installed in residential areas to assist blue badge holders to 
park close to their homes and thereby reduce the distance they have to walk after 
parking their car.  The bays are advertised following applications from individual blue 
badge holders.  TRO 152/2021 advertised the installation of 29 disabled parking bays. 
 

3.2 In order for a disabled parking bay to be considered, the applicant has to hold a valid 
Blue Badge, a vehicle has to be registered to the address, they must not have any 
usable off-street parking and parking in the area should be an issue. 

 
4. Consultation and notification 
 

4.1 Statutory 21-day consultation and notification under TRO 152/2021 took place 20 
December 2021 - 10 January 2022.  
 

4.2 Under statutory consultation, statutory bodies (police, fire & rescue, utilities companies 
etc.) are directly consulted on the Council's formal proposals and the public has a right 
to object.  The Council has a statutory obligation to consider any objections received 
(see paragraph 8.3), although any comments received are given due consideration.  
Appendix B contains the full representations received in response to the proposals. 

 
4.3 In addition to the legal requirement of publishing the proposal notice in a local 

newspaper, the proposal notice was published on the Council's website, yellow copies 
were displayed at affected locations and copies were posted to adjacent residential 
properties to raise awareness. 

 
4.4 Appendix C confirms the communication steps undertaken (statutory and non-

statutory), for reference purposes. 
 

5. Consultation response 
 

5.1 3 representations were received overall.  Two objections were received to the 
proposals for Alhambra Road and one objection was received for Glenthorne Road.   
 

6. Reasons for the recommendations 
 

6.1.1 Alhambra Road, Eastney & Craneswater: An application for a disabled bay was 
received from a blue badge holder who lives on the eastern side of Alhambra Road.  
Immediately outside where they live there are double yellow lines and parking therefore 
takes place on the opposite western side of the road.  Alhambra Road is included within 
the MF Craneswater residents parking scheme.  

 

6.1.2 An objection has been received from the managing agent for the properties where the 
bay has been advertised to be located outside.   They are objecting on the grounds 
that parking in the road is already extremely difficult and they regularly require servicing 
visits to the units, which will mean that the space outside the property will become 
unusable to anyone attending.  They also state that the applicant has 3 vehicles and a 
garage space available to them.  

 

Page 144



                
 

3 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

6.1.3 A second objection from a resident was received suggesting that the bay was not for 
the applicant, but another family member and that the applicant had use of 3 vehicles 
and a garage.   

 
6.1.4 An enquiry to the relevant Housing Office has confirmed that the applicant does not 

lease any of the garages at the rear of the property.   Owning multiple vehicles does 
not preclude a disabled parking bay being installed.    

 
6.1.5 The location for the bay was recommended as it is the closest parking location for the 

applicant when exiting their property and thereby reducing the distance they have to 
walk after parking their vehicle.  Blue badges are issued to applicants who have an 
enduring and substantial disability which causes them, during the course of a journey, 
to be unable to walk or experience very considerable difficulty whilst walking.   

 
6.1.6 The objection relating to the numerous service visits to the property has been 

considered, however there is no guarantee that any vehicle attending the units would 
be able to park immediately outside and as with any other resident in the road who 
requires visits, they will have to look for an available parking space which may or may 
not be in the same road.   

 
6.2 Glenthorne Road - The disabled bay in Glenthorne Road is no longer required so the 

objection against that specific disabled bay is not considered as part of this report and 
the bay has been removed from the TRO. 

                  

7. Integrated Impact Assessment 
 

7.1 An integrated impact assessment has been completed and is published alongside this 
report. 

 

8. Legal Implications 
 
8.1 It is the duty of a local authority to manage its road network with a view to achieving, 

so far as may be reasonably practicable having regard to their other obligations, 
policies and objectives, the following objectives: 

 

(a) securing the expeditious movement of traffic on the authority’s road network; and 
(b) facilitating the expeditious movement of traffic on road networks for which another 
authority is the traffic authority. 

 

8.2 Local authorities have a duty to take account of the needs of all road users, take action 
to minimise, prevent or deal with congestion problems, and consider the implications 
of decisions for both their network and those of others. 

 

8.3 A proposed TRO must be advertised and the statutory consultees notified and given a 
3-week period (21 days) in which to register any support or objections. Members of the 
public also have a right to object during that period. If objections are received to the 
proposed order the matter must go before the appropriate executive member for a 
decision whether or not to make the order, taking into account any objections received 
from the public and/or the statutory consultees during the consultation period. 

Page 145



                
 

4 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

9. Director of Finance's comments 
 

9.1 The costs of works to implement the disabled bay (including the TRO) is estimated to 
be less than £400 and will be met from the On-Street Parking budget.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
Tristan Samuels 
Director of Regeneration 
 
  

Page 146



                
 

5 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Background list of documents: Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
The following documents disclose facts or matters, which have been relied upon to a 
material extent by the author in preparing this report: 
 

Title of document Location 
2 emails and 1 letter in response to the 
published proposals under TRO 152/2021 

1. Portsmouth City Council's "TROteam" inbox, 
Microsoft Outlook 
2. Parking team's online storage (content 
reproduced within the report; anonymised) 
 

 

The recommendation(s) set out above were approved/ approved as amended/ deferred/ 
rejected by ……………………………… on ……………………………… 
 
 
 
 

……………………………………………… 
Signed by:  
Cabinet Member for Traffic and Transportation 
  

Page 147



                
 

6 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Appendix A: The public proposal notice for TRO 152/2021 

 
THE PORTSMOUTH CITY COUNCIL (VARIOUS ROADS) (DISABLED PERSONS’ PARKING 
PLACES AND AMENDMENTS) (NO. 152) ORDER 2021 
 
20 December 2021: Notice is hereby given that Portsmouth City Council proposes to make the 
above Order under sections 32, 35 and 36 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, as amended, 
the Traffic Management Act 2004, the Civil Enforcement of Parking Contraventions (England) 
General Regulations 2007, and of all other enabling powers, and in accordance with Parts III and 
IV of schedule 9 to the 1984 Act, to install enforceable disabled bays for qualifying residents. 
 

A) DISABLED PERSONS’ PARKING BAYS (MINIMUM 5-METRE LENGTH) 
Only vehicles displaying a Blue Badge or relevant permit issued by the Council may park at these 
locations: 
 

Alhambra Road (outside no. 22)                            Laburnum Grove (outside nos. 242/244) 
Allaway Avenue (outside block 68-70a)                 Lynn Road (outside no. 39) 
Ariel Road (outside nos. 20/22)                              Newcomen Road (outside nos. 6/8) 
Balfour Road (outside no. 38)                                Northern Parade (outside nos. 131-135) 
Bath Road (outside nos. 62/64)                             Priory Crescent (outside no. 2) 
Beresford Road (outside no. 29)                            Redcar Avenue (outside no. 37) 
Chesterfield Road (outside no. 102)                      Stride Avenue (outside no. 86) 
Copythorn Road (outside no. 40)                           Suffolk Road (outside no. 80) 
Crofton Road, Milton (outside no. 69)                    Tokar Street (alongside no. 75 Adair Road) 
Emsworth Road (outside no. 36)                            Victoria Street (outside block 1-9 Victoria Court) 
Glenthorne Road (outside no. 11)                          Wadham Road (Alongside flats 2-5, 247 
Graham Road (outside no. 2)                                                           London Road) 
Kensington Road (outside nos. 71 & 111)              Walden Road (outside nos. 80/82) 
Kimbolton Road (outside nos. 12 & 23)                  Wisborough Road (outside no. 2) 
 

B) REMOVAL OF DISABLED PERSONS' PARKING BAYS (NO LONGER REQUIRED) 
Cornwall Road (outside Block 33-39)                      Morley Road (outside no. 21) 
 

To view this public notice or the draft order on Portsmouth City Council’s website, visit 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk and search 'traffic regulation orders 2021'.  For those without access to a 
computer, a printed copy of the draft order including the statement of reasons can be requested 
by calling 023 9268 8338. 
 

Page 148

http://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/


                
 

7 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
  

 
 

Pam Turton, Assistant Director of Regeneration (Transport) 
Portsmouth City Council, Civic Offices, Guildhall Square, Portsmouth PO1 2NE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Persons wishing to object to these proposals may do so by sending their representations via 
email to TROteam@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or by post to Tululah Gordon-Hall, Parking team, 
Portsmouth City Council, Civic Offices, Portsmouth PO1 2NE, quoting ref TRO 152/2021 by  
10 January 2022 stating the grounds of objection, and name and address details.  
 

Under the provisions of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, any written 
representations that are received may be open to inspection by members of the public. If the 
proposals require a decision to be made at a public meeting, representations are anonymised 
in accordance with data protection law and included in the published report. Please see the 
Council's website for full details of the Data Protection privacy notice.  
 

Page 149

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/your-council/transparency/data-protection-privacy-notice


                
 

8 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

Appendix B: Public views  
 

Alhambra Road:  
Objections to proposed Disabled Bay 

 

1. Managing Agent of Properties, Alhambra Road 
 

I am the managing agent for flats at 20 and 22 Alhambra Road working on behalf of the 
Landlord.  I have managed these flat for forty years and I am very familiar with the area and the 
tenants in out two buildings. 
 
The two buildings comprise eighteen residential units Plus two cleaners operating 
units.  (Twenty Units) 
 
I wish to  strongly object to the proposal to take one parking space and mark it as disabled. 
 
Parking in Alhambra Road is already extremely difficult, and I understand that the applicant has 
three vehicles and already has a garage space associated with their flat opposite 22 Alhambra 
Road. 
 
With this in mind please consider the extreme difficulties that we experience on a day to day 
basis in properly servicing our own twenty units within numbers 20/22 Alhambra Road.  To 
mark one bay as disabled will effectively put it out of use for all time that is marked as such, 
whether or not there is a vehicle using it at the time.  
 
From January 1st 2021 to December 31st 2021, a typical year, we required access for our 
servicing personnel  all of whom require transport to carry tools and fittings etc on no fewer 
than 492 visits.  
 
This comprised:- 
 
EPC Surveyors  18 visits 
Electrical Certification 18 visits 
Gas Engineers 10 visits 
Painter (Permanent) 300 visitsAlarm Engineers 6 visits 
Emergency Lighting Engineers  6 visits 
Pest Control 6 visits 
Weekly Cleaner 50 visits 
Carpet Fitters (with large truck) 6 visits 
Blind Fitters (With van) 6 visits 
Waste Removal (With large Vehicle) 16 Visits (Costing £ 3,800) 
Weekly Inspection(Rent and account maintenance) 50  
Plus builders and maintenance teams.  (Unknown) 
 
Alhambra Road is the most difficult to service efficiently and we feel that further investigation 
into the circumstances is required. It is not fair nor is it justifiable to removed one space 
immediately outside our building when we rely on it much, for a person who already has a 
garage attached to their accommodation 

Page 150



                
 

9 

 
www.portsmouth.gov.uk 

 
I attach some photographic evidence of the issue involving waste, (Often not even ours) just 
dumped on our door step, pest control issues, and general maintenance of the exterior and 
interior of the property.  

 
 

2. Resident, Alhambra Road 
I would like to object to a disabled parking place, to be put right outside of where I live.  
Reasons are:- the road, Alhambra Road, is bad enough for parking all the time as you are 
probably aware.  The person who is asking for a disabled bay is not for himself but his ex-wife, 
"common law wife" who can easily walk to the shop around the corner.  He has 3 cars, and a 
garage, and it seems unfair he should ask for a disabled spot on this road.  I have to pay £30.00 
a year to park on this road, and he is taking up room, on the road with 3 cars.  It's unfair for 
other residents with cars too.  The gentleman's common law wife can walk to the shops, so it's 
not as if she can't walk 15 yards to the garage from where they live to get in a car.  Not only this 
but our landlord needs constant access to this property, as work people need to park close by 
for house maintenance, so a disabled bay right outside 22 Alhambra would make things very 
awkward for him too.  One car in one garage should be sufficient, not 2 other vehicles as well 
taking up space on the road. 
 

 
 

(End of report) 
 

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C - TRO 152/2021 Confirmation Table of Communication Steps Taken 

1 
 

Action taken 
 

*Statutory Requirement 

Date started 
Date completed 

Completed 
 

(Signature required) 

Proposed TRO published in local newspaper, 
The Portsmouth News* 

Started: N/A 
 
Completed: 20/12/2021 

 

Notices displayed on affected roads* 
Started: N/A 
 
Completed: 20/12/2021  

21-day consultation* 
Started: 20/12/2021 
 
Completed: 10/01/2022  

Public notice for proposed TRO published on 
Portsmouth City Council's website 

Started: N/A 
 
Completed: 20/12/2021  

Proposed TRO available online from Portsmouth 
City Council's website 

Started: N/A 
 
Completed: 20/12/2021  

Letters posted via Royal Mail including public 
notice  

Started: 15/12/2021 
 
Completed: 18/12/2021  

Email / letter sent to respondents with time, date 
and location of T&T meeting 

Started: N/A 
 
To be completed 1 week 
before T&T meeting 

 

P
age 153



Appendix C - TRO 152/2021 Confirmation Table of Communication Steps Taken 

2 
 

Action taken 
 

*Statutory Requirement 

Date started 
Date completed 

Completed 
 

(Signature required) 

Email / letter sent to respondents with notifying of 
decision made at the T&T meeting 

Started: N/A 
 
To be completed 1 week after 
T&T meeting 

 

 
Started:  
 
Completed: 

 

 
Started:  
 
Completed: 

 

 
Started:  
 
Completed: 

 

 
Started:  
 
Completed: 

 

 
Started:  
 
Completed: 

 

 
Started:  
 
Completed: 

 

P
age 154



Appendix C - TRO 152/2021 Confirmation Table of Communication Steps Taken 

3 
 

List of roads notices have been displayed on 

Alhambra Road Allaway Avenue 

Ariel Road Balfour Road 

Bath Road Beresford Road 

Chesterfield Road Cornwall Road 

Copythorn Road Crofton Road, Milton 

Emsworth Road Glenthorne Road 

Graham Road Kensington Road 

Kimbolton Road Laburnum Grove 

Lynn Road Morley Road 

Newcomen Road Northern Parade 

Priory Crescent Redcar Avenue 

Stride Avenue Suffolk Road 

Tokar Street Victoria Street 

Wadham Road Walden Road 

Wisborough Road  

 

Properties letters have been sent to  

• Letters were sent to properties where a bay was proposed outside of an 

address that was not the Blue Badge holder's, and to properties where a bay 

was proposed to overlap a property that did not belong to the Blue Badge 

holder. 

 

Page 155



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA)

The integrated impact assessment is a quick and easy screening process. It should: 

identify those policies, projects, services, functions or strategies that could impact positively or 

negatively on the following areas:

Communities and safety

Integrated impact assessment (IIA) form December 2019 

 

Equality & - Diversity - This can be found in Section A5

Environment and public  space

Regeneration and culture

www.portsmouth.gov.uk

Directorate: Regeneration

Service, function: Parking Service

Title of policy, service, function, project or strategy (new or old) : 

TRO 152/2021: proposed disabled bays

Type of policy, service, function, project or strategy: 

Existing★

New / proposed

Changed

What is the aim of your policy, service, function, project or strategy? 

To make it easier for blue badge holders to park closer to where they live.

Page 157



Has any consultation been undertaken for this proposal? What were the outcomes of the consultations? Has 

anything changed because of the consultation? Did this inform your proposal?

Statutory consultation took place for TRO 152/2021 between 20th December 2021 and 10th January 2022.  The majority of disabled 

bays received no comments or objections, the two bays that received objections have the full details within the published report

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A1-Crime - Will it make our city safer? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it reduce crime, disorder, ASB and the fear of crime? 

 • How will it prevent the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances?  

 • How will it protect and support young people at risk of harm?  

 • How will it discourage re-offending? 

If you want more information contact Lisa.Wills@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-spp-plan-2018-20.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How will you measure/check the impact of your proposal?

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A2-Housing - Will it provide good quality homes? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it increase good quality affordable housing, including social housing? 

 • How will it reduce the number of poor quality homes and accommodation? 

 • How will it produce well-insulated and sustainable buildings? 

 • How will it provide a mix of housing for different groups and needs? 

If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/psh-providing-affordable-housing-in-portsmouth-april-19.

pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

Page 158



How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A3-Health - Will this help promote healthy, safe and independent living? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it improve physical and mental health? 

 • How will it improve quality of life? 

 • How will it encourage healthy lifestyle choices? 

 • How will it create healthy places? (Including workplaces) 

If you want more information contact Dominique.Letouze@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cons-114.86-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-proof-2.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

 

This proposal will assist the more vulnerable in being able to go out in a vehicle, knowing that when they return they will be able to 

park close to their home.  Blue badge holders who do not have off-street parking available to them, often find that they cannot park 

close to their home and feel that they cannot go out as they are unable to walk the distance home from where they have to park.   

The installation of disabled bays for blue badge holders helps to improve their mental health/quality of life by giving them 

confidence to go out and about knowing they will be able to park close to home when they return.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Feedback from blue badge holders

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A4-Income deprivation and poverty-Will it consider income 

deprivation and reduce poverty? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it support those vulnerable to falling into poverty; e.g., single working age adults and lone parent 

households?  

 • How will it consider low-income communities, households and individuals?  

 • How will it support those unable to work?  

 • How will it support those with no educational qualifications? 

Page 159



If you want more information contact Mark.Sage@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-homelessness-strategy-2018-to-2023.pdf 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/health-and-care/health/joint-strategic-needs-assessment 

 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

A - Communities and safety Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

A5-Equality & diversity - Will it have any positive/negative impacts on 

the protected characteristics? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it impact on the protected characteristics-Positive or negative impact (Protected characteristics 

under the Equality Act 2010, Age, disability, race/ethnicity, Sexual orientation, gender reassignment, sex, 

religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, marriage and civil partnership,socio-economic)  

 • What mitigation has been put in place to lessen any impacts or barriers removed? 

 • How will it help promote equality for a specific protected characteristic?  

If you want more information contact gina.perryman@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-equality-strategy-2019-22-final.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

 

The proposed disabled bays will benefit blue badge holders by helping them to park close to where they live.    Blue badge holders 

often have a walking disability which means they can only walk a short distance without experiencing very considerable difficulty 

when walking.  When blue badge holders go out and about they can utilise dedicated disabled parking bays/exemptions from 

certain parking restrictions to enable them to access public buildings, shops and other services, however when they return home 

they can find they have to walk a considerable distance from where they park.  The installation of disabled bays close to where a blue 

badge holder lives has a positive impact as it will enable them to park by their home.  Only those with a valid blue badge can park in 

the bays, but each bay can be used by any blue badge holder so the proposal doesn't have negative impacts on other blue badge 

holders.

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Feedback from blue badge holders

Page 160



B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B1-Carbon emissions - Will it reduce carbon emissions? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it reduce greenhouse gas emissions? 

 • How will it provide renewable sources of energy? 

 • How will it reduce the need for motorised vehicle travel? 

 • How will it encourage and support residents to reduce carbon emissions?  

 

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cmu-sustainability-strategy.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

 

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B2-Energy use - Will it reduce energy use? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it reduce water consumption? 

 • How will it reduce electricity consumption? 

 • How will it reduce gas consumption? 

 • How will it reduce the production of waste? 

If you want more information contact Triston.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to:  

  

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf 

https://democracy.portsmouth.gov.uk/documents/s24685/Home%20Energy%20Appendix%201%20-%20Energy%

20and%20water%20at%20home%20-%20Strategy%202019-25.pdf 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 161



B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B3 - Climate change mitigation and flooding-Will it proactively 

mitigate against a changing climate and flooding? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it minimise flood risk from both coastal and surface flooding in the future? 

 • How will it protect properties and buildings from flooding? 

 • How will it make local people aware of the risk from flooding?  

 • How will it mitigate for future changes in temperature and extreme weather events?  

If you want more information contact Tristan.thorn@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-surface-water-management-plan-2019.pdf 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-flood-risk-management-plan.pdf 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B4-Natural environment-Will it ensure public spaces are greener, more 

sustainable and well-maintained? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it encourage biodiversity and protect habitats?  

 • How will it preserve natural sites?  

 • How will it conserve and enhance natural species? 

If you want more information contact Daniel.Young@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-solent-recreation-mitigation-strategy-dec-17.pdf 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf 

  

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 162



B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B5-Air quality - Will it improve air quality? 
 ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it reduce motor vehicle traffic congestion? 

 • How will it reduce emissions of key pollutants? 

 • How will it discourage the idling of motor vehicles? 

 • How will it reduce reliance on private car use? 

If you want more information contact Hayley.Trower@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/env-aq-air-quality-plan-outline-business-case.pdf 

   

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B6-Transport - Will it improve road safety and transport for the 

whole community? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it prioritise pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users over users of private vehicles? 

 • How will it allocate street space to ensure children and older people can walk and cycle safely in the area? 

 • How will it increase the proportion of journeys made using sustainable and active transport? 

 • How will it reduce the risk of traffic collisions, and near misses, with pedestrians and cyclists?   

 

If you want more information contact Pam.Turton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/travel/local-transport-plan-3 

  

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 163



B - Environment and climate change Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

B7-Waste management - Will it increase recycling and reduce 

the production of waste? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it reduce household waste and consumption? 

 • How will it increase recycling? 

 • How will it reduce industrial and construction waste? 

    

If you want more information contact Steven.Russell@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://documents.hants.gov.uk/mineralsandwaste/HampshireMineralsWastePlanADOPTED.pdf 

  

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 164



C - Regeneration of our city Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

C1-Culture and heritage - Will it promote, protect and 

enhance our culture and heritage? ★

In thinking about this question: 

  

 • How will it protect areas of cultural value? 

 • How will it protect listed buildings? 

 • How will it encourage events and attractions? 

 • How will it make Portsmouth a city people want to live in?  

If you want more information contact Claire.Looney@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/pln-portsmouth-plan-post-adoption.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts? 

 

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

C - Regeneration of our city Yes No

Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

C2-Employment and opportunities - Will it promote the 

development of a skilled workforce? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it improve qualifications and skills for local people? 

 • How will it reduce unemployment? 

 • How will it create high quality jobs? 

 • How will it improve earnings? 

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Page 165



C - Regeneration of our city Yes No

 Is your policy/proposal relevant to the following questions?

C3 - Economy - Will it encourage businesses to invest in the city, 

support sustainable growth and regeneration? ★

In thinking about this question: 

 

 • How will it encourage the development of key industries? 

 • How will it improve the local economy? 

 • How will it create valuable employment opportunities for local people?  

 • How will it promote employment and growth in the city?  

If you want more information contact Mark.Pembleton@portsmouthcc.gov.uk or go to: 

 

https://www.portsmouth.gov.uk/ext/documents-external/cou-regeneration-strategy.pdf 

 

Please expand on the impact your policy/proposal will have, and how you propose to mitigate any negative 

impacts?

How are you going to measure/check the impact of your proposal?

Q8 - Who was involved in the Integrated impact assessment?

Denise Bastow - Parking Office Manager 

Kevin McKee - Parking Manager

This IIA has been approved by: Kevin McKee, Parking Manager.

Contact number: 02392688297

Date: 24/1/22

Page 166


	Agenda
	3 Local Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Plan 2020-2030
	Appendix B - LCWIP Summary FINAL
	Appendix C - LCWIP Background Report
	Appendix D - LCWIP Integrated Impact assessment1

	4 TRO 152B/2021: Various Roads - Disabled Parking Places and Amendments
	Appendix C - confirmation of communications (statutory & non-statutory)
	Integrated Impact Assessment


